
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Notice of Meeting 
 
 

Southern Area 
Planning Committee 

 
 
 
Date: 
 

Tuesday 15 August 2023 

Time: 
 

5.30 pm 

Venue: 
 

Main Hall, Crosfield Hall, Broadwater Road, Romsey, Hampshire, 
SO51 8GL 

 
 
For further information or enquiries please contact: 
Caroline Lovelock - 01264 368000 
clovelock@testvalley.gov.uk 
 
 
 

Legal and Democratic Service 
Test Valley Borough Council, 

Beech Hurst, Weyhill Road, 
Andover, Hampshire, 

SP10 3AJ 
www.testvalley.gov.uk 

 
 
 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION SCHEME 
If members of the public wish to address the meeting they should notify the 
Legal and Democratic Service at the Council's Beech Hurst office by noon 

on the working day before the meeting. 
 
 

http://www.testvalley.gov.uk/


 
 

 
Membership of Southern Area Planning Committee 

 
MEMBER  WARD 
 
Councillor M Cooper (Chairman) Romsey Tadburn 

Councillor A Dowden (Vice-Chairman) Valley Park 

Councillor G Bailey Blackwater 

Councillor P Bundy Chilworth, Nursling & Rownhams 

Councillor J Burnage Romsey Cupernham 

Councillor C Dowden Valley Park 

Councillor K Dunleavey Chilworth, Nursling & Rownhams 

Councillor A Ford North Baddesley 

Councillor S Gidley Romsey Abbey 

Councillor I Jeffrey Mid Test 

Councillor A Johnston Mid Test 

Councillor J Parker Romsey Tadburn 

Councillor A Warnes North Baddesley 

 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023



 
 

 
Southern Area Planning Committee 

 
Tuesday 15 August 2023 

 
AGENDA 

 
The order of these items may change as a result of members 

of the public wishing to speak 
 
  
1   Apologies 

 
 

 
2   Public Participation 

 
 

 
3   Declarations of Interest 

 
 

 
4   Urgent Items 

 
 

 
5   Minutes of previous meeting 

 
5 - 9 

 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting 
held on 25 July 2023. 
 

 

 
6   Information Notes 

 
10 - 15 

 
7   22/03346/FULLS - 03.01.2023 

 
16 - 44 

 (OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: PERMISSION) 
SITE: Land South West of Misslebrook Copse, 
Misslebrook Lane CHILWORTH/VALLEY PARK 
CASE OFFICER: Paul Goodman 
  

 

 
8   23/00805/FULLS - 30.03.2023 

 
45 - 62 

 (OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: PERMISSION) 
SITE: The Romsey School, Greatbridge Road, Romsey, 
SO51 8ZB ROMSEY TOWN 
CASE OFFICER: Kate Levey 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023



 
 

9   23/01508/FULLS - 12.06.2023 
 

63 - 97 

 (OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: PERMISSION) 
SITE: Woolley Green Farm, Dores Lane, Braishfield, 
SO51 0QJ BRAISHFIELD/AMPFIELD 
CASE OFFICER: Mark Staincliffe 
  

 

 
10   23/01080/FULLS - 20.06.2023 

 
98 - 110 

 (OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: PERMISSION) 
SITE: SHB Hire Ltd, Mill Lane, Nursling, SO10 0YE 
NURSLING AND ROWNHAMS 
CASE OFFICER: Mark Staincliffe 
 

 

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023



 
 
 

Minute page number 64 
 

 
Minutes of the Southern Area Planning Committee 

of the Test Valley Borough Council 
held in Main Hall, Crosfield Hall, Broadwater Road, Romsey  

on 25 July 2023 at 5.30 pm 
 
Attendance: 
Councillor M Cooper (Chairman) Councillor A Dowden (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor J Burnage 
Councillor C Dowden 
Councillor K Dunleavey 
Councillor S Gidley 
 

Councillor I Jeffrey 
Councillor J Parker 
Councillor A Warnes 

 

Also in attendance 
Councillor R Kohli 
 

  
 

  
115   Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from Councillors Bailey, Bundy, Ford and Johnston. 
 
  
116   Public Participation 

 
There was no public participation. 
 
  
117   Declarations of Interest 

 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
  
118   Urgent Items 

 
There were no urgent items. 
 
  
119   Minutes 

 
Resolved: 
  
That the minutes of the meeting held on 4 July 2023 be confirmed and signed 
as a correct record. 
 
 
 
 
  

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 5

ITEM 5



 
 

 
Minute page number 65 

 

120   Schedule of Development Applications 
 

 
Resolved: 
 
That the applications for development, as set out below, be determined as 
indicated. 
 
  
121   23/00793/FULLS - 23.03.2023 

 
  APPLICATION NO. 23/00793/FULLS 
  APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION - SOUTH 
  REGISTERED 23.03.2023 
  APPLICANT Lauren Wiltshire 
  SITE Little Beeches, Braishfield Road, Crookhill, SO51 

0QB, BRAISHFIELD 
  PROPOSAL Erection of single storey side extension, works to 

roof with alterations to create living accommodation 
in the roof, erection of single storey front porch and 
various alterations 

  AMENDMENTS 7 June 2023 – amended plan reference 20073-PL-
805A received, removing the chimney from the 
proposal   

  CASE OFFICER Kate Levey 
  

The Officer’s recommendation as per the agenda and amended condition 1 in the 
update paper was proposed by Councillor M Cooper and seconded by Councillor A 
Dowden.  Upon being put to the vote the motion was carried. 

  
PERMISSION subject to: 
1. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in 

complete accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, 
numbers 20073-PL-801, 20073-PL-802 GF, 20073-PL-803 FF, 20073-PL-
804, 20073-PL-805A  
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 

2. The external materials to be used in the construction of external surfaces 
of the development hereby permitted shall be in complete accordance 
with the details specified on the submitted application form.  
Reason:  To ensure a satisfactory visual relationship of the new 
development with the existing in accordance with Test Valley Borough 
Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy E1 

3. The roof lights in the north elevation of the development hereby 
permitted shall be installed at a minimum height of 1.8 metres above the 
finished floor level and thereafter retained as such, unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 6



 
 

 
Minute page number 66 

 

Reason:  To protect the amenity and privacy of the adjoining occupiers in 
accordance with Policy LHW4 of the Test Valley Borough Revised Local 
Plan (2016). 

4. The three high level windows on the south elevation of the development 
hereby permitted shall be installed at a minimum height of 1.8 metres 
above the finished floor level and thereafter retained as such, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
Reason:  To protect the amenity and privacy of the adjoining occupiers in 
accordance with Policy LHW4 of the Test Valley Borough Revised Local 
Plan (2016). 

5. The development hereby approved shall be undertaken in full 
accordance with the provisions set out within the eco urban 
arboricultural, Arboricultural Impact Appraisal and Method Statement 
reference 231534 - AIA 2 dated 6 March 2023.  
Reason:  To ensure the enhancement of the development by the 
retention of existing trees and natural features during the construction 
phase in accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan policy 
E2. 

6. Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted,  
Details of the new standard sized oak tree shall be submitted to and 
agreed by the Local Planning Authority. Details shall include its size and 
exact location along the front (east) boundary of the site. The new tree as 
detailed shall be planted in the approved position within the first planting 
season following the completion of the development. If the tree dies or 
becomes, in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority, seriously 
damaged or defective within the first five years after it is planted, it shall 
be replaced before the end of the current or first available planting 
season following the failure, removal or damage of the planting.    
Reason: To ensure the continuation of canopy cover in the area and 
enhance the development in accordance with the Test Valley Borough 
Revised Local Plan policy E2. 

7. Development shall proceed in accordance with the measures set out in 
the ‘Recommendations’ section of the Preliminary Ecological Appraisal, 
Bat Survey Report and Mitigation Strategy (CC Ecology, July 2021) 
unless varied by a European Protected Species (EPS) license issued by 
Natural England. Thereafter, the replacement bat roost features and 
enhancements shall be permanently maintained and retained in 
accordance with the approved details.  
Reason: to ensure the favourable conservation status of bats in 
accordance with Policy E5 of the Test Valley Revised Local Plan 206.  

Note to applicant: 
1. In reaching this decision Test Valley Borough Council (TVBC) has had 

regard to the National Planning Policy Framework and takes a positive 
and proactive approach to development proposals focused on solutions. 
TVBC work with applicants and their agents in a positive and proactive 
manner offering a pre-application advice service and updating 
applicants/agents of issues that may arise in dealing with the application 
and where possible suggesting solutions. 
  
  

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 7



 
 

 
Minute page number 67 

 

   
122   23/01208/FULLS - 10.05.2023 

 
  APPLICATION NO. 23/01208/FULLS 
  APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION - SOUTH 
  REGISTERED 10.05.2023 
  APPLICANT Mr and Mrs Holland 
  SITE 12 Stinchar Drive, Chandlers Ford, Eastleigh, SO53 

4QH,  VALLEY PARK  
  PROPOSAL Demolish detached double garage and 

conservatory, erect two storey rear extension and 
attached double garage extension to side 

  AMENDMENTS None 
  CASE OFFICER Nathan Glasgow 
  

The Officer’s recommendation as per the agenda was proposed by Councillor M 
Cooper and seconded by Councillor A Dowden.  Upon being put to the vote the 
motion was carried. 

  
PERMISSION subject to: 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun within three years 

from the date of this permission. 
Reason:  To comply with the provision of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning 
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

2. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in 
complete accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, 
numbers: 

         Location Plan 
         Block Plan 
         Proposed Plans - HOLL/01/23 

Reason:  For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 

3. The external materials to be used in the construction of all external 
surfaces of the development hereby permitted shall match in type, 
colour and texture those used in the existing building. 
Reason:  To ensure a satisfactory visual relationship of the new 
development with the existing in accordance with Test Valley Borough 
Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy E1. 

4. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any order amending, 
revoking or re-enacting that Order), the garage hereby approved shall at 
all times be available for the parking of 
vehicles.                                                                                    
Reason:  In order to maintain the approved on-site parking provision 
and to reduce highway congestion in accordance with Test Valley 
Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policies T1 and T2. 
 
  

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 8



 
 

 
Minute page number 68 

 

Notes to applicant: 
1. In reaching this decision Test Valley Borough Council (TVBC) has had 

regard to the National Planning Policy Framework and takes a positive 
and proactive approach to development proposals focused on 
solutions. TVBC work with applicants and their agents in a positive and 
proactive manner offering a pre-application advice service and updating 
applicants/agents of issues that may arise in dealing with the 
application and where possible suggesting solutions. 

2. Bats and their roosts receive strict legal protection under the Wildlife 
and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the Conservation of 
Habitats and Species Regulations 2017.  All work must stop immediately 
if bats, or evidence of bat presence (e.g. droppings, bat carcasses or 
insect remains), are encountered at any point during this development.  
Should this occur, further advice should be sought from Natural 
England and/or a professional ecologist. 

3. Birds' nests, when occupied or being built, receive legal protection 
under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended). It is highly 
advisable to undertake clearance of potential bird nesting habitat (such 
as hedges, scrub, trees, suitable outbuildings etc.) outside the bird 
nesting season, which is generally seen as extending from March to the 
end of August, although may extend longer depending on local 
conditions. If there is absolutely no alternative to doing the work in 
during this period then a thorough, careful and quiet examination of the 
affected area must be carried out before clearance starts. If occupied 
nests are present then work must stop in that area, a suitable 
(approximately 5m) stand-off maintained, and clearance can only 
recommence once the nest becomes unoccupied of its own accord. 
  
  

  
  
 
 
 

(The meeting terminated at 5.59 pm) 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 9



 

TEST VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

INFORMATION NOTES 
 
 

Availability of Background Papers 
 
Background papers may be inspected up to five working days before the date of the 
Committee meeting and for four years thereafter.  Requests to inspect the 
background papers, most of which will be on the application file, should be made to 
the case officer named in the report or to the Development Manager.  Although there 
is no legal provision for inspection of the application file before the report is placed 
on the agenda for the meeting, an earlier inspection may be agreed on application to 
the Head of Planning and Building. 
 
Reasons for Committee Consideration 
 
The majority of applications are determined by the Head of Planning and Building in 
accordance with the Council’s Scheme of Delegation which is set out in the Council’s 
Constitution.  However, some applications are determined at the Area Planning 
Committees and this will happen if any of the following reasons apply: 
 

(a) Applications which are contrary to the provisions of an approved or draft 
development plan or other statement of approved planning policy where 
adverse representations have been received and which is recommended 
for approval. 
 

(b) Applications (excluding notifications) where a Member requests in writing, 
with reasons and within the Application Publicity Expiry Date, that they be 
submitted to Committee. A Member can withdraw this request at any time 
prior to the determination of the application to enable its determination under 
delegated powers. 

 
(c) Applications submitted by or on behalf of the Council, or any company in 

which the Council holds an interest, for its own developments except for the 
approval of minor developments. 
 

(d) Applications where the Head of Planning and Building Services recommends 
refusal of an application solely on the basis of failure to achieve nutrient 
neutrality where a Ward Member requests in writing, with reasons, within 72 
hours of notification of the recommendation for refusal that they be submitted 
to Committee for determination. A Member can withdraw this request at any 
time prior to the determination of the application to enable its determination 
under delegated powers. 

 
(e) To determine applications (excluding applications for advertisement consent, 

certificates of lawfulness, listed building consent, and applications resulting 
from the withdrawal by condition of domestic permitted development rights; 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 10

ITEM 6



 

 
 
Schedule 2, Part 1, Classes B, C, D, E, F, G, and H of the Town and Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 or as 
amended) on which a material planning objection(s) has been received within 
the Application Publicity Expiry Date and which cannot be resolved by 
negotiation or through the imposition of conditions and where the officer’s 
recommendation is for approval, following consultation with the Ward 
Members, the latter having the right to request that the application be 
reported to Committee for decision. 

 
Public Speaking at the Meeting 
 
The Council has a public participation scheme, which invites members of the public, 
Parish Council representatives and applicants to address the Committee on 
applications.  Full details of the scheme are available from Planning and Building 
Services or from Democratic Services at the Council Offices, Beech Hurst, Weyhill 
Road, Andover.  Copies are usually sent to all those who have made 
representations.  Anyone wishing to speak must book with the Democratic Services 
within the stipulated time period otherwise they will not be allowed to address the 
Committee. 
 
Speakers are limited to a total of three minutes per item for Councillors on the Area 
Committee who have personal interests or where a Member has pre-determined 
his/her position on the relevant application, three minutes for the Parish Council, 
three minutes for all objectors, three minutes for all supporters and three minutes for 
the applicant/agent and relevant Ward Members who are not Committee Members 
will have a maximum of five minutes.  Where there are multiple supporters or 
multiple objectors wishing to speak the Chairman may limit individual speakers to 
less than three minutes with a view to accommodating multiple speakers within the 
three minute time limit.  Speakers may be asked questions by the Members of the 
Committee, but are not permitted to ask questions of others or to join in the debate.  
Speakers are not permitted to circulate or display plans, photographs, illustrations or 
textual material during the Committee meeting as any such material should be sent 
to the Members and officers in advance of the meeting to allow them time to 
consider the content. 
 
Content of Officer’s Report 
 
It should be noted that the Officer’s report will endeavour to include a summary of the 
relevant site characteristics, site history, policy issues, consultations carried out with 
both internal and external consultees and the public and then seek to make a 
professional judgement as to whether permission should be granted.  However, the 
officer’s report will usually summarise many of the issues, particularly consultations 
received from consultees and the public, and anyone wishing to see the full 
response must ask to consult the application file. 
 
 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 11



 

 
Status of Officer’s Recommendations and Committee’s Decisions 
 
The recommendations contained in this report are made by the officers at the time 
the report was prepared.  A different recommendation may be made at the meeting 
should circumstances change and the officer’s recommendations may not be 
accepted by the Committee. 
 
In order to facilitate debate in relation to an application, the Chairman will move the 
officer’s recommendations in the report, which will be seconded by the Vice 
Chairman.  Motions are debated by the Committee in accordance with the Council’s 
Rules of Procedure.  A binding decision is made only when the Committee has 
formally considered and voted in favour of a motion in relation to the application and, 
pursuant to that resolution, the decision notice has subsequently been issued by the 
Council. 
 
Conditions and Reasons for Refusal 
 
Suggested reasons for refusal and any conditions are set out in full in the officer’s 
recommendation. 
 
Officers or the Committee may add further reasons for refusal or conditions during 
the Committee meeting and Members may choose to refuse an application 
recommended for permission by the Officers or to permit an application 
recommended for refusal.  In all cases, clear reasons will be given, by whoever is 
promoting the new condition or reason for refusal, to explain why the change is being 
made. 
 
Decisions subject to Completion of a Planning Obligation 
 
For some applications, a resolution is passed to grant planning permission subject to 
the completion of an appropriate planning obligation (often referred to as a Section 
106 agreement).  The obligation can restrict development or the use of the land, 
require operations or activities to be carried out, require the land to be used in a 
specified way or require payments to be made to the authority. 
 
New developments will usually be required to contribute towards the infrastructure 
required to serve a site and to cater for additional demand created by any new 
development and its future occupants.  Typically, such requirements include 
contributions to community facilities, village halls, parks and play areas, playing 
fields and improvements to roads, footpaths, cycleways and public transport. 
 
Upon completion of the obligation, the Head of Planning and Building is delegated to 
grant permission subject to the listed conditions.  However, it should be noted that 
the obligation usually has to be completed sufficiently in advance of the planning 
application determination date to allow the application to be issued.  If this does not 
happen, the application may be refused for not resolving the issues required within 
the timescale set to deal with the application. 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 12



 

Deferred Applications 
 
Applications may not be decided at the meeting for a number of reasons as follows: 
 
* The applicant may choose to withdraw the application.  No further action 

would be taken on that proposal and the file is closed. 
 
* Officers may recommend deferral because the information requested or 

amended plans have not been approved or there is insufficient time for 
consultation on amendments. 

 
* The Committee may resolve to seek additional information or amendments. 
 
* The Committee may resolve to visit the site to assess the effect of the 

proposal on matters that are not clear from the plans or from the report.  
These site visits are not public meetings. 

 
Visual Display of Plans and Photographs 
 
Plans are included in the officers’ reports in order to identify the site and its 
surroundings.  The location plan will normally be the most up-to-date available from 
Ordnance Survey and to scale.  The other plans are not a complete copy of the 
application plans and may not be to scale, particularly when they have been reduced 
from large size paper plans.  If further information is needed or these plans are 
unclear please refer to the submitted application on the Council’s website.  Plans 
displayed at the meeting to assist the Members may include material additional to 
the written reports. 
 
Photographs are used to illustrate particular points on most of the items and the 
officers usually take these.  Photographs submitted in advance by applicants or 
objectors may be used at the discretion of the officers. 
 
Human Rights 
 
The European Convention on Human Rights” (“ECHR”) was brought into English 
Law, via the Human Rights Act 1998 (“HRA”), as from October 2000. 
 
The HRA introduces an obligation on the Council to act consistently with the ECHR. 
 
There are 2 Convention Rights likely to be most relevant to Planning Decisions: 
 
* Article 1 of the 1st Protocol - The Right to the Enjoyment of Property. 
 
* Article 8 - Right for Respect for Home, Privacy and Family Life. 
 
It is important to note that these types of right are not unlimited - although in 
accordance with the EU concept of “proportionality”, any interference with these 
rights must be sanctioned by Law (e.g. by the Town & Country Planning Acts) and 
must go no further than necessary. 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 13



 

Essentially, private interests must be weighed against the wider public interest and 
against competing private interests.  Such a balancing exercise is already implicit in 
the decision making processes of the Committee.  However, Members must 
specifically bear Human Rights issues in mind when reaching decisions on all 
planning applications and enforcement action. 
 
The  Natural Environment and Rural Communities (NERC) Act 2006 and 
Environment Act 2021 
 
The Council has a duty under the Environment Act 2021, from the 1st January 2023, 
to ensure consideration is given to what can be done to conserve and enhance 
biodiversity through the exercise of its functions, agree policies and specific 
objectives based on those considerations and to act to deliver these policies and 
achieve objectives. 
 
Previously the Council had a duty under the Natural Environment and Rural 
Communities Act 2006 as follows: "every public authority must, in exercising its 
functions, have regard, so far as is consistent with the proper exercise of those 
functions, to the purpose of conserving biodiversity". 
 
It is considered that this duty has been properly addressed within the process 
leading up to the formulation of the policies in the Revised Local Plan.  Further 
regard is had in relation to specific planning applications through completion of the 
biodiversity checklists for validation, scoping and/or submission of Environmental 
Statements and any statutory consultations with relevant conservation bodies on 
biodiversity aspects of the proposals.  Provided any recommendations arising from 
these processes are secured either by condition or, where appropriate, legal 
Obligation as part of any grant of planning permission (or included in reasons for 
refusal of any planning application) then the duty to ensure that biodiversity interest 
has been conserved and enhanced, as far as practically possible, will be considered 
to have been met. 
 
Other Legislation 

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that 
determination of applications be made in accordance with the Development Plan 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  The Development Plan for the 
Borough comprises the Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016), and ‘made’ 
Neighbourhood Plans.  Material considerations are defined by Case Law and 
includes, amongst other things, draft Development Plan Documents (DPD), 
Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD) and other relevant guidance including 
Development Briefs, Government advice, amenity considerations, crime and 
community safety, traffic generation and safety. 

In July 2021 the Government published a revised National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF). The revised NPPF replaced and superseded the previous NPPF 
published in 2018.  The revised NPPF is a material consideration in planning 
decisions.   

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 14



 

So that sustainable development is pursued in a positive way, at the heart of the 
revised NPPF is a presumption in favour of sustainable development.  Decisions 
should apply a presumption in favour of sustainable development.  This does not 
change the statutory status of the development plan as a starting point for decision 
making.  Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be 
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise.  Where a planning application conflicts with an up to date 
development plan, permission should not usually be granted.  Local planning 
authorities may take decisions which depart from an up to date development plan, 
but only if material considerations in a particular case indicate that the plan should 
not be followed.   

For decision-taking, applying the presumption in favour of sustainable development 
means: 
 

• Approving development proposals that accord with an up to date development 
plan without delay; or 

• Where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which 
are most important for determining the application are out of date, granting 
permission unless: 
o The application of policies in the revised NPPF that protect areas or assets 

of particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the 
development proposed; or  

o Any adverse impact of doing so would significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the revised 
NPPF when taken as a whole.   

Existing Local Plan policies should not be considered out of date because they were 
adopted prior to the publication of the revised NPPF.  Due weight should be given to 
them, according to their degree of consistency with the revised NPPF (the closer the 
policies in the Local Plan to the policies in the revised NPPF, the greater the weight 
that may be given).   

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 15



                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
 
 
 APPLICATION NO. 22/03346/FULLS 
 APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION - SOUTH 
 REGISTERED 03.01.2023 
 APPLICANT Boom Developments Limited 
 SITE Land South West of Misslebrook Copse, Misslebrook 

Lane, CHILWORTH /VALLEY PARK 
 PROPOSAL Battery electrical storage system (BESS), with 

substation, transformer stations, site accesses, 
internal access tracks, security measures, access 
gates, other ancillary infrastructure and landscaping 
and biodiversity enhancements 

 AMENDMENTS Amended/Additional Plans received 05.07.23, 
30.06.23, 02.05.23, 13.04.23, 

 CASE OFFICER Mr Paul Goodman 
 

 Background paper (Local Government Act 1972 Section 100D) 
 Click here to view application 

 
 
1.0 INTRODUCTION 
1.1 The application is presented to Southern Area Planning Committee because it is 

contrary to the provisions of an approved development plan or other statements 
of approved planning policy, adverse third party representations have been 
received and the recommendation is for approval. 

 
2.0 SITE LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION 
2.1 The application site is situated to the north/eastern side of the A27. The 

application is located to the south of North Baddesley but within the Chilworth, 
Nursling and Rownhams Ward. 
 

2.2 Wrens Copse to the north is subject to a woodland TPO and included areas of 
SINC. In addition Misslebrook Copse, which is not subject to a preservation 
order, is situation to the north east. 

 
3.0 PROPOSAL 
3.1 The application proposes the installation of a battery electrical storage system 

(BESS), with substation, transformer stations, site accesses, internal access 
tracks, security measures, access gates, other ancillary infrastructure and 
landscaping and biodiversity enhancements. 
 

3.2 The proposal is for a backup facility (in the form of a Battery Electrical Storage 
System (BESS) to store 114KWh of renewable electricity, which would be 
discharged over a maximum 2-3 hour period.  This would be used to balance 
the ‘peaks and troughs’ in renewable energy production and is intended to be 
for installed for a 40 year, after which the site would be restored to its current 
condition. 

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 16

ITEM 7

https://view-applications.testvalley.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RNLYXOQCML400


4.0 HISTORY 
4.1 22/02954/SCRS - Screening opinion under the Environment Impact 

Assessment Regulations 2017: for development of a Battery Energy Storage 
System (BESS). EIA Not Required 08.12.2022. 
 

4.2 TVS.07134/4 - Use of land for one day only to set up and operate a park and 
ride facility from the site to the Highfield Campus between 0800 and 1700 hours 
on 21 September 2005. Permission 15.08.2005. 
 

4.3 TVS.07134/3 - Formation of hard standing areas at the access gates onto 
Botley Road (A27) and Misselbrook Lane. Permission 15.12.2000. 
 

4.4 TVS.07134/2 - Retrospective application for the construction of access track. 
Permission 28.04.2000. 
 

4.5 TVS.07134/1 - Temporary use of land for a mediaeval pageant on 3 
consecutive days in August or September 1994. 01.06.1994. Permission 
01.06.1994. 
 

4.6 TVS.07134 - Use of land for grass track racing. Refused 18.05.1993. 
 
5.0 CONSULTATIONS 
5.1 Planning Policy & Transport (Policy) – Comment; 

• No planning objection in principle, subject to it being considered that the 
need for the development (for energy balancing and supply security) and 
its locational requirements (site selection criteria) justify a departure from 
Policy COM2 (unless falls within criterion a) and Policy E3 (if also 
relevant) being sufficiently demonstrated for the proposed development 
use on this site. 

 
5.2 Planning & Building (Landscape) – Comment; 

• The new proposals have substantially increased the buffer around the 
proposed facility to provide a robust buffer both in terms of depth of 
planting as well as increasing the size/height of the species proposed. 

• Whilst this increased mitigation does not overcome a development within 
the Gap, should the Case Officer deem the application necessary, the 
proposed buffer would in time successfully mitigate the proposals and 
integrate within the wider landscape. 

 
5.3 Planning & Building (Trees) – Comment; 

• The landscape plan, planting specification and maintenance schedule 
prepared by Crestwood Environmental limited if implemented should 
ensure the successful establishment of woodland to screen the proposed 
development. 
 

5.4 Housing & Environmental Health (Environmental Protection) – No 
objection, subject to conditions. 
 

5.5 HCC Lead Local Flood Authority – No objection 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 17



5.6 HCC Ecology – No objection, subject to conditions 
 

5.7 HCC Highways – No objection, subject to conditions 
 

5.8 Environment Agency – No objection 
 

5.9 Hampshire & IOW Fire and Rescue Service (HIWFRS) – Comment; 
• Access to the proposed site should be in accordance with Hampshire Act 

1983 Sect, 12 (Access to buildings within the site will be dealt with as 
part of the building regulations application at a later stage). 

• The following recommendations are advisory only and do not form part of 
any current legal requirement of this Authority. 

• The advice should be given due consideration by both the applicant and 
planning authority in order to ensure a fire involving BESS can be safely 
contained. 

• Water provisions should be discussed in detail with HIWFRS to ensure 
suitable water is available for firefighting purposes. 

• In order to restrict fire spread and limit the potential environmental 
damage, it is essential that suitable space be maintained around each 
container forming part of the BESS. 

• HIWFRS would strongly recommend that consideration is given to 
installation of an Automatic Water Fire Suppression Systems (AWFSS). 

• Given the remote location of the site it is strongly recommended that 
remote detection and monitoring arrangements be put in place. 

 
6.0 REPRESENTATIONS Expired 26.07.2023 
6.1 Eastleigh Borough Council – No objection 

 
6.2 Chilworth PC – Objection; 

• Inadequate consideration of alternative sites. 
• No justification for development in the Local Gap. 
• Flood risk 
• Pollution risk from hazardous storage 
• Adverse impact on heritage of Chilworth Old Village 
• Impact on highways safety 
• Excessive site construction hours proposed 
• Inadequate ecological information and biodiversity information. 
• Public safety risk as a result of fire. 
• Impact on landscape character of development and access track. 
• Proximity to gas pipes on Castle Lane 
• Development is not justified by national policy 
• National security risks. 

 
6.3 North Baddesley PC – Objection; 

• Fire risk, lack of information on monitoring and mitigation procedures. 
• Disruption to Castle Lane and Templars Way by installation of Cable. 

 
6.4 Valley Park PC- No comment 

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 18



6.5 22 representations of Objection received 
 

6.6 Principle of Development 
• Not necessary 
• Contrary to NPPF and TVBRLP 
• Inadequate consideration of alternative locations 
• Development will not serve the local area. 
• Should be located closer to Chandlers Ford. 
• Should be located on a brownfield industrial site. There are disused 

sites on the Chandlers Ford Industrial Estate. 
 

6.7 Neighbouring Amenity 
• Noise impacts 
• Light pollution 

 
6.8 Highways 

• Highways safety 
• Traffic disruption from construction and cable works 
• Safety impact on public footpaths and bridleways. 

 
6.9 Public Safety 

• Fire risk from lithium batteries 
• Air pollution resulting from fire 
• No information on monitoring and mitigation measures. 
• Electromagnetic Fields health impact 
• Safety impact on nearby schools and residences. 
• Applicants should engage with local schools on safety procedures. 

 
6.10 Other Matters 

• Reinstatement of land following end of life. 
• No clarity on long term ownership 
• Impact on local economy 
• Adequate funding in place to complete construction. 
• A public consultation meeting should have been held with local 

stakeholders. 
• Impact on property values. 

 
6.11 Landscape, Arboriculture & Ecology 

• Impact on woodlands 
• Loss of habitat and biodiversity 
• Impact on landscape character 
• Impact on the Local Gap 

 
6.12 1 representation of Support received 

• Battery storage systems are a core element of sustainable national 
energy generation and distribution. 

• Education opportunities associated with development. 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 19



7.0 POLICY 
7.1 Government Guidance 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) 
 

7.2 Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016)(RLP) 
SD1 – Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
COM2 – Settlement hierarchy 
E1 – High quality development in the Borough 
E2 – Protect, conserve and enhance the landscape character of the Borough 
E3 – Local Gaps 
E5 – Biodiversity 
E7 – Water management 
E8 – Pollution 
E9 – Heritage 
LHW4 – Amenity 
T1 – Managing movement 
T2 – Parking standards 

 
8.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 

The main planning considerations are the principle of development, impact on 
the character of the area, highways, trees, protected species, ecology and 
amenity. 
 

8.1 Principle of Development 
Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires 
that the determination of planning applications must be made in accordance 
with the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
In consequence, the starting point is the development plan. The development 
plan comprises the TVLP 
 

8.2 The site lies outside the defined settlement boundary of Nursling and is 
therefore within the ‘countryside’. For development outside settlement 
boundaries (unless covered by other Local Plan policies) (criterion a), it must 
be essential to be located in the countryside (criterion b), or there are material 
considerations to justify permission contrary to this Policy. 
 

8.3 In determining an appeal for a similar application (Mill Lane, Nursling) previous 
application the Inspector confirmed that whilst there is no specific policy 
relating to power generation infrastructure, Policy COM2 is a strategic policy 
relating to all forms of development. 
 

8.4 There are no specific policies relating to the proposed development. As a 
result in order to comply with Policy COM2 it would need to be essential for the 
proposed development to be located in the countryside. 
 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 20



8.5 National Policy 
The need for energy storage facilities is set out in publications by central 
Government including the ‘Transitioning to a Net Zero Energy System, Smart 
Systems and Flexibility Plan 2021 (July 2021) and Energy white paper: 
Powering our net zero future (2020). 
 

8.6 It is considered that there is a need, at least Nationally for such facilities in 
order to support the provision of renewable energy and to assist in balancing 
supply/demand issues related to centralised energy generation. The proposals 
would also assist in providing energy security. 
 

8.7 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
Paragraph 158 of the NPPF states that when determining planning 
applications for renewable and low carbon development, local planning 
authorities should: 
 

a) not require applicants to demonstrate the overall need for renewable or 
low carbon energy, and recognise that even small-scale projects 
provide a valuable contribution to cutting greenhouse gas emissions; 
and 

b)   approve the application if its impacts are (or can be made) acceptable. 
Once suitable areas for renewable and low carbon energy have been 
identified in plans, local planning authorities should expect subsequent 
applications for commercial scale projects outside these areas to 
demonstrate that the proposed location meets the criteria used in 
identifying suitable areas. 

 
8.8 The proposed battery storage site is considered to meet the NPPF's definition 

of low carbon technology as it would help reduce emissions compared to 
conventional use of fossil fuels. The development would therefore help to meet 
the objective of identifying suitable areas for renewable and low carbon energy 
sources, and supporting infrastructure. 
 

8.9 Flexible Electricity Generation 
In order to meet the government’s targets under the Climate Change Act 2008 
of reducing carbon emissions by 80% below 1990 levels by 2050 the energy 
balance is becoming increasingly reliant on renewable energy sources (such 
as wind and solar). With a heavy reliance on climatic conditions, these sources 
can be more unpredictable. Coupled with the phasing out of coal power 
stations, there is a growing need for new power plants that can respond quickly 
to local demands and provide a secure supply of energy. Battery storage 
facilities are an efficient and responsive technology that is able to store energy 
oversupply that can be delivered to the network at times of peak demand and 
at very short notice. 
 

8.10 The proposed development is therefore required to complement the mix of 
electricity generation and to meet the Government’s objective of maintaining a 
reliable electricity supply. Once operational, the facility would have the ability to 
respond rapidly to the short term variations related to local demand and 
fluctuations in the output from renewable energy sources. 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 21



8.11 Site Selection 
The applicants have identified that a suitable site must be located in an area 
where there is adequate capacity on the local electricity network to 
accommodate the scheme and be within viable proximity to a substation with 
available demand capacity. 
 

8.12 Beyond the technical considerations of the electricity network and the other 
materials considerations below there is the issue of what sites are available in 
the locality. Many of the representations received have expressed that 
development should be located on a brownfield site closer to the distribution 
site. 
 

8.13 The applicants have included a review of prospective brownfield sites utilising 
the Brownfield Land register (A register of sites that local authorities consider 
to be appropriate for residential development having regard to the criteria set 
out in regulation 4 of the Town and Country Planning (Brownfield Land 
Register) Regulations 2017.). The site search area was 5km form the 
distribution site. The supporting information states that, due to the cost 
associated with the cable connection, sites further than 5km would be 
unviable. The resultant search has not revealed any suitable sites on the 
Brownfield Registers. 
 

8.14 One site was identified in the Southampton Authority, and it appears a further 
site is located to the north within Eastleigh’s boundary. However both benefit 
from detailed planning permission for residential development making them 
likely financially unviable as well as being located in close proximity to 
residential properties. 
 

8.15 Conclusion on the Principle Of Development 
The use of the site is considered to be contrary to criterion b) of Policy COM2 
in that it is not considered inherently essential that a battery storage site be 
located in the countryside. However there is a clear national need for low 
carbon energy supply development and the locational requirements associated 
with the use preclude utilization of a brownfield site. In this instance the 
proposed development is considered to justify a departure from Policy COM2. 
 

8.16 Character and Appearance 
The site is located within the Chilworth/North Baddesley Local Gap. The land 
immediately to the north (Wrens Copse) is designated as an Ancient 
Woodland, Site of Importance for Nature Conservation (SINC) and has a 
blanket Tree Preservation Order (TPO). 
 

8.17 There are no public rights of way in close proximity to the site, the closest 
footpath is North Baddesley (9) which is over 450m to the northwest of the site. 
Due to the distance and mature vegetation of Misslebrook Copse there are no 
views from the right of way. The main public views of the site are when 
travelling along the A27 (Botley Road) from Chilworth to North Baddesley, 
whilst there is mainly bramble vegetation with some trees, there are a number 
of open views into the site. 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 22



8.18 Landscape Character 
The Landscape Officer has commented that the submitted Landscape and 
Visual Impact Appraisal is comprehensive and accurate. The LVIA 
acknowledges that there would be a Moderate/Major level of adverse effect on 
the landscape character at a site level that is borderline Significant, however 
on the wider landscape character of the area, the Proposed Development is 
assessed as having a Negligible-Minor level of adverse effect. 
 

8.19 The Landscape Officer raised concern with regard to the original submission 
considering that the initially proposed landscape planting did little to mitigate 
the proposals or integrate the site within the wider landscape. Following on 
from the initial comments the proposed landscape scheme has been 
extensively revised and expanded in accordance with the Landscape Officers 
advice. The revised proposals have substantially increased the planting buffers 
around the site and now provide a robust buffer both in terms of depth of 
planting as well as increasing the size/height of the species proposed. Whilst 
the Landscape Officer retains an in principle concern regarding development in 
the Gap they have confirmed that the proposed buffer would in time 
successfully mitigate the proposals and integrate within the wider landscape. 
 

8.20 Arboriculture 
As is described above the application site is situated adjacent protected 
woodland. However there are no protected trees proposed to be felled as part 
of the development and the scheme now proposes extensive areas of new tree 
planting. The Arboricultural Officer raised some initial concern that the 
submitted information did not include surveys of the cable route to the 
distribution site. It has since been clarified that the cable would be laid in the 
highway and not therefore impact trees adjacent the carriageway. Following 
the submission of the additional planting details the Arboricultural Officer has 
also confirmed that proposed new planting is suitable. As a result the 
application is considered to have no detrimental impact on tree and complies 
with Policy E2. 
 

8.21 Local Gap 
The site is located within the Chilworth/North Baddesley Local Gap. Policy E3 
states that development within Local Gaps will be permitted provided that: 
 
a) it would not diminish the physical separation and/or visual separation; and 
b) it would not individually or cumulatively with other existing or proposed 
development compromise the integrity of the gap. 
 

8.22 The supporting text to Policy E3 clarifies that “The purpose of the policy is not 
to prevent all development within a local gap. In some circumstances where 
the proposal is of a rural character, such as agricultural buildings, and has a 
minimal impact on the purpose of the gap, these may be permitted.” 
 
 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 23



8.23 The proposed use is clearly not agricultural in appearance but it does not 
require the erection of any tall structures or buildings. The extent of the 
proposed planting scheme will significantly reduce its prominence and, once 
mature, will effectively visually integrate the site into the adjacent woodland. 
The end result is not considered to diminish the physical separation and/or 
visual separation of the settlements and complies with Policy E3. 
 

8.24 Ecology & Protected Species 
This application is supported by an Ecological Impact Assessment (Western 
Ecology, January 2023) and a Biodiversity Net Gain Plan (Western Ecology, 
December 2022). Following initial comments from the Ecology Officer and 
updated Ecological Impact Assessment (Western Ecology Ltd, March 2023) 
and the Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG) metric spreadsheet provided. 
 

8.25 Representations have raised concern that the development would result in a 
loss of biodiversity. However the sites historic use for agricultural production 
limits it ecological interest with the most significant habitats contained within 
the boundary planting and adjacent woodland which are retained and 
enhanced by the proposals. The BNG metric submitted in support of the 
application demonstrates a 42.93% increase in Habitat Units and a 100% 
increase in Hedgerow Units. In additional those figures were calculated prior to 
the latest landscaping proposals which have further increased the new planting 
on site. 
 

8.26 The Ecology Officer has raised no objection subject to the imposition of 
conditions to require compliance with the protections and enhancements in the 
submitted documents. In addition further conditions are proposed to restrict the 
use of external lighting to emergencies and to require the submission of a 
Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) to ensure no impact on 
the adjacent Sites of Importance for Nature Conservation (SINCs)/Ancient 
Woodlands. 
 

8.27 Policy E5 states that “Development in the Borough that will conserve, and 
where possible restore and/or enhance, biodiversity will be permitted.”  The 
amended scheme and enhancements would result in a clear net gain in 
biodiversity at the site. The proposals would result in an enhancement of 
habitats and biodiversity from the current condition of the site and therefore 
comply with Policy E5. 
 

8.28 Highways 
In summary HCC have confirmed no objection to the application subject to 
conditions requiring the submission of a final Travel Plan and requiring the 
provision and retention of suitable visibility splays. Representations have 
raised concern regarding the traffic impacts of laying the new cable connecting 
in the highway. Whilst this would result in delays they would be temporary and 
subject to further consents from HCC as the Highways Authority. 
 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 24



8.29 Once running the facility will generate minimal traffic movements and utilises 
an existing access to the site. As a result the development is considered to 
have no significant adverse impact on highways or pedestrian safety and 
complies with the relevant policies of the TVBLP. 
 

8.30 Residential Amenity 
The application site benefits from a relatively isolated location in relation to 
neighbouring residential properties which are situated to the northwest 
(approximately 320m) and North (approximately 280m) on the other side of the 
highway and woodland respectively. Given the scale of the equipment it is not 
apparent that the layout of the proposed development would result in any 
adverse impact on the amenities of neighbouring properties by virtue of 
overlooking, overshadowing or overbearing. 
 

8.31 Light 
The risk of significant impacts on amenity from a new lighting scheme are 
limited by the areas of woodland that border the site to the east separating it 
from the nearest residential properties. But in any event following concerns 
regarding light pollution on the character of the area and protected species 
control over the external lighting is proposed. 
 

8.32 Fire Risk 
Many of the representations have referenced fire safety and the resultant air 
quality impacts of a fire at the site. The Hampshire & IOW Fire and Rescue 
Service (HIWFRS) have been consulted regarding the proposals and provided 
some detailed guidance on suitable layout and operation of the site. Following 
the receipt of the advice the applicants have submitted a Fire Safety Note that 
confirms that the site has been set out, and will be monitored in accordance 
with the advice. It is noted that issues relating to fire safety are controlled by 
Building Regulations, the Fire and Rescue Services Act 2004 and the 
Hampshire Act 1983 Section 12 (Access for Fire Service). However, in this 
case, it is considered necessary to secure the provisions of the fire safety note 
by condition. 
 

8.33 Noise 
Following on from some initial concerns raised by the Environmental Protection 
Officer the application has been supported by additional technical information.  
The Environmental Protection Officer was mainly concerned about the 
potential for some noise impact at the closest residential property, Charlotte 
Court. As a result, in order to protect against noise creep over time, they have 
recommended a condition limiting the noise output from the site as measured 
at the nearest property and requiring further mitigation if this is exceeded. 
Whilst it is expected that the site will operate below maximum operation time 
for much of the year, prolonged periods of warmer weather in future may see 
this maximum operation reached more frequently. The limit included within the 
proposed condition is primarily aimed at protecting amenity at night for the 
closest residents. 
 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 25



8.34 Electromagnetic Fields 
Representations have raised concern with regard to the impact of 
Electromagnetic Fields (EMF) on public health. The Environmental Protection 
Officer has advised that The site operator will be obliged to comply with the 
Control of Electromagnetic Fields at Work Regulations 2016 to protect those 
who will be working on the site. No off site impacts would be anticipated and 
any further restrictions of EMF would be a matter for Public Health England. 
 

8.35 Surface Water and Drainage 
The Environment Agency designates the site as falling within Flood Zone 1 
which has the lowest probability of fluvial flooding (i.e. 0.1% - a 1:1000 
chance).  There is therefore no objection to the development on fluvial flood 
risk grounds. Any further/improved connection to water services is a matter to 
be addressed through the relevant legislation. The Lead Local Flood Authority 
and Environment Agency have raised no objection to the proposals. A 
condition is applied to require development to be undertaken in accordance 
with the submitted drainage details. Subject to the required condition it is 
considered that surface water can be appropriately managed in accordance 
with policy E7 of the TVBRLP. 
 

8.36 Planning Balance 
It is not essential for the proposal to be located within the Countryside which 
results in conflict with COM 2 of the TVBRLP. Notwithstanding this point there 
is a clear national need for this type of development and clear support from the 
NPPF para 158. The contribution to additional capacity to the existing 
electricity network and meeting national and local climate change aims is a 
significant benefit of the scheme. 
 

8.37 The application is situated within the local gap but visual impact has been 
reduced as far as possible by the extensive additional planting and as a result 
there would be a substantial increase in habitat and resultant biodiversity on 
site. 
 

8.38 In this case the benefits of delivering the low carbon infrastructure, and 
associated biodiversity improvements, are considered to outweigh the conflict 
with Policy COM2 regarding development in a countryside location. 

 
9.0 CONCLUSION 
9.1 The proposals are considered to be a justified departure from Policy COM2. 

Subject to the required conditions, the development would not result in any 
adverse impacts on the character and appearance of the surrounding area, 
trees and landscape character, residential amenity, highways, ecology or flood 
risk. The proposals are therefore considered to comply with the relevant 
policies contained within the Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016. 

 
10.0 RECOMMENDATION 
10.1 PERMISSION subject to: 
 1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun within three 

years from the date of this permission. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 26



Reason:  To comply with the provision of Section 91 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 2. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except 
in complete accordance with the details shown on the submitted 
plans, numbers: 
A001.1 - V3.0 
A001.2 - V3.0 
A001.3 - V3.0 
B005 
B112 
B114 
B140 
B201.1 REV 2.4 
B201 REV 2.4 
B202 
B203 
B204 
B205 
B207 
B208 
B209 
B210 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 

 3. Landscape works, implementation and management shall be 
carried out in accordance with the approved landscape plan 
MH2164-ADW02b - Final Rev B. 
Reason:  To improve the appearance of the site and enhance the 
character of the development in the interest of visual amenity and 
contribute to the character of the local area in accordance with 
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policies LE6(a), E1 
and E2. 

 4. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
Arboricultural Method Statement (Arbtech, 28 April 2023) and Tree 
Protection Plan Ref Arbtech TPP 01. 
Reason:  To ensure the protection of trees during development to 
improve the appearance of the site and enhance the character of 
the development in the interest of visual amenity and contribute to 
the character of the local area in accordance with Test Valley 
Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policies E1 and E2. 

 5. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the measures 
detailed in Section 7. 'Mitigation' of the submitted Ecological 
Impact Assessment by Western Ecology Ltd. (March 2023). 
Reason: to conserve and enhance biodiversity, including with 
respect to legally protected species and Home Covert SINC, in 
accordance with Policies ENV01, ENV04 and ENV05 of the Test 
Valley local plan. 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 27



 6. No development shall take place until a Construction Environment 
Management Plan (CEMP) to ensure no impact on the two adjacent 
SINCs/Ancient Woodlands has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be in 
accordance with the approved details. 
Reason: to avoid impacts to the nearby SINC's and Ancient 
Woodland, in accordance with Policy E5 of the Test Valley local 
plan. 

 7. Development shall be undertaken in accordance with the 
measures set out in the Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage 
Strategy Iss. No. 4 (Delta-Simons, 6/2/23). 
Reason: To ensure sure proper management of surface water in 
accordance with policy E7 of the Test Valley Borough Revised 
Local Plan 2016. 

 8. No development shall take place, (including any works of 
demolition), until a final Construction Traffic Management Plan 
has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the LPA. The 
approved plan shall include scaled drawings illustrating the 
provision for - 
1)  The parking of site operatives and visitors' vehicles. 
2)  Loading and unloading of plant and materials. 
3)  Management of construction traffic and access routes. 
4)  Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the   
     development. 
5)  Vehicle Tracking demonstrating that the largest vehicles 

associated with the construction process can access, egress 
and turn within the confines of the site. 

Development shall be in accordance with the approved details 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Test 
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan Policy T1. 

 9. Prior to commencement on site a scheme shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority detailing 
the method of cleaning wheels and chassis of all HGV's, plant and 
delivery vehicles leaving the site and the means of keeping the 
site access road and adjacent public highway clear of mud and 
debris during site demolition, excavation, preparation and 
construction. The scheme shall be implemented in accordance 
with the approved details and shall be installed and operational 
before any development commences and retained in working 
order throughout the duration of the development. No vehicles 
shall leave the site in a condition whereby mud, clay or other 
deleterious materials shall be deposited on the public highway. 
Development shall be in accordance with the approved details. 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Test 
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan Policy T1. 
 
 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 28



 10. The development shall not be brought into use until vehicular 
visibility splays as detailed on the approved plan(s) have been 
provided. There shall be no obstruction to visibility exceeding 
0.6m in height above the adjacent carriageway within the highway 
visibility splays. The vehicular visibility splays shall thereafter be 
retained for the lifetime of the development. 
Reason: To provide and maintain adequate visibility in the 
interests of highway safety in accordance with Policy T1 of the 
Test Valley Borough Revised Local plan. 

 11. No development shall commence until a scheme for the import 
and export of electricity to and from the site, including routes of 
pipes and cables has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The connection infrastructure 
shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details prior 
to the development being first brought into use. 
Reason:  To ensure the protection of trees during development to 
improve in the interest of visual amenity in accordance with Test 
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy E2. 

 12. Development shall be undertaken in accordance with the Battery 
Energy Storage System (BESS) - Fire Safety Note (April 2023). 
Reason: In the interests of local amenities and of neighbouring 
properties in accordance with policy E8 of the Test Valley 
Borough Revised Local Plan 2016. 

 13. Notwithstanding the information submitted, details of any external 
lighting shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority prior to first installing any such lighting. The 
submitted details shall include a detailed management plan of 
when external lighting will be used on site. A suitable scheme 
shall strictly limit the use of external lighting to when needed to 
facilitate on-site emergency works. The development shall be 
carried out, and external lighting operated, in accordance with the 
approved details. 
Reason:  In the interests of protected species in accordance with 
Policy E5 of the Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016. 

 14. The combined BS4142: 2014 ‘rating level’ of noise from inverters 
and ancillary noise-producing plant associated with the permitted 
battery energy storage site development shall not, at any time of 
operation, exceed 30 dB(A) as determined at the nearest existing 
residential property [Charlotte Court, Castle Lane].  The 
measurements and assessment shall be made according to 
BS4142: 2014. If requested by the Local Planning Authority 
(following receipt of a noise complaint) within 24 months of 
commencement of use, the operator shall (at the operator’s own 
expense) appoint a competent acoustician to undertake a noise 
verification exercise under typically worst case conditions to 
monitor site noise and determine whether the above limit is being 
complied with. A written report of the acoustician’s findings, 
together with noise mitigation proposals if required, shall be 
provided to the Local Planning Authority within three months of 
any such request. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 29



Reason: In the interest of amenities in accordance with Policies E8 
and LHW4 of the Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016. 

 Notes to applicant: 
 1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out and 

completed strictly in accordance with the submitted plans, 
specifications and written particulars for which permission is 
hereby granted or which are subsequently submitted to, and 
approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority and in 
compliance with any conditions imposed by the Local Planning 
Authority. 

 2. In reaching this decision Test Valley Borough Council (TVBC) has 
had regard to the National Planning Policy Framework and takes a 
positive and proactive approach to development proposals 
focused on solutions. TVBC work with applicants and their agents 
in a positive and proactive manner offering a pre-application 
advice service and updating applicants/agents of issues that may 
arise in dealing with the application and where possible 
suggesting solutions. 

 3. The applicant’s attention is drawn to the advice contained in the 
Hampshire & Isle of Wight Fire & Rescue letter of 15th February 
2023 and the Environment Agency letter of 21 April 2023. 
Specifically to the requirements under the Hampshire Act 1983 
Section 12 - Access for Fire Service and Fire and Rescue Services 
Act 2004. Water provisions should be discussed in detail with 
HIWFRS to ensure suitable water is available for firefighting 
purposes. Please contact the Water Management Team, 
Hampshire & IOW Fire and Rescue Headquarters, Leigh Road, 
Eastleigh, SO50 9SJ (hydrants@hantsfire.gov.uk) to discuss the 
proposals. 

   
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 30



   
   

   
   

   
   

 22
/03

346
/FU

LLS

-

© 
Cr

ow
n c

op
yri

gh
t a

nd
 da

tab
as

e r
igh

ts 
20

23
OS

 10
00

24
29

5. 
Yo

u a
re 

pe
rm

itte
d t

o u
se

 th
is

da
ta 

so
lel

y t
o e

na
ble

 yo
u t

o r
es

po
nd

 to
, o

r 
int

era
ct 

wi
th,

 th
e o

rga
nis

ati
on

 th
at 

pro
vid

ed
yo

u w
ith

 th
e d

ata
. Y

ou
 ar

e n
ot 

pe
rm

itte
d t

o
co

py
, s

ub
-lic

en
ce

, d
ist

rib
ute

 or
 se

ll a
ny

 of
 th

is
da

ta 
to 

thi
rd 

pa
rtie

s i
n a

ny
 fo

rm
.

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 31



44
.0

7

43
.9

9

43
.9

1

49
.9

7
50

.1
5

49
.6

6

49
.1

8

48
.7

5

47
.4

5

48
.0

2

48
.4

2

48
.8

3

49
.1

4

49
.4

3

49
.7

9

50
.1

2

50
.5

0

50
.2

6

49
.9

1

49
.6

3

49
.3

7

49
.1

7

48
.9

2

48
.4

4

47
.9

6

47
.3

0

46
.8

0

45
.8

9

46
.2

0

46
.5

1

46
.9

6

47
.5

0

48
.0

1

48
.4

8

48
.8

4

49
.1

1

49
.3

6

49
.6

6

49
.8

5

50
.1

6

50
.5

1

50
.8

5

50
.4

5

50
.1

3

49
.8

9

49
.7

6

49
.5

9

49
.3

2

49
.0

5

48
.7

7

48
.3

4

47
.8

2

47
.2

8

46
.7

7

46
.3

9

46
.0

5

45
.7

5

45
.4

9

45
.2

2

44
.4

5

44
.7

2

44
.9

5

45
.3

1

45
.5

6

45
.8

2

46
.2

0

46
.5

3

47
.0

1

47
.5

2

47
.9

8

48
.4

4

48
.8

2

49
.0

6

49
.3

2

49
.5

5

49
.7

2

49
.9

4

50
.2

1

50
.5

2

50
.9

4

50
.8

4

50
.5

0

50
.2

2

49
.9

8

49
.7

4

49
.4

6

49
.2

4

48
.9

7

48
.6

6

48
.2

2

47
.8

4

47
.4

6

47
.0

5

46
.6

1

46
.3

2

45
.9

6

45
.6

8

45
.4

1

45
.1

0

44
.8

0

44
.5

5

44
.3

0

44
.1

1

43
.4

0

43
.6

3

43
.9

1

44
.1

6

44
.4

2

44
.6

7

44
.8

8

45
.0

5

45
.3

1

45
.6

2

45
.8

9

46
.2

3

46
.5

9

47
.0

5

47
.4

7

47
.9

0

48
.2

4

48
.6

7

49
.0

5

49
.3

6

49
.5

1

49
.6

7

49
.9

2

50
.1

6

50
.4

7

50
.6

4

50
.9

0

50
.6

3

50
.4

0

50
.2

8

50
.0

4

49
.8

8

49
.7

4

49
.6

3

49
.3

9

49
.0

3

48
.7

0

48
.3

0

47
.9

5

47
.5

0

47
.0

7

46
.6

6

46
.3

7

46
.0

6

45
.7

5

45
.4

8

45
.2

4

45
.0

7

44
.8

2

44
.5

6

44
.4

0

44
.1

4

43
.8

2

43
.6

1

43
.4

8

43
.7

3

43
.7

7

44
.0

2

44
.3

6

44
.6

0

44
.8

3

45
.0

2

45
.2

3

45
.4

7

45
.6

8

45
.9

8

46
.3

0

46
.6

8

47
.0

9

47
.5

5

48
.0

2

48
.4

7

48
.8

0

49
.1

4

49
.4

6

49
.7

3

49
.8

4

49
.8

8

50
.0

0

50
.0

9

50
.2

3

50
.1

1

49
.9

5

49
.8

8

49
.7

7

49
.7

2

49
.6

2

49
.4

8

49
.3

0

48
.9

9

48
.2

6

47
.4

6

47
.0

7

46
.7

3

46
.4

0

46
.0

2

45
.7

0

45
.4

4

45
.1

9

45
.0

1

44
.8

1

44
.5

1

44
.2

8

43
.9

3

43
.6

6

43
.4

7

43
.2

7

43
.0

7

43
.1

3

43
.3

3

43
.6

0

43
.8

7

44
.1

8

44
.4

8

44
.8

3

45
.0

9

45
.3

9

45
.7

0

45
.9

6

46
.2

2

46
.5

0

46
.7

5

47
.0

8

47
.5

1

47
.9

1

48
.5

6

48
.9

1

49
.2

7

49
.3

8

49
.5

0

49
.6

0

49
.7

0

49
.8

4

49
.7

9

49
.6

1

49
.5

2

49
.3

3

49
.1

6

49
.0

8

49
.0

0

48
.6

8

48
.3

7

47
.7

7

47
.3

9

47
.0

7

46
.7

2

46
.4

3

46
.1

5

45
.9

6

45
.7

8

45
.4

8

45
.2

4

44
.9

3

44
.5

5

44
.2

2

43
.9

4

43
.6

3

43
.3

9

43
.1

6

43
.4

6

43
.6

9

44
.0

4

44
.3

5

44
.7

4

45
.0

5

45
.2

5

45
.5

3

45
.8

1

46
.0

0

46
.2

4

46
.5

0

46
.8

2

47
.5

3

47
.8

0

48
.0

6

48
.3

5

48
.8

2

48
.8

9

48
.9

9

49
.0

8

49
.2

4

48
.9

3

48
.7

5

48
.7

1

48
.5

2

48
.1

8

47
.8

9

47
.4

1

47
.0

9

46
.7

6

46
.3

8

46
.1

1

45
.9

2

45
.7

6

45
.5

9

45
.3

1

45
.0

4

44
.8

0

44
.5

2

44
.2

7

44
.0

5

43
.8

1

43
.5

1
43

.5
7

43
.7

6

44
.0

0

44
.4

1

44
.6

2

44
.8

7

45
.1

0

45
.3

5

45
.4

6

45
.6

2

45
.8

3

46
.0

9

46
.3

9

46
.7

6

47
.0

8

47
.3

9

47
.6

2

48
.0

4

48
.2

2

48
.3

2

48
.5

3

48
.3

2

48
.0

9

47
.4

3

47
.3

1

47
.1

2

46
.8

7

46
.5

8

46
.1

6

45
.8

8

45
.6

2

45
.2

9

45
.0

3

44
.8

1

44
.6

3

44
.4

6

43
.5

2

44
.4

4

44
.7

3

45
.0

1

45
.2

9

45
.5

4

45
.7

4

45
.9

7

46
.2

3

46
.4

5

46
.6

8

46
.9

1

47
.0

8

47
.2

9

47
.5

8

47
.9

1

47
.5

1

47
.0

9

46
.9

2

46
.6

6

46
.4

6

46
.2

3

45
.9

6

45
.6

6

45
.3

6

45
.1

2

44
.9

0

44
.6

9

44
.4

4

44
.1

7

44
.0

3

44
.3

2

44
.5

4

44
.7

7

44
.9

8

45
.2

0

45
.4

7

45
.6

2

45
.7

9

46
.0

3

46
.2

3

46
.5

6

46
.1

0

45
.8

9

45
.7

7

45
.5

9

45
.3

7

45
.0

6

44
.8

0

44
.5

9

44
.3

4

44
.1

2

44
.0

3
43

.9
4

44
.0

4

44
.2

5

44
.4

6

44
.6

7

44
.9

3

45
.0

8

45
.1

3

45
.4

0

44
.9

3

44
.7

5

44
.6

9

44
.5

2

44
.2

9

44
.0

7

43
.9

0
43

.9
6

44
.0

3

44
.1

0

44
.2

2

44
.4

0

44
.0

8

44
.0

4

43
.9

4

45
.3

9

S
T0

8

S
T0

9

43
.5

0

43
.5

1

43
.2

9

P/W 1.2h

48
.2

8

S
/B

irc
h 

8h

47
.9

9

B
ra

m
bl

es
 1

.7
h

47
.5

5

47
.1

9

46
.8

4

O
ak

 9
h

46
.4

2

46
.4

3

P/W 1.2h

46
.2

2

46
.2

7

46
.0

7

45
.8

9

45
.7

2

45
.5

6

45
.4

3

45
.1

8
45

.1
9

45
.0

1

44
.8

2

44
.3

4

44
.1

9

44
.1

0

44
.0

7

44
.0

3 44
.0

7

43
.9

9

43
.9

1

44
.0

9

P
/W

 1
.2

h

44
.0

7

43
.9

8

43
.9

843
.9

6

44
.0

0
44

.0
5

44
.1

0

O
ak

 6
h

44
.0

5

44
.1

5

44
.2

4

44
.2

2

44
.3

6

44
.3

7

44
.5

0

44
.4

8

44
.1

6

44
.0

4

44
.0

7

P/W 1.2h

43
.0

7

43
.3

2

43
.5

9

43
.5

6

O
ak

 2
2h

O
ak

 2
0h

O
ak

 1
4h

P
in

e 
24

h

51
.2

4

51
.0

6

50
.7

7

50
.6

7

50
.4

3

50
.3

850
.2

7

50
.0

5

49
.9

4

49
.8

6

49
.6

4

49
.3

9

49
.0

7

48
.7

8

48
.6

5

48
.6

1

48
.4

2

E
ld

er
 8

h

U
K

 8
h

49
.9

7
50

.1
5

49
.6

6

49
.1

8

48
.7

5

47
.4

5

48
.0

2

48
.4

2

48
.8

3

49
.1

4

49
.4

3

49
.7

9

50
.1

2

50
.5

0

50
.2

6

49
.9

1

49
.6

3

49
.3

7

49
.1

7

48
.9

2

48
.4

4

47
.9

6

47
.3

0

46
.8

0

45
.8

9

46
.2

0

46
.5

1

46
.9

6

47
.5

0

48
.0

1

48
.4

8

48
.8

4

49
.1

1

49
.3

6

49
.6

6

49
.8

5

50
.1

6

50
.5

1

50
.8

5

50
.4

5

50
.1

3

49
.8

9

49
.7

6

49
.5

9

49
.3

2

49
.0

5

48
.7

7

48
.3

4

47
.8

2

47
.2

8

46
.7

7

46
.3

9

46
.0

5

45
.7

5

45
.4

9

45
.2

2

44
.4

5

44
.7

2

44
.9

5

45
.3

1

45
.5

6

45
.8

2

46
.2

0

46
.5

3

47
.0

1

47
.5

2

47
.9

8

48
.4

4

48
.8

2

49
.0

6

49
.3

2

49
.5

5

49
.7

2

49
.9

4

50
.2

1

50
.5

2

50
.9

4

50
.8

4

50
.5

0

50
.2

2

49
.9

8

49
.7

4

49
.4

6

49
.2

4

48
.9

7

48
.6

6

48
.2

2

47
.8

4

47
.4

6

47
.0

5

46
.6

1

45
.9

6

45
.6

8

45
.4

1

45
.1

0

44
.8

0

44
.5

5

44
.3

0

44
.1

1

43
.4

0

43
.6

3

43
.9

1

44
.1

6

44
.4

2

44
.6

7

44
.8

8

45
.0

5

45
.3

1

45
.6

2

45
.8

9

46
.2

3

46
.5

9

47
.0

5

47
.4

7

47
.9

0

48
.2

4

48
.6

7

49
.0

5

49
.3

6

49
.5

1

49
.6

7

49
.9

2

50
.1

6

50
.4

7

50
.6

4

50
.9

0

50
.6

3

50
.4

0

50
.2

8

50
.0

4

49
.8

8

49
.7

4

49
.6

3

49
.3

9

49
.0

3

48
.7

0

48
.3

0

47
.9

5

47
.5

0

47
.0

7

46
.6

6

46
.3

7

46
.0

6

45
.7

5

45
.4

8

45
.2

4

45
.0

7

44
.8

2

44
.5

6

44
.4

0

44
.1

4

43
.8

2

43
.6

1

43
.4

8

43
.7

3

43
.7

7

44
.0

2

44
.3

6

44
.6

0

44
.8

3

45
.0

2

45
.2

3

45
.4

7

45
.6

8

45
.9

8

46
.3

0

46
.6

8

47
.0

9

47
.5

5

48
.0

2

48
.4

7

48
.8

0

49
.1

4

49
.4

6

49
.7

3

49
.8

4

49
.8

8

50
.0

0

50
.0

9

50
.2

3

50
.1

1

49
.9

5

49
.8

8

49
.7

7

49
.7

2

49
.6

2

49
.4

8

49
.3

0

48
.9

9

48
.2

6

47
.4

6

47
.0

7

46
.7

3

46
.4

0

46
.0

2

45
.7

0

45
.4

4

45
.1

9

45
.0

1

44
.8

1

44
.5

1

44
.2

8

43
.9

3

43
.6

6

43
.4

7

43
.2

7

43
.0

7

43
.1

3

43
.3

3

43
.6

0

43
.8

7

44
.1

8

44
.4

8

44
.8

3

45
.0

9

45
.3

9

45
.7

0

45
.9

6

46
.2

2

46
.5

0

46
.7

5

47
.0

8

47
.5

1

47
.9

1

48
.5

6

48
.9

1

49
.2

7

49
.3

8

49
.5

0

49
.6

0

49
.7

0

49
.8

4

49
.7

9

49
.6

1

49
.5

2

49
.3

3

49
.1

6

49
.0

8

49
.0

0

48
.6

8

48
.3

7

47
.7

7

47
.3

9

47
.0

7

46
.7

2

46
.4

3

46
.1

5

45
.9

6

45
.7

8

45
.4

8

45
.2

4

44
.9

3

44
.5

5

44
.2

2

43
.9

4

43
.6

3

43
.3

9

43
.1

6

43
.4

6

43
.6

9

44
.0

4

44
.3

5

44
.7

4

45
.0

5

45
.2

5

45
.5

3

45
.8

1

46
.0

0

46
.2

4

46
.5

0

46
.8

2

47
.5

3

47
.8

0

48
.0

6

48
.3

5

48
.8

2

48
.8

9

48
.9

9

49
.0

8

49
.2

4

48
.9

3

48
.7

5

48
.7

1

48
.5

2

48
.1

8

47
.8

9

47
.4

1

47
.0

9

46
.7

6

46
.3

8

46
.1

1

45
.9

2

45
.7

6

45
.5

9

45
.3

1

45
.0

4

44
.8

0

44
.5

2

44
.2

7

44
.0

5

43
.8

1

43
.5

1
43

.5
7

43
.7

6

44
.0

0

44
.4

1

44
.6

2

44
.8

7

45
.1

0

45
.3

5

45
.4

6

45
.6

2

45
.8

3

46
.0

9

46
.3

9

46
.7

6

47
.0

8

47
.3

9

47
.6

2

48
.0

4

48
.2

2

48
.3

2

48
.5

3

48
.3

2

48
.0

9

47
.4

3

47
.3

1

47
.1

2

46
.8

7

46
.5

8

46
.1

6

45
.8

8

45
.6

2

45
.2

9

45
.0

3

44
.8

1

44
.6

3

44
.4

6

43
.5

2

44
.4

4

44
.7

3

45
.0

1

45
.2

9

45
.5

4

45
.7

4

45
.9

7

46
.2

3

46
.4

5

46
.6

8

46
.9

1

47
.0

8

47
.2

9

47
.5

8

47
.9

1

47
.5

1

47
.0

9

46
.9

2

46
.6

6

46
.4

6

46
.2

3

45
.9

6

45
.6

6

45
.3

6

45
.1

2

44
.9

0

44
.6

9

44
.4

4

44
.1

7

44
.0

3

44
.3

2

44
.5

4

44
.7

7

44
.9

8

45
.2

0

45
.4

7

45
.6

2

45
.7

9

46
.0

3

46
.2

3

46
.5

6

46
.1

0

45
.8

9

45
.7

7

45
.5

9

45
.3

7

45
.0

6

44
.8

0

44
.5

9

44
.3

4

44
.1

2

44
.0

3
43

.9
4

44
.0

4

44
.2

5

44
.4

6

44
.6

7

44
.9

3

45
.0

8

45
.1

3

45
.4

0

44
.9

3

44
.7

5

44
.6

9

44
.5

2

44
.2

9

44
.0

7

43
.9

0
43

.9
6

44
.0

3

44
.1

0

44
.2

2

44
.4

0

44
.0

8

44
.0

4

43
.9

4

45
.3

9

44

45

O
ak

 1
2h

O
ak

 1
0h

O
ak

 1
0h

U
K

 1
0h

U
K

 1
2h

P/W 1.2h

Fe
nc

e 
Fa

de
s 

W
ith

in
 V

eg
et

at
io

n

Fe
nc

e 
Fa

de
s 

W
ith

in
 V

eg
et

at
io

n

F
en

ce
 F

ad
es

 W
ith

in
 V

eg
et

at
io

n

F
en

ce
 F

ad
es

 W
ith

in
 V

eg
et

at
io

n

Fe
nc

e 
Fa

de
s 

W
ith

in
 V

eg
et

at
io

n

P
/W

 1
.2

h

P
/W

 1
.2

h

D
ila

pi
da

te
d 

P
/W

 1
.2

h
F

en
ce

 F
ad

es
 W

ith
in

 V
eg

et
at

io
n

B
ra

m
bl

es
 1

.8
h

B
ra

m
bl

es
 1

.8
h

B
ra

m
bl

es
 1

.8
h

B
ra

m
bl

es
 1

.8
h

B
ra

m
bl

es
 1

.8
h

B
ra

m
bl

es
 1

.8
h

P/W 1.2h

B
ra

m
bl

es
 1

.7
h

B
ra

m
bl

es
 1

.7
h

B
ra

m
bl

es
 1

.7
h

B
ra

m
bl

es
 1

.7
h

B
ra

m
bl

es
 1

.7
h

D
en

se
 W

oo
dl

an
d 

A
re

a

D
en

se
 W

oo
dl

an
d 

A
re

a

D
en

se
 W

oo
dl

an
d 

A
re

a

D
en

se
 W

oo
dl

an
d 

A
re

a

D
en

se
 W

oo
dl

an
d 

A
re

a

D
en

se
 W

oo
dl

an
d 

A
re

a

D
en

se
 W

oo
dl

an
d 

A
re

a

G
ra

ss

G
ra

ss

G
ra

ss

G
ra

ss

G
ra

ss

G
ra

ss

G
ra

ss

G
ra

ss

G
ra

ss

G
ra

ss

G
ra

ss

46
.3

2

S
T0

8

S
T0

9

43
.5

0

43
.5

1

43
.2

9

48
.2

8

47
.9

9

47
.5

5

47
.1

9

46
.8

4

46
.4

2

46
.4

3

46
.2

2

46
.2

7

46
.0

7

45
.8

9

45
.7

2

45
.5

6

45
.4

3

45
.1

8
45

.1
9

45
.0

1

44
.8

2

44
.3

4

44
.1

9

44
.1

0

44
.0

7

44
.0

3
44

.0
9

44
.0

7

43
.9

8

43
.9

843
.9

6

44
.0

0
44

.0
5

44
.1

0

44
.0

5

44
.1

5

44
.2

4

44
.2

2

44
.3

6

44
.3

7

44
.5

0

44
.4

8

44
.1

6

44
.0

4

44
.0

7

43
.0

7

43
.3

2

43
.5

9

43
.5

6

51
.2

4

51
.0

6

50
.7

7

50
.6

7

50
.4

3

50
.3

850
.2

7

50
.0

5

49
.9

4

49
.8

6

49
.6

4

49
.3

9

49
.0

7

48
.7

8

48
.6

5

48
.6

1

48
.4

2

S
/B

irc
h 

8h

O
ak

 9
h

O
ak

 6
h

O
ak

 2
2h

O
ak

 2
0h

O
ak

 1
4h

P
in

e 
24

h

E
ld

er
 8

h

U
K

 8
h

O
ak

 1
2h

O
ak

 1
0h

O
ak

 1
0h

U
K

 1
0h

U
K

 1
2h

P/W 1.2h

B
ra

m
bl

es
 1

.7
h

P/W 1.2h

P
/W

 1
.2

h

P/W 1.2h

P/W 1.2h

Fe
nc

e 
Fa

de
s 

W
ith

in
 V

eg
et

at
io

n

Fe
nc

e 
Fa

de
s 

W
ith

in
 V

eg
et

at
io

n

F
en

ce
 F

ad
es

 W
ith

in
 V

eg
et

at
io

n

F
en

ce
 F

ad
es

 W
ith

in
 V

eg
et

at
io

n

Fe
nc

e 
Fa

de
s 

W
ith

in
 V

eg
et

at
io

n

P
/W

 1
.2

h

P
/W

 1
.2

h

D
ila

pi
da

te
d 

P
/W

 1
.2

h
F

en
ce

 F
ad

es
 W

ith
in

 V
eg

et
at

io
n

B
ra

m
bl

es
 1

.8
h

B
ra

m
bl

es
 1

.8
h

B
ra

m
bl

es
 1

.8
h

B
ra

m
bl

es
 1

.8
h

B
ra

m
bl

es
 1

.8
h

B
ra

m
bl

es
 1

.8
h

P/W 1.2h

B
ra

m
bl

es
 1

.7
h

B
ra

m
bl

es
 1

.7
h

B
ra

m
bl

es
 1

.7
h

B
ra

m
bl

es
 1

.7
h

B
ra

m
bl

es
 1

.7
h

D
en

se
 W

oo
dl

an
d 

A
re

a

D
en

se
 W

oo
dl

an
d 

A
re

a

D
en

se
 W

oo
dl

an
d 

A
re

a

D
en

se
 W

oo
dl

an
d 

A
re

a

D
en

se
 W

oo
dl

an
d 

A
re

a

D
en

se
 W

oo
dl

an
d 

A
re

a

D
en

se
 W

oo
dl

an
d 

A
re

a

G
ra

ss

G
ra

ss

G
ra

ss

G
ra

ss

G
ra

ss

G
ra

ss

G
ra

ss

G
ra

ss

G
ra

ss

G
ra

ss

G
ra

ss

44

45

d1
.6

0m

d1
.8

0m

d1
.6

0m

d1
.6

0m

d1
.5

0m

d1
.5

0m

d1
.5

0m

d1
.7

5m

d1
.70

m

44
.4

0

44
.3

4

44
.4

0

B
ra

m
bl

es
 1

.7
h

44
.3

4

B
ra

m
bl

es
 1

.7
h

43
.9

0
43

.9
0

48
.0

6
48

.0
6

S

N

W
E

IL
LU

S
TR

A
TI

V
E

 L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
M

A
S

TE
R

P
LA

N

C
on

su
lta

nt
:

C
lie

nt
:

Le
ge

nd
:

C
A

D
 R

ef
:

D
ra

w
in

g 
N

o:
 / 

C
lie

nt
 R

ef
:

F
in

al
 R

ev
is

io
n:

S
ta

tu
s:

B
F

in
al

D
ra

w
n 

B
y:

C
he

ck
ed

 B
y:

S
ca

le
:

P
ap

er
 S

iz
e:

1:
75

0
A

2
(5

94
×4

20
 m

m
)

C
E

-M
H

21
64

-A
D

W
02

b 
- 

F
in

al
Fi

gu
re

 2

IS
-

D
at

e: 03
 J

ul
 2

02
3

D
ra

w
in

g 
Ti

tle
:

S
ite

:

AB

26
/0

6/
23

03
/0

7/
23

W
oo

dl
an

d 
ar

ea
s 

in
cl

ud
ed

A
dd

iti
on

al
 P

la
nt

in
g 

at
 L

P
A

 r
eq

ue
st

IS
-

IS
N

B

F
in

al
 R

ev
is

io
n:

D
at

e:
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n:
B

y:
C

hk
:

P
ro

po
se

d 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

P
ro

po
se

d 
na

tiv
e 

sh
ru

b 
pl

an
tin

g
ar

ea
s 

or
 w

oo
dl

an
d 

ar
ea

s

P
ro

po
se

d 
ar

ea
s 

of
 g

ra
ss

 s
ee

d 
m

ix
es

P
ro

po
se

d 
tr

ee
 p

la
nt

in
g

E
xi

st
in

g 
gr

as
sl

an
d 

ar
ea

s

M
IS

S
LE

B
R

O
O

K
 - 

B
E

S
S

B
oo

m
 P

ow
er

 L
td

E
xi

st
in

g 
tr

ee
s 

an
d 

ve
ge

ta
tio

n

P
ro

po
se

d 
ag

gr
eg

at
e 

ac
ce

ss
 tr

ac
k

P
ro

po
se

d 
2.

0m
 h

ig
h 

se
cu

rit
y 

fe
nc

in
g

Q
r

Q
r

S
a

S
a

S
a

B
p

B
p

B
p

A
c

A
c

A
c

P
a

P
a

S
a

Q
r

Q
r

P
a

Q
r

Q
r

Q
r

S
a

A
c

Q
r

B
p

B
p

P
a

A
c

S
a

Q
r

Q
r

Q
r

P
a

A
C

N
1

G
1

G
1 N

2

N
3

W
2

W
1

N
1

W
1

N
4

N
5

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 S
ch

ed
ul

e:

C
re

st
w

oo
d 

E
nv

ir
on

m
en

ta
l L

td
Th

e 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

 C
en

tr
e

G
la

is
he

r 
D

riv
e

W
ol

ve
rh

am
pt

on
 S

ci
en

ce
 P

ar
k

W
ol

ve
rh

am
pt

on
W

V
10

 9
R

U

Te
l:

01
90

2 
82

40
37

F
ax

:
01

90
2 

82
40

36

in
fo

@
cr

es
tw

oo
de

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l.c

o.
uk

. Tr
ee

 S
ta

ke
s:

 B
ar

er
oo

t t
re

es
 u

p 
to

 1
2-

14
cm

, g
irt

h 
to

 b
e 

si
ng

le
 s

ta
ke

d 
-

st
ak

es
 w

el
l d

riv
en

 in
to

 th
e 

gr
ou

nd
 m

in
im

um
 3

00
m

m
 in

to
 b

ot
to

m
 o

f t
re

e
pi

t. 
S

ta
ke

s 
to

 b
e 

pr
es

su
re

 tr
ea

te
d,

 r
ou

nd
 (

75
cm

s 
di

am
et

er
) 

pe
el

ed
,

sm
oo

th
 la

rc
h 

or
 s

im
ila

r.
 T

re
es

 to
 b

e 
se

cu
re

d 
w

ith
 p

la
st

ic
/ru

bb
er

pr
op

rie
ta

ry
 tr

ee
 ti

e,
 n

ai
le

d 
to

 th
e 

st
ak

e.
 A

ll 
st

ak
es

 to
 b

e 
po

in
te

d 
at

 o
ne

en
d,

 e
xt

en
di

ng
 a

bo
ve

 g
ro

un
d 

by
 1

/3
 o

f t
he

 h
ei

gh
t o

f t
he

 g
ro

un
d 

to
 1

st
br

an
ch

.

W
oo

dl
an

d 
P

la
nt

in
g

A
ll 

fe
at

he
re

d 
tr

ee
s 

an
d 

w
hi

ps
 to

 b
e 

pl
an

te
d 

in
 p

re
pa

re
d 

pi
ts

60
0x

60
0x

60
0m

m
 fo

r 
fe

at
he

re
d 

tr
ee

s,
 a

nd
 3

00
x3

00
x3

00
m

m
 fo

r 
w

hi
ps

.
P

its
 to

 b
e 

ba
ck

fil
le

d 
w

ith
 to

ps
oi

l/s
oi

l a
m

el
io

ra
nt

s 
as

 a
bo

ve
. A

ll 
pl

an
ts

 to
be

 w
el

l f
irm

ed
. F

ea
th

er
ed

 tr
ee

s 
to

 b
e 

si
ng

le
 s

ta
ke

d.
 A

ll 
tr

ee
s 

to
 b

e 
fit

te
d

w
ith

 p
ro

pr
ie

ta
ry

 r
ab

bi
t g

ua
rd

s.

N
at

iv
e 

Tr
ee

 a
nd

 S
hr

ub
 P

la
nt

in
g

A
ll 

fe
at

he
re

d 
tr

ee
s 

an
d 

w
hi

ps
 to

 b
e 

pl
an

te
d 

in
 p

re
pa

re
d 

pi
ts

60
0x

60
0x

60
0m

m
 fo

r 
fe

at
he

re
d 

tr
ee

s,
 a

nd
 3

00
x3

00
x3

00
m

m
 fo

r 
w

hi
ps

.
P

its
 to

 b
e 

ba
ck

fil
le

d 
w

ith
 to

ps
oi

l/s
oi

l a
m

el
io

ra
nt

s 
as

 a
bo

ve
. A

ll 
pl

an
ts

 to
be

 w
el

l f
irm

ed
. F

ea
th

er
ed

 tr
ee

s 
to

 b
e 

si
ng

le
 s

ta
ke

d.
 A

ll 
tr

ee
s 

to
 b

e 
fit

te
d

w
ith

 p
ro

pr
ie

ta
ry

 r
ab

bi
t g

ua
rd

s.

S
hr

ub
s 

to
 b

e 
pl

an
te

d 
in

 p
its

 1
50

m
m

 w
id

er
 a

nd
 d

ee
pe

r 
th

an
 th

ei
r 

ro
ot

sp
re

ad
. P

its
 to

 b
e 

ba
ck

fil
le

d 
w

ith
 a

 m
ix

tu
re

 o
f t

op
so

il/
so

il 
am

el
io

ra
nt

s 
as

ab
ov

e.
 P

la
nt

s 
to

 b
e 

a 
m

in
im

um
 o

f 3
00

m
m

 fr
om

 a
ny

 a
dj

ac
en

t h
ar

d
su

rfa
ce

 o
r 

st
ru

ct
ur

e.
 W

he
re

 n
ot

 p
ro

te
ct

ed
 b

y 
ra

bb
it 

ne
tti

ng
, s

hr
ub

s 
to

be
 fi

tte
d 

w
ith

 p
ro

pr
ie

ta
ry

 r
ab

bi
t g

ua
rd

s.

G
ra

ss
 A

re
as

To
ps

oi
l f

or
 g

ra
ss

ed
 a

re
as

 to
 b

e 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 to

 a
 fi

ne
 ti

lth
, a

ll 
st

on
es

 o
ve

r
50

m
m

 r
em

ov
ed

, a
nd

 fi
rm

ed
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 a
 le

ve
l s

ur
fa

ce
. G

ra
ss

 s
ee

di
ng

to
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 B

S
 4

42
8.

 W
at

er
 a

ll 
gr

as
s 

ar
ea

s 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
he

al
th

y
gr

ow
th

.

F
ol

lo
w

in
g 

so
il 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

al
l a

re
as

 to
 b

e 
so

w
n 

w
ith

 g
ra

ss
 s

ee
d 

m
ix

es
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
on

 th
is

 d
ra

w
in

g 
at

 a
 r

at
e 

of
 5

/g
/m

2.

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 -
S

ee
 s

ch
ed

ul
e.

G
en

er
al

 N
ot

es
:

P
la

nt
 s

ch
ed

ul
e 

- N
at

iv
e 

S
hr

ub
 M

ix
:

P
la

nt
 s

ch
ed

ul
e 

- T
re

e 
P

la
nt

in
g:

P
la

nt
 s

ch
ed

ul
e 

- W
oo

dl
an

d 
M

ix
:

E
xi

st
in

g 
V

eg
et

at
io

n
A

ll 
tr

ee
s 

an
d 

he
dg

es
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 s
ho

w
n 

fo
r 

re
te

nt
io

n 
sh

al
l b

e 
pr

ot
ec

te
d 

in
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
in

 B
S

 5
83

7 
20

12
 -

 T
re

es
 in

 R
el

at
io

n 
to

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n.
A

ny
 tr

ee
 s

ur
ge

ry
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

sh
al

l a
ls

o 
be

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 B

S
 3

99
8 

20
10

.

S
oi

l
A

ll 
to

ps
oi

l a
nd

 la
nd

sc
ap

in
g 

m
ed

iu
m

 w
ill

 b
e 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 B

S
 3

88
2 

20
15

.
G

ra
ss

 a
re

as
 m

in
im

um
 1

50
m

m
 d

ep
th

 a
nd

 tr
ee

 a
nd

 s
hr

ub
 a

re
as

 m
in

 5
00

m
m

de
pt

h 
(p

lu
s 

50
0m

 m
in

im
um

 o
f r

oo
ta

bl
e 

su
bs

oi
l).

S
oi

l A
m

el
io

ra
nt

s 
- 

to
 b

e 
ap

pl
ie

d
to

 a
ll 

ne
w

ly
 p

la
nt

ed
 a

re
as

. S
ea

nu
re

 S
oi

lb
ui

ld
er

 o
r 

si
m

ila
r 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 -
in

co
rp

or
at

e 
ap

pr
ox

 1
.5

kg
 p

er
 m

2 
of

 b
ac

kf
ill

 a
nd

 7
0g

/m
2 

to
 s

hr
ub

 b
ed

s,
 o

r 
as

pe
r 

m
an

uf
ac

tu
re

rs
 in

st
ru

ct
io

ns
. G

ra
nu

la
r 

S
lo

w
 R

el
ea

se
 F

er
til

is
er

 (
S

co
tts

E
nm

ag
 4

-1
9-

10
+7

.5
M

g+
3.

4%
S

) 
or

 s
im

ila
r 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 to
 b

e 
ap

pl
ie

d 
as

 p
er

m
an

uf
ac

tu
re

r's
 in

st
ru

ct
io

ns
.

P
la

nt
 S

to
ck

A
ll 

pl
an

t m
at

er
ia

l t
o 

be
 a

s 
sp

ec
ifi

ed
 in

 th
e 

P
la

nt
 S

ch
ed

ul
es

. A
ll 

pl
an

t m
at

er
ia

l t
o

be
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 B
S

 3
93

6 
P

ar
t 1

 (
19

92
),

 'N
ur

se
ry

 S
to

ck
 S

pe
ci

fic
at

io
n 

fo
r

Tr
ee

s 
an

d 
S

hr
ub

s'
 , 

B
S

39
36

 P
ar

t 1
0:

 1
99

0 
'N

ur
se

ry
 S

to
ck

 S
pe

ci
fic

at
io

n 
fo

r
G

ro
un

d-
co

ve
r 

P
la

nt
s'

, B
S

39
69

 1
99

8 
'R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 fo

r 
Tu

rf 
fo

r 
G

en
er

al
P

ur
po

se
' a

nd
 'H

an
dl

in
g 

an
d 

E
st

ab
lis

hi
ng

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
 P

la
nt

s'
 H

TA
 1

98
5,

 r
ev

is
ed

ed
iti

on
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

2.
 A

ny
 s

to
ck

 p
la

nt
ed

 o
ut

si
de

 th
e 

re
co

gn
is

ed
 p

la
nt

in
g 

se
as

on
to

 b
e 

co
nt

ai
ne

ris
ed

. C
on

ta
in

er
is

ed
 p

la
nt

 s
to

ck
 to

 h
av

e 
fu

lly
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 r
oo

t
sy

st
em

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
sp

ec
ifi

ed
 p

ot
 s

iz
e.

 W
he

re
 g

ro
w

in
g-

on
 in

 th
e 

nu
rs

er
y 

is
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

al
l p

la
nt

 m
at

er
ia

l i
s 

to
 b

e 
re

-p
ot

te
d 

to
 th

e 
ne

xt
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

po
t s

iz
e,

re
-s

pa
ce

d 
to

 a
llo

w
 fo

r 
15

-2
0%

 g
ro

w
th

 p
er

 g
ro

w
in

g 
se

as
on

, a
nd

 m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

to
he

al
th

y 
vi

go
ro

us
 g

ro
w

th
 ir

re
sp

ec
tiv

e 
of

 w
ea

th
er

 c
on

di
tio

ns
.

P
la

nt
in

g
- P

ro
po

se
d 

Tr
ee

 a
nd

 S
hr

ub
 A

re
as

A
ll 

pl
an

tin
g 

ar
ea

s 
to

 b
e 

w
ee

d 
fre

e 
pr

io
r 

to
 p

la
nt

in
g.

 A
llo

w
 fo

r 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n
of

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
tr

an
sl

oc
at

ed
 s

ys
te

m
ic

 h
er

bi
ci

de
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 1
99

7 
C

on
tr

ol
of

 P
es

tic
id

e 
R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 2

00
3 

C
O

S
H

H
. A

ll 
be

ds
 to

 b
e 

th
or

ou
gh

ly
fo

rk
ed

 o
ve

r 
or

 r
ot

ov
at

ed
 to

 a
 m

in
im

um
 d

ep
th

 o
f 4

00
 m

m
, e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

th
e 

su
bg

ra
de

 a
nd

 to
ps

oi
l a

re
 b

ot
h 

fre
e 

dr
ai

ni
ng

. A
ll 

pl
an

tin
g 

be
ds

 to
 b

e
90

m
m

 b
el

ow
 a

dj
ac

en
t g

ra
ss

/h
ar

d 
su

rfa
ce

s.
 W

he
re

 g
ra

ss
 is

 p
ro

po
se

d,
so

il 
le

ve
ls

 to
 b

e 
10

m
m

 b
el

ow
 o

r 
flu

sh
 w

ith
 a

dj
ac

en
t s

ur
fa

ce
s.

In
di

vi
du

al
 T

re
e 

P
la

nt
in

g
Tr

ee
s 

to
 b

e 
pl

an
te

d 
in

to
 p

re
pa

re
d 

tr
ee

 p
its

, b
ac

kf
ill

ed
 w

ith
 to

ps
oi

l/s
oi

l
am

el
io

ra
nt

s 
as

 a
bo

ve
.

R
oo

tb
al

le
d 

tr
ee

s:
Tr

ee
 p

it 
di

am
et

er
 to

 b
e 

50
0m

m
 g

re
at

er
 th

an
 r

oo
tb

al
l, 

w
id

e 
en

ou
gh

 to
ac

co
m

m
od

at
e 

ro
ot

s 
w

he
n 

fu
lly

 s
pr

ea
d.

 D
ep

th
 o

f a
ll 

tr
ee

 p
its

 to
 b

e
15

0m
m

 g
re

at
er

 th
an

 d
ep

th
 o

f r
oo

tb
al

l /
co

nt
ai

ne
r 

an
d 

ba
ck

fil
le

d 
w

ith
15

0m
m

 la
ye

r 
of

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
dr

ai
na

ge
 g

ra
ve

l. 
B

as
e 

an
d 

si
de

s 
of

 a
ll 

pi
ts

 to
be

 r
ou

gh
en

ed
 to

 a
llo

w
 r

oo
t p

en
et

ra
tio

n.
 W

or
ks

 to
 b

e 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

B
S

 4
04

3:
19

89
 T

ra
ns

pl
an

tin
g 

ro
ot

-b
al

le
d 

tr
ee

s.
 W

he
re

 tr
ee

s 
ar

e 
pl

an
te

d
w

ith
in

 g
ra

ss
la

nd
, t

he
y 

sh
al

l h
av

e 
a 

10
00

m
m

 d
ia

m
et

er
 c

irc
le

 a
ro

un
d 

th
e

ba
se

 o
f t

he
 tr

un
k 

to
 b

e 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
fre

e 
fro

m
 g

ra
ss

 a
nd

 s
pr

ea
d 

w
ith

75
m

m
 m

ul
ch

. A
ll 

tr
ee

s 
to

 w
at

er
ed

-in
 w

he
n 

pl
an

te
d 

w
ith

 a
 m

in
im

um
 5

4L
,

an
d 

th
en

 o
n 

a 
w

ee
kl

y 
ba

si
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

du
ra

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
12

 M
on

th
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 P

er
io

d,
 e

xc
ep

t w
he

n 
th

e 
w

ea
th

er
 c

on
di

tio
ns

 a
re

 v
er

y 
w

et
.

A27 Botley Road

S
ec

ur
ity

 F
en

ce
 2

.0
m

 h
ig

h 
w

ith
1m

 m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

cl
ea

r 
zo

ne
be

tw
ee

n 
fe

nc
e 

an
d 

pl
an

tin
g

S
ou

th
er

n 
W

at
er

 P
ip

e
w

ith
 1

5m
 e

as
em

en
t

E
xt

en
t o

f 1
5m

ea
se

m
en

t

P
ro

po
se

d 
10

m
 w

id
e 

ro
ut

e
fro

m
 fi

el
d 

to
 e

as
em

en
t f

or
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 a

cc
es

s

P
ro

po
se

d 
w

ild
flo

w
er

 g
ra

ss
la

nd
ar

ea
. A

pp
ro

x.
 0

.4
2h

a

N
o 

ne
w

 p
la

nt
in

g 
is

 a
llo

w
ed

 to
 b

e
un

de
rt

ak
en

 w
ith

in
 a

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
ea

se
m

en
t

to
 a

vo
id

 p
ot

en
tia

l d
am

ag
e 

an
d 

to
 e

na
bl

e
ea

se
 o

f m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

.
H

ed
ge

ro
w

 a
bo

ve
 e

xi
st

in
g 

ea
se

m
en

t t
o

m
an

ag
ed

 to
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

he
ig

ht
 o

f c
. 3

m
to

 li
m

it 
vi

ew
s 

fro
m

 B
ot

le
y 

R
oa

d 
(A

27
).

2m
 w

id
e 

pl
an

tin
g 

fre
e 

ar
ea

al
on

g 
ro

ut
e 

of
 c

on
ne

ct
io

n 
ca

bl
e

P
ro

po
se

d 
ro

ut
e 

of
 e

xp
or

t
ca

bl
e 

(b
el

ow
 g

ro
un

d)

P
os

t &
 W

ire
 A

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l

F
en

ce
 2

m
 h

ig
h 

to
 p

ro
te

ct
 a

re
a

of
 w

ild
flo

w
er

 g
ra

ss
la

nd

N
ew

 p
la

nt
in

g 
al

on
g 

B
ot

le
y 

R
oa

d
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 fu
rt

he
r 

sc
re

en
in

g 
fo

r
ve

hi
cl

es
 tr

av
el

lin
g 

no
rt

h-
w

es
t.

©
 C

ro
w

n 
C

op
yr

ig
ht

 2
02

3.
 A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. L
ic

en
ce

 n
um

be
r 

01
00

03
16

73

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 32



A
B

D
E

C
F

G
J

H
I

10987654321
E

SN

W

Pr
oj

ec
t A

dd
re

ss
Bo

om
 P

ow
er

 L
td

. A
dd

re
ss

V 
N

o
Re

vi
si

on
 N

ot
e

By
Da

te

Dr
aw

in
g 

In
fo

m
at

io
n

FI
N

AL

Bo
om

 P
ow

er
 L

td
.

Un
it 

5E
 P

ar
k 

Fa
rm

Ch
ic

he
st

er
 R

oa
d

Ar
un

de
l

W
es

t S
us

se
x

BN
18

 0
AG

TH
IS

 D
RA

W
IN

G 
RE

M
AI

N
S 

TH
E 

PR
OP

ER
TY

 O
F 

BO
OM

 P
OW

ER
 L

TD
. A

N
D 

M
US

T 
BE

 R
ET

UR
N

ED
 F

OR
TH

W
IT

H
 U

PO
N

 R
EQ

UE
ST

.     
    

    
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
    

    
    

    
    

  T
EL

: +
44

 (0
) 1

90
3 

32
32

30

M
IS

SL
EB

RO
OK

S
BA

TT
ER

Y 
ST

OR
AG

E 
OV

ER
AL

L 
LA

YO
UT

PR
OJ

EC
T 

IN
FO

BO
X

La
nd

 B
et

w
ee

n:
Bo

tle
y 

Ro
ad

 A
27

,
Ca

st
le

 L
an

e 
&

M
is

sl
eb

ro
ok

s L
an

e.
SO

52
 9

LY

Dr
aw

in
g 

In
fo

m
at

io
n

Sc
al

e
St

ag
e

Dr
aw

in
g 

N
am

e
Dr

aw
in

g 
N

um
be

r
De

si
gn

ed
 B

y
Sh

ee
t 1

 o
f 1

1:
25

00
 @

 A
0

Ba
tt

er
y 

St
or

ag
e 

Ov
er

al
l L

ay
ou

t
B2

01
Sa

m
 H

og
an

2.
4

SH
30

/0
3/

20
23

FI
N

AL

40
0k

V 
N

at
io

na
l G

ri
d 

OH
L

13
2k

V 
SS

E 
OH

L

EX
PO

RT
 C

AB
LE

 R
OU

TE

PR
OP

OS
ED

 A
CC

ES
S 

TR
AC

K

IN
TE

RN
AL

 S
ER

VI
CE

 R
OA

D

SU
BS

TA
TI

ON
S

BA
TT

ER
Y 

CO
N

TA
IN

ER
S

TR
AN

SF
OR

M
ER

S

IN
VE

RT
ER

S

SI
TE

 B
OU

N
DA

RY

LO
CA

L 
SU

PP
LY

 T
RA

N
SF

OR
M

ER

54
.7

9

54
.2

4

54
.50

55
.1

2

55
.3

8

55
.8

3

56
.1

6

55
.7

5

56
.2

6

TC

56
.8

0

O
ak

 1
2h

U
K 

5h

Sa
pl

in
g

U
K 

10
h

U
K 

10
h

TO
P 

O
F 

PY
LO

N

To
p 

of
 P

yl
on

O
ak

 1
2h

U
K 

12
h

U
K 

12
h

U
K 

14
h

U
K 

12
h

U
K 

14
h

S/
Bi

rc
h 

8h

U
K 

10
h

S/
Bi

rc
h 

8h

O
ak

 1
0h

O
ak

 1
0h

O
ak

 1
4h

O
ak

 1
4h

Fi
r 1

4h

O
ak

 1
8h

U
K 

14
h

U
K 

12
h

U
K 

12
h

U
K 

12
h

O
ak

 1
6h

O
ak

 1
6h

O
ak

 1
8h

O
ak

 1
8h

51
.9

8

51
.9

9
51

.8
7

51
.5

9

51
.4

7

O
ak

 1
6h

O
ak

 2
0h

O
ak

 1
2h

O
ak

 1
6h

U
K 

10
h 

M
ul

ti

44
.4

0

43
.9

6
43

.8
6

44
.2

5

44
.3

1

43
.8

9

43
.8

6

44
.4

8

44
.5

0

44
.1

5
44

.0
7

U
K 

12
h

O
ak

 1
6h

O
ak

 1
4h

U
K 

14
h 

M
ul

ti

U
K 

10
h

U
K 

12
h

U
K 

14
h

U
K 

10
h

U
K 

10
h

O
ak

 1
4h

U
K 

8h
x2

U
K 

10
h

O
ak

 1
2h

O
ak

 1
4h

S/
Bi

rc
h 

14
h

O
ak

 1
6h

S/
Bi

rc
h 

10
h

O
ak

 1
4h

U
K 

8h

S/
Bi

rc
h 

8h

O
ak

 9
h

O
ak

 6
h

POW
M

O
ak

 2
2h

O
ak

 2
0h

O
ak

 2
0h

O
ak

 2
0h

O
ak

 1
0h

O
ak

 1
8h

O
ak

 1
8h

O
ak

 2
0h

Fi
r 2

0h

O
ak

 1
4h

Pi
ne

 2
4h

S/
Bi

rc
h 

14
h

Pi
ne

 2
2h

El
de

r 8
h

U
K 

8h

O
ak

 1
0h

O
ak

 1
0h

O
ak

 1
4h

U
K 

10
h

U
K 

10
h

O
ak

 1
2h

O
ak

 1
0h

O
ak

 1
0h

U
K 

10
h

U
K 

12
h

O
ak

 2
0h

O
ak

 2
0h

Pi
ne

 2
4h

Pi
ne

 2
4h

O
ak

 1
0h

O
ak

 1
4h

O
ak

 1
2h

O
ak

 1
6h

O
ak

 1
0h

O
ak

 1
4h

U
K 

12
h

O
ak

 1
2h

O
ak

 1
2h

O
ak

 1
4h

O
ak

 1
2h

O
ak

 1
2h

O
ak

 1
4h

44
.4

7
U

K 
12

h

O
ak

 1
6h

O
ak

 1
6h

U
K 

12
h

O
ak

 1
6h

O
ak

 1
6h

O
ak

 1
4h

O
ak

 1
2h

O
ak

 1
6h

O
ak

 1
6h

O
ak

 1
6h

O
ak

 1
6h

O
ak

 1
8h

U
K 

14
h

U
K 

12
h

O
ak

 1
6h

O
ak

 1
2h

O
ak

 1
2h

U
K 

9h

U
K 

9h

U
K 

10
h

U
K 

10
h

U
K 

8h

U
K 

8h

U
K 

8h

U
K 

12
h

O
ak

 1
0h

O
ak

 1
4h

O
ak

 1
4h

O
ak

 1
4h

O
ak

 1
4h

U
K 

10
h

O
ak

 1
6h

O
ak

 1
2h

TC

To
p 

of
 P

yl
on

POW
M

PROPOSED

ACCESS TR
ACK

AC
CE

SS
 G

AT
E

FE
NC

E 
LI

NE

FENCE LINE

FE
NC

E 
LI

NE

HV SU
BS

TA
TI

ON

CO
NT

RO
L

SU
BS

TA
TI

ON

Lo
ca

l S
up

ply

Tr
an

sfo
rm

er
FENCE LINE

Sp
ar

e 
co

nt
ain

er
s

33
kV

 D
NO

SU
BS

TA
TI

ON

SE
RV

IC
E 

RO
AD

SE
RV

IC
E 

RO
AD

SE
RV

IC
E 

RO
AD

EX
PO

RT
 C

AB
LE

ACCESS G
ATE

40
0k

V 
N

at
io

na
l G

rid
 O

ve
rh

ea
d 

Li
ne

13
2k

V 
SS

E 
O

ve
rh

ea
d 

Li
ne

Pr
op

os
ed

 N
at

iv
e

H
ed

ge
ro

w

St
oc

k 
Pr

oo
f F

en
ci

ng

Pr
op

os
ed

 T
re

e
Pl

an
tin

g

Pr
op

os
ed

 W
ild

flo
w

er
G

ra
ss

la
nd

 A
re

a

EX
IS

TI
NG

 6
00

m
m

 Ø
 P

IP
E 

- W
AT

ER
 / 

DR
AI

NA
GE

Ex
is

tin
g 

So
ut

he
rn

 W
at

er
 P

ip
e

15
m

 e
as

em
en

t r
et

ai
ne

d

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 33

AutoCAD SHX Text
Roundabouts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
A27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
W1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
W1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
40m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
Talisman

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
Wrens

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
Copse

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
Golf

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
Course

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
K

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
M

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
Tk

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
70m

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
65m

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
60m

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
55m

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
50m

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
45m

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
A27

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
Doverhay

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
55m

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
Golf Course

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
T34

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
T1

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
T2

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
T3

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
T4

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
T5

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
G1

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
T6

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
T7

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
T8

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
T9

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
T10

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
T11

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
T12

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
T13

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
T14

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
T15

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
T16

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
T17

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
G8

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
T18

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
T19

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
T20

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
T21

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
T23

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
T24

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
T25

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
T26

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
T27

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
T28

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
T29

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
T30

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
G23

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
T31

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
T32

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
T33

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
T35

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
T36

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
T37

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
T38

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
T39

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
G24

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
W2

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
H1

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
H1

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
G2

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
G3

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
G4

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
G5

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
G6

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
G6

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
G7

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
G7

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
G8

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
H2

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
H2

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
H2

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
G9

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
G10

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
G13

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
G14

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
G15

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
G16

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
G17

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
G18

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
G19

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
G20

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
G21

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
G22

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
W1

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
W2

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
W2

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
W2

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
W2

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
Copse

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
Misslebrooks



A
B

D
E

C
F

G
J

H
I

10987654321

Pr
oj

ec
t A

dd
re

ss
Bo

om
 P

ow
er

 L
td

. A
dd

re
ss

V 
N

o
Re

vi
si

on
 N

ot
e

By
Da

te

Dr
aw

in
g 

In
fo

m
at

io
n

FI
N

AL

Bo
om

 P
ow

er
 L

td
.

Un
it 

5E
 P

ar
k 

Fa
rm

Ch
ic

he
st

er
 R

oa
d

Ar
un

de
l

W
es

t S
us

se
x

BN
18

 0
AG

TH
IS

 D
RA

W
IN

G 
RE

M
AI

N
S 

TH
E 

PR
OP

ER
TY

 O
F 

BO
OM

 P
OW

ER
 L

TD
. A

N
D 

M
US

T 
BE

 R
ET

UR
N

ED
 F

OR
TH

W
IT

H
 U

PO
N

 R
EQ

UE
ST

.     
    

    
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
    

    
    

    
    

  T
EL

: +
44

 (0
) 1

90
3 

32
32

30

M
IS

SL
EB

RO
OK

S
BA

TT
ER

Y 
ST

OR
AG

E 
LA

YO
UT

PR
OJ

EC
T 

IN
FO

BO
X

La
nd

 B
et

w
ee

n:
Bo

tle
y 

Ro
ad

 A
27

,
Ca

st
le

 L
an

e 
&

M
is

sl
eb

ro
ok

s L
an

e.
SO

52
 9

LY

Dr
aw

in
g 

In
fo

m
at

io
n

Sc
al

e
St

ag
e

Dr
aw

in
g 

N
am

e
Dr

aw
in

g 
N

um
be

r
De

si
gn

ed
 B

y
Sh

ee
t 1

 o
f 1

1:
50

 @
 A

3

Ba
tt

er
y 

St
or

ag
e 

Ov
er

al
l L

ay
ou

t
B2

01
.1

Sa
m

 H
og

an

EX
PO

RT
 C

AB
LE

 R
OU

TE

PR
OP

OS
ED

 A
CC

ES
S 

TR
AC

K

IN
TE

RN
AL

 S
ER

VI
CE

 R
OA

D

SU
BS

TA
TI

ON
S

BA
TT

ER
Y 

CO
N

TA
IN

ER
S

TR
AN

SF
OR

M
ER

S

IN
VE

RT
ER

S

SI
TE

 B
OU

N
DA

RY

LO
CA

L 
SU

PP
LY

 T
RA

N
SF

OR
M

ER

2.
4

SH
30

/0
3/

20
23

FI
N

AL

AC
C

ES
S 

G
AT

E

FE
N

C
E 

LI
N

E

FENCE LINE

FE
N

C
E 

LI
N

E

H
V

SU
BS

TA
TI

O
N

C
O

N
TR

O
L

SU
BS

TA
TI

O
N

Lo
ca

l S
up

pl
y

Tr
an

sf
or

m
er

FENCE LINE

PROPOSED
ACCESS TRACK

Sp
ar

e 
co

nt
ai

ne
rs

BA
TT

ER
Y 

C
O

N
TA

IN
ER

S

TR
AN

SF
O

R
M

ER
S

IN
VE

R
TE

R
S

BA
TT

ER
Y 

C
O

N
TA

IN
ER

S

33
kV

 D
N

O
SU

BS
TA

TI
O

N

SE
R

VI
C

E 
R

O
AD

SE
R

VI
C

E 
R

O
AD

SE
R

VI
C

E 
R

O
AD

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 34



2.
00
m

2.
50
m

1m
0m

2m
3m

4m
5m

A
B

D
E

C
F

G
J

H
I

10987654321

Pr
oj

ec
t A

dd
re

ss
Bo

om
 P

ow
er

 L
td

. A
dd

re
ss

V 
N

o
Re

vi
si

on
 N

ot
e

By
Da

te

Dr
aw

in
g 

In
fo

m
at

io
n

FI
N

AL

Bo
om

 P
ow

er
 L

td
.

Un
it 

5E
 P

ar
k 

Fa
rm

Ch
ic

he
st

er
 R

oa
d

Ar
un

de
l

W
es

t S
us

se
x

BN
18

 0
AG

TH
IS

 D
RA

W
IN

G 
RE

M
AI

N
S 

TH
E 

PR
OP

ER
TY

 O
F 

BO
OM

 P
OW

ER
 L

TD
. A

N
D 

M
US

T 
BE

 R
ET

UR
N

ED
 F

OR
TH

W
IT

H
 U

PO
N

 R
EQ

UE
ST

.     
    

    
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
    

  T
EL

: +
44

 (0
) 1

90
3 

32
32

30

Ba
tt

er
y 

St
or

ag
e

CC
TV

 &
 F

lo
od

lig
ht

El
ev

at
io

ns

Dr
aw

in
g 

In
fo

m
at

io
n

Sc
al

e 
[w

he
n 

pr
in

te
d]

St
ag

e
Dr

aw
in

g 
N

am
e

Dr
aw

in
g 

N
um

be
r

De
si

gn
ed

 B
y

1:
50

 @
 A

3

B2
05

Sa
m

ue
l H

og
an

Ba
tt

er
y 

St
or

ag
e 

CC
TV

 +
Fl

oo
dl

ig
ht

 E
le

va
tio

ns

1.
2

Fi
na

l
SH

01
/0

4/
20

22Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 35



（
）

2.
50
m

2.
50
m

2.
04
m

2.
04
m

0.
60
m

A
B

D
E

C
F

G
J

H
I

10987654321

Pr
oj

ec
t A

dd
re

ss
Bo

om
 P

ow
er

 L
td

. A
dd

re
ss

V 
N

o
Re

vi
si

on
 N

ot
e

By
Da

te

Dr
aw

in
g 

In
fo

m
at

io
n

IS
SU

ED
 F

OR
 R

EV
IE

W

Bo
om

 P
ow

er
 L

td
.

Un
it 

5E
 P

ar
k 

Fa
rm

Ch
ic

he
st

er
 R

oa
d

Ar
un

de
l

W
es

t S
us

se
x

BN
18

 0
AG

TH
IS

 D
RA

W
IN

G 
RE

M
AI

N
S 

TH
E 

PR
OP

ER
TY

 O
F 

BO
OM

 P
OW

ER
 L

TD
. A

N
D 

M
US

T 
BE

 R
ET

UR
N

ED
 F

OR
TH

W
IT

H
 U

PO
N

 R
EQ

UE
ST

.     
    

    
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
    

  T
EL

: +
44

 (0
) 1

90
3 

32
32

30

BA
TT

ER
Y 

ST
OR

AG
E

CO
M

BI
N

ER
 W

IT
H

IN
VE

RT
ER

S

Dr
aw

in
g 

In
fo

m
at

io
n

Sc
al

e
St

ag
e

Dr
aw

in
g 

N
am

e

Dr
aw

in
g 

N
um

be
r

De
si

gn
ed

 B
y

1:
30

 @
 A

3

Ba
tt

er
y 

St
or

ag
e 

Co
m

bi
ne

r W
ith

In
ve

rt
er

s

B2
07

Sa
m

ue
l H

og
an

1.
0

SH
08

/1
1/

20
21

In
iti

al
 D

ra
w

in
g

0m
1.

5m
3m

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 36

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
Top view（door opening + display of overline module）door opening + display of overline module）

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
Opening the door



R
E

A
R

 V
IE

W

F
R

O
N

T
 V

IE
W

R
IG

H
T

 S
ID

E
 V

IE
W

L
E

F
T

 S
ID

E
 V

IE
W

G
ro

u
n

d
 L

ev
el

G
ro

u
n

d
 L

ev
el

6.
05
8m

2.
43
8m

2.
89
6m

30
0m

m

30
0m

m

A
B

D
E

C
F

G
J

H
I

10987654321

Pr
oj

ec
t A

dd
re

ss
Bo

om
 P

ow
er

 L
td

. A
dd

re
ss

V 
N

o
Re

vi
si

on
 N

ot
e

By
Da

te

Dr
aw

in
g 

In
fo

m
at

io
n

FI
N

AL

Bo
om

 P
ow

er
 L

td
.

Un
it 

5E
 P

ar
k 

Fa
rm

Ch
ic

he
st

er
 R

oa
d

Ar
un

de
l

W
es

t S
us

se
x

BN
18

 0
AG

TH
IS

 D
RA

W
IN

G 
RE

M
AI

N
S 

TH
E 

PR
OP

ER
TY

 O
F 

BO
OM

 P
OW

ER
 L

TD
. A

N
D 

M
US

T 
BE

 R
ET

UR
N

ED
 F

OR
TH

W
IT

H
 U

PO
N

 R
EQ

UE
ST

.     
    

    
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
    

  T
EL

: +
44

 (0
) 1

90
3 

32
32

30

Dr
aw

in
g 

In
fo

m
at

io
n

Sc
al

e 
W

he
n 

Pr
in

te
d

St
ag

e
Dr

aw
in

g 
N

am
e

Dr
aw

in
g 

N
um

be
r

De
si

gn
ed

 B
y

1:
50

 @
 A

3

Ba
tt

er
y 

St
or

ag
e 

Co
nt

ai
ne

r
Fo

un
da

tio
ns

 &
 E

le
va

tio
ns

B2
02

Sa
m

ue
l H

og
an

Co
nt

ai
ne

r C
ol

ou
r

Si
gn

al
 W

hi
te

 - 
RA

L 
90

03

0m
2.

5m
5m

1.
4

JT
16

/0
5/

20
22

FI
N

AL

BA
TT

ER
Y 

ST
OR

AG
E

CO
N

TA
IN

ER
 F

OU
N

DA
TI

ON
S 

&
EL

EV
AT

IO
N

S

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 37



5.
40
m

3.
50
m

A
B

D
E

C
F

G
J

H
I

10987654321

Pr
oj

ec
t A

dd
re

ss
Bo

om
 P

ow
er

 L
td

. A
dd

re
ss

V 
N

o
Re

vi
si

on
 N

ot
e

By
Da

te

Dr
aw

in
g 

In
fo

m
at

io
n

IS
SU

ED
 F

OR
 R

EV
IE

W

Bo
om

 P
ow

er
 L

td
.

Un
it 

5E
 P

ar
k 

Fa
rm

Ch
ic

he
st

er
 R

oa
d

Ar
un

de
l

W
es

t S
us

se
x

BN
18

 0
AG

TH
IS

 D
RA

W
IN

G 
RE

M
AI

N
S 

TH
E 

PR
OP

ER
TY

 O
F 

BO
OM

 P
OW

ER
 L

TD
. A

N
D 

M
US

T 
BE

 R
ET

UR
N

ED
 F

OR
TH

W
IT

H
 U

PO
N

 R
EQ

UE
ST

.     
    

    
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
    

  T
EL

: +
44

 (0
) 1

90
3 

32
32

30

BA
TT

ER
Y 

ST
OR

AG
E

CO
N

TR
OL

 S
UB

ST
AT

IO
N

Dr
aw

in
g 

In
fo

m
at

io
n

Sc
al

e
St

ag
e

Dr
aw

in
g 

N
am

e

Dr
aw

in
g 

N
um

be
r

De
si

gn
ed

 B
y

1:
50

 @
 A

3

Ba
tt

er
y 

St
or

ag
e 

Co
nt

ro
l

Su
bs

ta
tio

n

B2
09

Sa
m

ue
l H

og
an

1.
0

SH
08

/1
1/

20
21

In
iti

al
 D

ra
w

in
g

0m
2.

5m
5m

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 38



2.
00
m

0m
0.
2m

0.
4m

0.
6m

0.
8m

1m

A
B

D
E

C
F

G
J

H
I

10987654321

Pr
oj

ec
t A

dd
re

ss
Bo

om
 P

ow
er

 L
td

. A
dd

re
ss

V 
N

o
Re

vi
si

on
 N

ot
e

By
Da

te

Dr
aw

in
g 

In
fo

m
at

io
n

FI
N

AL

Bo
om

 P
ow

er
 L

td
.

Un
it 

5E
 P

ar
k 

Fa
rm

Ch
ic

he
st

er
 R

oa
d

Ar
un

de
l

W
es

t S
us

se
x

BN
18

 0
AG

TH
IS

 D
RA

W
IN

G 
RE

M
AI

N
S 

TH
E 

PR
OP

ER
TY

 O
F 

BO
OM

 P
OW

ER
 L

TD
. A

N
D 

M
US

T 
BE

 R
ET

UR
N

ED
 F

OR
TH

W
IT

H
 U

PO
N

 R
EQ

UE
ST

.     
    

    
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
    

  T
EL

: +
44

 (0
) 1

90
3 

32
32

30

BA
TT

ER
Y 

ST
OR

AG
E

EN
TR

AN
CE

 G
AT

ES
 E

LE
VA

TI
ON

S

Dr
aw

in
g 

In
fo

m
at

io
n

Sc
al

e 
[W

he
n 

Pr
in

te
d]

St
ag

e
Dr

aw
in

g 
N

am
e

Dr
aw

in
g 

N
um

be
r

De
si

gn
ed

 B
y

1:
50

 @
 A

3

Ba
tt

er
y 

St
or

ag
e 

En
tr

an
ce

Ga
te

s E
le

va
tio

ns
 P

la
nn

in
g

B2
04

Sa
m

ue
l H

og
an

1.
1

SF
28

/0
1/

20
22

FI
N

AL

Fi
ni

sh
:

RA
L 

60
05

 - 
M

os
s G

re
en

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 39



R
E

A
R

 V
IE

W

F
R

O
N

T
 V

IE
W

R
IG

H
T

 S
ID

E
 V

IE
W

L
E

F
T

 S
ID

E
 V

IE
W

G
ro

u
n

d
 L

ev
el

6.
05
8m

2.
43
8m

2.
89
6m

0m
0.

5m
1m

1.
5m

2m
2.

5m

0.
3m

G
ro

u
n

d
 L

ev
el

A
B

D
E

C
F

G
J

H
I

10987654321

Pr
oj

ec
t A

dd
re

ss
Bo

om
 P

ow
er

 L
td

. A
dd

re
ss

V 
N

o
Re

vi
si

on
 N

ot
e

By
Da

te

Dr
aw

in
g 

In
fo

m
at

io
n

IS
SU

ED
 F

OR
 R

EV
IE

W

Bo
om

 P
ow

er
 L

td
.

Un
it 

5E
 P

ar
k 

Fa
rm

Ch
ic

he
st

er
 R

oa
d

Ar
un

de
l

W
es

t S
us

se
x

BN
18

 0
AG

TH
IS

 D
RA

W
IN

G 
RE

M
AI

N
S 

TH
E 

PR
OP

ER
TY

 O
F 

BO
OM

 P
OW

ER
 L

TD
. A

N
D 

M
US

T 
BE

 R
ET

UR
N

ED
 F

OR
TH

W
IT

H
 U

PO
N

 R
EQ

UE
ST

.     
    

    
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
    

  T
EL

: +
44

 (0
) 1

90
3 

32
32

30

H
V 

SU
BS

TA
TI

ON
FO

UN
DA

TI
ON

S 
&

 E
LE

VA
TI

ON
S

Dr
aw

in
g 

In
fo

m
at

io
n

Sc
al

e
St

ag
e

Dr
aw

in
g 

N
am

e

Dr
aw

in
g 

N
um

be
r

De
si

gn
ed

 B
y

1:
50

 @
 A

3

H
V 

Su
bs

ta
tio

ns
Fo

un
da

tio
ns

 &
 E

le
va

tio
ns

B2
10

Sa
m

ue
l H

og
an

1.
0

JT
15

/1
1/

20
22

FI
N

AL

Co
nt

ai
ne

r C
ol

ou
r

Si
gn

al
 W

hi
te

 - 
RA

L 
90

03

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 40



30
00

22
00

2660

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
C

on
cr

et
e 

Fo
un

da
tio

n

50
00

300

60
0

2000

3366

33
66

300

G
ro

u
n

d
 L

ev
el

5000

0m
0.

5m
1m

1.
5m

2m
2.

5m

A
B

D
E

C
F

G
J

H
I

10987654321

Pr
oj

ec
t A

dd
re

ss
Bo

om
 P

ow
er

 L
td

. A
dd

re
ss

V 
N

o
Re

vi
si

on
 N

ot
e

By
Da

te

Dr
aw

in
g 

In
fo

m
at

io
n

IS
SU

ED
 F

OR
 R

EV
IE

W

Bo
om

 P
ow

er
 L

td
.

Un
it 

5E
 P

ar
k 

Fa
rm

Ch
ic

he
st

er
 R

oa
d

Ar
un

de
l

W
es

t S
us

se
x

BN
18

 0
AG

TH
IS

 D
RA

W
IN

G 
RE

M
AI

N
S 

TH
E 

PR
OP

ER
TY

 O
F 

BO
OM

 P
OW

ER
 L

TD
. A

N
D 

M
US

T 
BE

 R
ET

UR
N

ED
 F

OR
TH

W
IT

H
 U

PO
N

 R
EQ

UE
ST

.     
    

    
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
    

  T
EL

: +
44

 (0
) 1

90
3 

32
32

30

BA
TT

ER
Y 

ST
OR

AG
E 

LO
CA

L
SU

PP
LY

 T
RA

N
SF

OR
M

ER
FO

UN
DA

TI
ON

S 
&

 E
LE

VA
TI

ON
S

Dr
aw

in
g 

In
fo

m
at

io
n

Sc
al

e
St

ag
e

Dr
aw

in
g 

N
am

e

Dr
aw

in
g 

N
um

be
r

De
si

gn
ed

 B
y

1:
50

 @
 A

3

Lo
ca

l S
up

pl
y 

Tr
an

sf
or

m
er

Fo
un

da
tio

ns
 &

 E
le

va
tio

ns

B2
08

Ja
so

n 
Tu

rn
er

1.
0

JT
15

/1
1/

20
22

FI
N

AL

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 41



2.
00
m

0m
0.
2m

0.
4m

0.
6m

0.
8m

1m

A
B

D
E

C
F

G
J

H
I

10987654321

Pr
oj

ec
t A

dd
re

ss
Bo

om
 P

ow
er

 L
td

. A
dd

re
ss

V 
N

o
Re

vi
si

on
 N

ot
e

By
Da

te

Dr
aw

in
g 

In
fo

m
at

io
n

FI
N

AL

Bo
om

 P
ow

er
 L

td
.

Un
it 

5E
 P

ar
k 

Fa
rm

Ch
ic

he
st

er
 R

oa
d

Ar
un

de
l

W
es

t S
us

se
x

BN
18

 0
AG

TH
IS

 D
RA

W
IN

G 
RE

M
AI

N
S 

TH
E 

PR
OP

ER
TY

 O
F 

BO
OM

 P
OW

ER
 L

TD
. A

N
D 

M
US

T 
BE

 R
ET

UR
N

ED
 F

OR
TH

W
IT

H
 U

PO
N

 R
EQ

UE
ST

.     
    

    
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
    

  T
EL

: +
44

 (0
) 1

90
3 

32
32

30

BA
TT

ER
Y 

ST
OR

AG
E

PA
LI

SA
DE

 F
EN

CI
N

G
EL

EV
AT

IO
N

S

Dr
aw

in
g 

In
fo

m
at

io
n

Sc
al

e 
[W

he
n 

Pr
in

te
d]

St
ag

e
Dr

aw
in

g 
N

am
e

Dr
aw

in
g 

N
um

be
r

De
si

gn
ed

 B
y

1:
50

 @
 A

3

Ba
tt

er
y 

St
or

ag
e 

Pa
lis

ad
e

Fe
nc

in
g 

El
ev

at
io

ns
 P

la
nn

in
g

B2
03

Sa
m

ue
l H

og
an

1.
1

SF
FI

N
AL

28
/0

1/
20

22Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 42



R
E

A
R

 V
IE

W

R
IG

H
T

 S
ID

E
 V

IE
W

L
E

F
T

 S
ID

E
 V

IE
W

F
in

is
h

ed
G

ro
u

n
d

 L
ev

el

F
in

is
h

ed
G

ro
u

n
d

 L
ev

el

F
R

O
N

T
 V

IE
W

4.
00
m

3.
00
m

3.
50
m Sc

al
e:

50
cm

25
cm

0
75

cm
1m

A
B

D
E

C
F

G
J

H
I

10987654321

Pr
oj

ec
t A

dd
re

ss
Bo

om
 P

ow
er

 L
td

. A
dd

re
ss

V 
N

o
Re

vi
si

on
 N

ot
e

By
Da

te

Dr
aw

in
g 

In
fo

m
at

io
n

FI
N

AL

Bo
om

 P
ow

er
 L

td
.

Un
it 

5E
 P

ar
k 

Fa
rm

Ch
ic

he
st

er
 R

oa
d

Ar
un

de
l

W
es

t S
us

se
x

BN
18

 0
AG

TH
IS

 D
RA

W
IN

G 
RE

M
AI

N
S 

TH
E 

PR
OP

ER
TY

 O
F 

BO
OM

 P
OW

ER
 L

TD
. A

N
D 

M
US

T 
BE

 R
ET

UR
N

ED
 F

OR
TH

W
IT

H
 U

PO
N

 R
EQ

UE
ST

.     
    

    
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
    

  T
EL

: +
44

 (0
) 1

90
3 

32
32

30

DN
O 

UP
 T

O 
33

KV
 S

UB
ST

AT
IO

N
FO

UN
DA

TI
ON

S 
&

 E
LE

VA
TI

ON
S

Dr
aw

in
g 

In
fo

m
at

io
n

Sc
al

e 
[W

he
n 

Pr
in

te
d]

St
ag

e
Dr

aw
in

g 
N

am
e

Dr
aw

in
g 

N
um

be
r

De
si

gn
ed

 B
y

1:
50

 @
 A

3

DN
O 

up
 to

 3
3k

V 
Su

bs
ta

tio
ns

Fo
un

da
tio

ns
 &

 E
le

va
tio

ns

B0
05

Sa
m

ue
l H

og
an

1.
3

SH
01

/0
4/

20
22

Fi
na

l

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 43



2.
00
m

A
B

D
E

C
F

G
J

H
I

10987654321

Pr
oj

ec
t A

dd
re

ss
Bo

om
 P

ow
er

 L
td

. A
dd

re
ss

V 
N

o
Re

vi
si

on
 N

ot
e

By
Da

te

Dr
aw

in
g 

In
fo

m
at

io
n

FI
N

AL

Bo
om

 P
ow

er
 L

td
.

Un
it 

5E
 P

ar
k 

Fa
rm

Ch
ic

he
st

er
 R

oa
d

Ar
un

de
l

W
es

t S
us

se
x

BN
18

 0
AG

TH
IS

 D
RA

W
IN

G 
RE

M
AI

N
S 

TH
E 

PR
OP

ER
TY

 O
F 

BO
OM

 P
OW

ER
 L

TD
. A

N
D 

M
US

T 
BE

 R
ET

UR
N

ED
 F

OR
TH

W
IT

H
 U

PO
N

 R
EQ

UE
ST

.     
    

    
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
    

  T
EL

: +
44

 (0
) 1

90
3 

32
32

30

Dr
aw

in
g 

In
fo

m
at

io
n

Sc
al

e 
W

he
n 

Pr
in

te
d

St
ag

e
Dr

aw
in

g 
N

am
e

Dr
aw

in
g 

N
um

be
r

De
si

gn
ed

 B
y

1:
50

 @
 A

3

B1
12

Sa
m

ue
l H

og
an

0m
2.

5m
5m

1.
4

FI
N

AL
SH

26
/0

4/
20

22

WILDF
LOWER

FE
N

CI
N

G 
EL

EV
AT

IO
N

S

Wildf
lower

 Fence
E

le
va

ti
on

s

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 44



 
 

 
 APPLICATION NO. 23/00805/FULLS 
 APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION - SOUTH 
 REGISTERED 30.03.2023 
 APPLICANT The Romsey School 
 SITE The Romsey School, Greatbridge Road, Romsey, 

SO51 8ZB, ROMSEY TOWN 
 PROPOSAL Removal of hedgerow, trees and 10 car parking bays 

to facilitate bus bay, and installation of 15 car parking 
bays along northern boundary and planting 

 AMENDMENTS 12th June 2023 – amended construction environmental 
management plan received 

  31st May 2023 – Update to description of development 
  26th May 2023 – amended plans received to remove 

the fence along the northern site boundary. Vehicle 
access plan and CEMP received 

 CASE OFFICER Kate Levey 
 

 Background paper (Local Government Act 1972 Section 100D) 
 Click here to view application 

 

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION 
1.1 The application has been called to Southern Area Planning Committee at the 

request of a member. 
 
2.0 SITE LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION 
2.1 The Romsey School is a large school within the Romsey settlement boundary. 

The main entrance to the school is from the north east corner via Priestlands. 
 
3.0 PROPOSAL 
3.1 This proposal is for removal of hedgerow, trees and 10 car parking bays to 

facilitate bus bay, and installation of 15 car parking bays along the northern 
boundary, including removal of planting along this boundary. 
 

3.2 The application originally proposed the removal of all of the hedging aligning the 
front (north east) boundary of the site adjacent to Priestlands, and replacing it 
with security fencing. However, this element has since been removed from the 
scheme and the description of development updated accordingly. The existing 
hedge along this boundary is to be retained. 

 
4.0 HISTORY 
4.1 23/00804/FULLS Demolish garage, timber shed and two lean-to structures, 

construct single storey extension to the retained building – Decision Pending 
 

4.2 23/00008/FULLS Replacement of raised pedestrian timber walkway, connecting 
two school blocks, with external fire escape staircase added to structure. 
Permission subject to conditions and notes 17.03.2023 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 45

ITEM 8



 
4.3 22/01212/FULLS Erection of single-storey extension to South Building to 

provide 3 additional SEND classrooms, 2 therapy rooms and ancillary staff 
offices; insert new window at ground floor on Western elevation; related external 
works and landscaping. Permission subject to conditions and notes 23.06.2022 
 

4.4 19/00129/FULLS Erection of storage and social shed; alterations to existing 
washroom (part retrospective). Permission subject to conditions and notes 
27.02.2019 
 

4.5 16/02108/FULLS Erection of 7.2m x 4.2m pre-fabricated building and erection of 
1.8m x 2.6m accessible washroom attached to 'Company House'. Permission 
subject to conditions and notes 06.12.2016 
 

4.6 14/01294/FULLS Campus Remodelling Work; extension to Performing Arts 
Block to provide additional music classroom and associated support areas, 
extension to West Block to provide additional technology classroom & 
associated support areas, extension to Sports Hall to provide changing room, 
vocational studies and conference facility, and extension and external 
recladding works to Inclusion Facility. Permission subject to conditions and 
notes 10.12.2014 

 
5.0 CONSULTATIONS 
5.1 Trees: no objection subject to condition 

 
5.2 Ecology: no objection subject to condition 

 
5.3 Landscape: no objection subject to conditions 

 
5.4 HCC Archaeology: No comment 

In view of the limited scale of impact and the degree to which the existing school 
development will have compromised the archaeological potential of this location, 
I would not raise any archaeological issues. 
 

5.5 HCC Highways: No objection 
 

5.6 Southern Gas: At the time of writing this report no response has been received. 
 

6.0 REPRESENTATIONS Expired 15.06.2023 
6.1 Romsey Town Council: Object 

• RTC would like to see a substantive application with proposed mitigation 
of planting of mixed native hedgerow on the boundary 

• The loss of the hedgerow at the front of the site would be detrimental to 
the character and appearance of the area 

• Potential for impact on RPAs of trees within the school and resident’s 
gardens 

• An impervious surface should be used for car parking 

• Potential for damage to neighbour’s fences 

• RTC regrets apparent lack of consultation with immediate neighbours 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 46



• Potential overhang of neighbour’s trees above parked cars may lead to 
requests to prune 

• Not convinced that increasing car park spaces and provision of a bus bay 
will result in reduced traffic 

• A construction environmental management plan should be submitted 
 

6.2 Romsey and District Society: Comment (summarised) 

• The application should be updated to include additional areas for 
construction access, materials storage or site offices 

• Construction traffic will be in close proximity to school children and 
pedestrians and a construction traffic management plan should be 
available 

 
6.3 Letters: The application generated 11 letters of objection. A summary of the 

points raised are set out below: 
 
Character and appearance of the area 

• Installation of the fence along the north (front) boundary of the site will 
result in removal of large hedgerow and trees 

• The fence would be ugly 

• The school have removed yew hedging adjacent and replaced it with  
Euroguard fencing and black mesh and this should be changed back to 
hedging 

• The existing hedges at the front of the school should be retained 
 
Amenity 

• Loss of privacy for houses backing onto the school 

• Increased noise and pollution levels for neighbouring properties 

• The proposal does not accord with policy LHW4 
  

Traffic and parking 

• There is a lot of traffic generated by parents dropping off and collecting 
children 

• A drop off point could be facilitated on the Greatbridge Road trading estate 

• The increase in car parking does not seem appropriate when it is 
important to cut car use and support sustainable transport 

• Consideration should be given to providing 10 car parking spaces not 15 
to allow tree 8 and hedgerow H2 to be retained 

• The width of the car park bays should allow doors to be opened without 
damaging neighbours fences 

 
Biodiversity 

• Concern about biodiversity loss, loss of green corridor and bats 

• Revised guidance is to be published in April by the Institute of Lighting 
Professionals and Bat Conservation Trust 

• The proposal does not accord with policy E5 

• Disagree with statements in the Construction Environmental Management 
Plan 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 47



• The mitigation measures proposed elsewhere on the site do not prevent 
fragmentation of the green infrastructure and biodiversity networks 

• The proposal does not contribute to central Government’s carbon 
reduction objectives 

 
Arboriculture 

• The creation of hard standing parking bays would damage tree RPAs 

• A large sycamore tree has been removed and should have been replaced 

• Trees and bushes will be removed to facilitate the bus bay and along the 
north boundary 

• Trees to be removed should be replaced in situ or as close as possible 

• The proposal does not accord with policy E2 

• Some of the hedgerow at the front of the school was removed recently 

• The application does not accord with policy E6. 
 
Consultation 

• Disappointed not to have been consulted by the school at an earlier stage 
out of courtesy 

 
Safety 

• The existing hedge is better for security rather than a fence 
 

 Other matters 

• This application should be linked to the other application (assumed to be 
23/00804/FULLS Demolish garage, timber shed and two lean-to 
structures, construct single storey extension to the retained building 
(pending consideration) 

• Loss of hedging to impermeable surface will increase run off 

• (Occupier of 29 Priestlands, Romsey) uses the rear room of the house as 
a hypnotherapy clinic and additional noise will make this difficult to 
continue 

• Concerned about potential damage from parked cars and maintenance of 
fence 

• Concerned about compromised security to neighbours backing onto the 
school 

• The school should communicate with the neighbours about proposals 

• Mitigating measures should be implemented and monitored for compliance 

• The amendment to the application to remove the fencing at the front of the 
site is welcomed, however this change is not reflected in the design and 
access statement at paragraphs 3.1 and 4.1 

• Consideration should be given to 10 car parking spaces rather than 15 
which would allow more trees to be retained 

• Neighbours should be given a schedule of works, contact details and 
advance warning of deliveries 

• Who is responsible for monitoring and compliance of ecological and 
arboricultural matters 

 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 48



7.0 POLICY 
7.1 Government Guidance 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) 

Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended). 
 

7.2 Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016)(TVBRLP) 

COM2: Settlement hierarchy 

E1: High quality development in the Borough 

E2: Protect, Conserve and Enhance the Landscape Character of the Borough 

E5: Biodiversity 

E8: Pollution 

LHW4: Amenity 

T1: Managing movement 

T2: Parking provision 

 

7.3 Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD) 

Romsey Town Design Statement – Area 9 Romsey Town Centre Outer Core 

 
8.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
8.1 The main planning considerations are: 

• Principle of development 

• Character and appearance of the area 

• Arboriculture 

• Biodiversity 

• Neighbouring amenity 

• Highways 

• Parking provision 
 

8.2 Principle of development 
The site lies within the settlement boundary as defined on the Inset Maps of 
the TVBRLP. In accordance with Policy COM2 of the TVBRLP development is 
permitted provided the proposal is appropriate to other policies of the Revised 
Local Plan. The proposal is assessed against relevant policies below. 
  

8.3 Character and appearance of the area 
The Romsey School is an established educational facility within the town of 
Romsey. The proposed works are located within the northern part of the site, 
whereby the majority of public views would be via the existing entrance gates 
into the site from Priestlands. Short and medium distance views into the 
northern part of the site may also be possible from the rear gardens of 
properties along Cherville Street. Short distance views of the very northern 
part of the site are possible from the rear gardens of properties 1 – 35 
Priestlands. 
 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 49



8.4 Provision of bus bay 
The proposal includes removal of 10 existing car parking spaces and a hedge 
to make space for a bus bay within the site. Views of this area of the site from 
public vantage points from Priestlands are at an oblique angle and there is 
already hard standing in this location. The removal of the hedgerow and trees 
in this location is necessary in order that the bus bay can be made wide 
enough to facilitate the parking of a bus and for widening of the adjacent 
footpath. Given the low height of this hedge and limited public view of this part 
of the site, it is not considered on balance that this element of the scheme 
would have a significant adverse impact on the character and appearance of 
the surrounding area. Furthermore, public viewpoints of the bus bay would be 
seen in the context of the wider school setting, as such it is considered that 
this part of the proposal would result in a neutral impact upon the character of 
the area. 
 

8.5 Provision of car parking bays 
The proposal also includes provision of 15 car parking bays along the northern 
boundary for staff car parking, which would result in the loss of a hedgerow 
and two trees along this boundary. Given the positioning of this hedge, views 
of it from the public realm are limited. Any views from rear gardens of 1 – 35 
Priestlands are private views and not public. It is not considered that this 
element of the proposed development would have a significant adverse impact 
on the character and appearance of the surrounding area. 
 

8.6 For the reasons discussed above, it is considered that the development does 
not give rise to an adverse impact on the character and appearance of the 
area and the proposal is in accordance with policy E1 of the Revised Local 
Plan. 
 

 The application originally proposed the removal of all of the hedging to the 
front (north east) boundary of the site adjacent to Priestlands, and 
replacement with security fencing. This element has since been removed from 
the scheme and the description of development updated accordingly. The 
existing hedge along this boundary will be retained as shown on plan 
reference 28153 – PD203 A. 
 

8.7 Arboriculture 
The application is supported by an arboricultural report and tree survey (Arbor-
eco consultancy, February 2023). This report identifies that one category B, 
five category C, 3 category U individual trees, three hedges and one group of 
trees would need to be removed to facilitate the proposed development. 
However, since the application was submitted, the proposal now seeks to 
retain one of the hedges and so the proposal seeks to remove only two 
hedges elsewhere within the site. During the case officer’s visit to the site it 
was noted that category ‘B’ tree T26 and category ‘U’ tree T27 had been 
felled, however, these were not protected trees and therefore did not require 
consent from the Local Planning Authority before their removal. The remaining 
trees within the site are also not protected, nor are they considered worthy of a 
Tree Preservation Order. However, their retention is not without merit and the 
trees identified for removal do provide some limited public amenity value 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 50



particularly as softening and screening within the context of the school. There 
would be some short to medium term harm as a result of the loss of these 
trees and hedges, but replacement planting could mitigate for the loss of these 
trees. As such, the loss of the two hedges and trees to facilitate the proposal is 
considered to be acceptable, subject to additional landscaping and planting 
being secured via condition within the site. 
 

8.8 The submitted planning statement sets out a site wide replanting scheme with 
planting of 50 new sapling trees, 20 established trees as well as a 420 sapling 
hedgerow. A subsequent email from the applicant’s agent sets out that the 
established trees being planted will initially be 1.5 metres – 2 metres tall and 
they will grow to between 5 metres – 10 metres in height. The trees will be a 
mix of silver birch/yew/cherry blossom. The sapling trees will be a mix of silver 
birch/ wild cherry/ rowan/ crab apple/ downy birch and will again grow to 5 
metres – 10 metres in height. The hedge species will be a mix of hawthorn, 
hazel, wild cherry and these are to be planted as saplings, but will grow to 
around 2 metres - 3 metres. The saplings will be planted intertwined with the 
more established trees being planted in their own areas. An indicative plan 
showing mitigation planting has also been submitted, and this shows locations 
of the 20 established trees, sapling trees and hedges proposed. The plan 
shows the intentions of the applicant and also demonstrates that there is 
sufficient space within the site to plant replacement trees. The plan is 
indicative only and accordingly, a condition has been recommended on this 
application such that a detailed planting plan shall be submitted. A further 
condition regarding schedule of landscape management and maintenance for 
a minimum period of 5 years is also recommended. 
 

8.9 The submitted arboricultural report is accompanied by additional information 
about protection of retained trees. The Arboricultural Officer is satisfied that 
the retained trees will be suitably protected as long as the tree protection 
measures detailed in the submitted arboricultural method statement and 
illustrated on the tree protection plan are implemented. Accordingly, conditions 
are recommended relating to the tree report and tree protection plan to ensure 
that it is installed and retained during the lifetime of the development. A further 
condition is recommended to ensure that the replacement planting is carried 
out within the first available planting season following the completion of the 
development. These conditions ensure that the proposal accords with policy 
E2 of the Revised Local Plan. 
 

8.10 Biodiversity 
The application is supported by an ecological impact assessment (Ecosa, 
March 2023) and also a Construction Environmental Management Plan. The 
site boundary is located 200 metres west of the River Test SSSI. The 
ecological assessment states that ‘the habitats within the site are common and 
widespread within the wider landscape. The dominant habitats on site contains 
a low diversity of plant species and are of low ecological value. The 
hedgerows and scattered trees have the highest relative ecological value.’ The 
scattered trees observed on site were assessed as having negligible suitability 
to support roosting bats due to a lack of suitable features. However, there is 
some suitable habitat on site to support commuting and foraging bats. The 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 51



report explains the reasoning why certain protected species are not deemed to 
be threatened by the development – these species are otter, badger, hazel 
dormouse, water vole, ground nesting or wintering bird species, reptiles, great 
crested newts, and invertebrates. Habitats present on the site are suitable for 
nesting birds and European hedgehog. 
 

8.11 The report concludes that no direct impacts on the River Test SSSI. The report 
recommends that spill kits are used and that materials and machinery are 
stored as far away from the river as possible. This will protect against any 
accidental pollution to the River Test SSSI. The removal of vegetation is 
proposed to be compensated for by planting of 20 established trees within the 
wider site boundary. The ecological report states that the proposed mitigation 
planting will compensate for the loss of foraging and commuting habitat for 
bats. The removal of the hedgerows within the site will be mitigated for by the 
planting of additional hedgerow on the southern part of the site. The loss of the 
scattered trees, introduced shrubs and hedgerow on the site will result in a 
loss of breeding habitat for birds and could result in the disturbance and/or 
damage/destruction of an active nest. The removal of vegetation should be 
avoided during the bird nesting season and if this is not possible, then a 
qualified ecologist should inspect the vegetation prior to work taking place. 
Any identified active nests should be left undisturbed. Regarding hedgehogs, 
works should be timed to avoid the hibernation season but should hedgehog 
be encountered during the works, the hedgehog should be left alone and 
allowed to disperse on its own accord. 
 

8.12 The Council’s Ecologist has reviewed the ecological impact assessment and is 
satisfied that the report reflects the current condition of the site. Due to the 
proximity of the site to the River Test SSSI, a Construction Environmental 
Management Plan (CEMP) has been submitted and it is secured by condition 
that the measures within the CEMP are adhered to during the construction 
phase. Further conditions are recommended regarding external lighting and 
replacement planting. Subject to these conditions, it is considered that the 
proposal does not conflict with the objectives of policy E5. 
 

8.13 Amenity 
Due to the nature of the proposal and the fact that no buildings are proposed, 
there would be no impact to any neighbouring properties in terms of loss of 
daylight, sunlight or overbearing impact. An existing close board fence of 1.8 
metres in height exists along the northern boundary of the site, which 
demarcates the boundary with 1 – 35 Priestlands. As such, the loss of the 
hedge adjacent to this close board fence within the site would not result in loss 
of privacy to these neighbouring properties. Consideration has been given to 
potential noise impacts generated by vehicle parking and manoeuvring 
adjacent to the boundary fence with 1 – 35 Priestlands. The proposed spaces 
along the northern boundary will be used for staff parking only, and so vehicle 
movements in and out of the proposed car parking spaces are likely to be 
minimal and reduced to staff working hours. There is separate visitor parking 
available near reception which would be used on an ad-hoc basis. This visitor 
parking is located in excess of 30 metres away from the nearest residential 
property whereby frequent use of the visitor parking facilities is not anticipated 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 52



to generate a harmful noise or pollution impact. For these reasons, the 
scheme is considered to accord with Policies E8 and LHW4 of the Revised 
Local Plan. 
 

8.14 Parking provision and highways 
The proposal seeks to continue utilising the main school entrance access and 
exit points onto Priestlands. Submitted drawing reference 28153 – PD200A 
demonstrates the traffic circulation route around the site, whereby a one-way 
system would be used to access the bus bay and proposed parking spaces. A 
Construction Traffic Management Plan (CTMP) and a Construction 
Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) have been submitted. It has been 
demonstrated that access for construction traffic would be via the main school 
entrance. The likely vehicle types accessing the site during the construction 
phase are 3.5 tonne flatbed trucks, 3 tonne pickup trucks, 3.5 tonne van and 
32 tonne tipper lorry. Temporary barriers will be placed around the site so 
pedestrians are unable to access certain areas which could be unsafe. The 
HCC Highways Officer has reviewed the proposal and the CTMP and has 
raised no objection. A condition is recommended such that the measures 
within the CTMP are adhered to during the construction process. Subject to 
this condition, the proposal is considered to accord with policy T1 of the 
Revised Local Plan. 
 

8.15 The proposal does not result in a requirement for additional pupils to be 
enrolled at the school, or for additional staff to be employed. The proposal 
would result in a net increase of 5 spaces within the northern part of the site. 
As a result, there would be a total of 140 parking bays across the whole site. 
Parking provisions should be made in accordance with onsite school parking 
guidelines prepared by Hampshire County Council. The agent has explained 
that the school has 77 teachers and 105 non-teaching staff and the guidance 
suggests 147 spaces for the site. Currently there are 137 spaces across the 
site which is a shortfall. However, the proposal includes provision of a net 
increase of spaces. On balance it is considered that there is sufficient parking 
available on site. The parking guidelines explain that for bays parallel to, or 
abutting, a carriageway, aisle or drive the preferred size should be 6.0m x 
2.5m to allow vehicles to manoeuvre into the bay when adjoining bays are 
occupied. The proposed parking bays along the northern part of the site meet 
these requirements. 
 

8.16 The County Highways Officer has assessed the proposals in terms of highway 
safety and raises no objection to the proposal. The proposal includes sufficient 
parking provision, and this on-site provision reduces the impact upon the 
highway network. However, to ensure that the highway network is protected, 
conditions are recommended which require the parking spaces to be laid in 
advance of first use, and retained in perpetuity. Subject to this condition, the 
proposal is considered to be in accordance with policies T1 and T2 of the 
Revised Local Plan. 
 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 53



8.17 Third party comments about the provision of a drop off point on the 
Greatbridge Road trading estate are noted. This land is outside of the 
application site and any such potential arrangements would be a private, civil 
matter between the land owner and the school. 
 

8.18 Other matters – third party comments 

• Third party comments have been received about not being consulted by 
the school, however, this is not a requirement prior to submitting the 
application. 

• Comments received state that this application should be linked to the 
other application (assumed to be 23/00804/FULLS ‘Demolish garage, 
timber shed and two lean-to structures, construct single storey 
extension to the retained building’. Application 23/00804/FULLS is still 
pending consideration, and will be assessed on its own merits. 

• Third party concern has been raised about loss of hedging to 
impermeable surface and associated increase in run off. However, 
given the modest scale of these elements and the retention of the open 
field areas, it is not considered that there will be any materially 
significant increase in flood risk or surface water flooding. As a result, 
the application is in accordance with Policy E7. 

• Concern has been raised about potential damage to parked cars and 
maintenance of the fence. However, these are private civil matters 
which can be afforded no weight. 

• Concern has been raised about compromised security to neighbours 
backing onto the school. However, there is an existing close board 
fence which is proposed to be retained between the school and the 
neighbouring properties within Priestlands. Furthermore, there is natural 
surveillance from habitable rooms of existing properties within 
Priestlands. It is considered that the proposal does not give rise to an 
adverse impact in terms of facilitating crime. 

• Third party concern has been raised about the removal of yew hedging 
and replacement with Euroguard fencing and black mesh. However, 
this land is outside of the application site boundary and not a 
consideration under this application. 

• Comments received state that the design and access statement still 
includes provision of fencing. The fact that the design and access 
statement has not been updated is acknowledged, however, the fence 
originally proposed is not shown on the approved plan and the existing 
hedge is shown for retention. An approved plan condition is included 
and this will clearly stipulate which plans development must be 
undertaken in accordance with. 

• Comments have been received about installation of 10 car parking 
spaces rather than 15 which could allow more trees to be retained. 
However, the application needs to be assessed on its own merits and 
on the basis of the submission. 

• Comments have been received about a schedule of works, contact 
details and advance warning of deliveries being provided to the 
neighbours, however, these matters are not within control of the LPA 
and are civil matters. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 54



• Comments have been received about measures within ecological and 
arboricultural reports being adhered to. Ultimately it is the applicant’s 
responsibility to ensure that measures secured by condition are 
adhered to and the applicant is bound by the habitats regulations. If the 
conditions are not adhered to, then the matter can be passed to 
planning enforcement to investigate. 

 
9.0 CONCLUSION 
9.1 The proposed scheme is considered to accord with the Test Valley Borough 

Revised Local Plan (2016) and is therefore acceptable. 
 
10.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 PERMISSION subject to: 
 1. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except 

in complete accordance with the details shown on the submitted 
plans, numbers 
28153-PD200 A, 28153-PD201 A, 28153-PD202 C, 28153-PD199, 
28153-PD206, 28153-PD203A, 28153-PD204A 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 

 2. The bus bay and parking spaces along the northern boundary 
hereby permitted shall not be occupied until space has been laid 
out and provided as appropriate for the intended use, in 
accordance with the approved plan (28153 – PD202C) and this 
space shall thereafter be reserved for such purposes at all times. 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Test 
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy T1. 

 3. Notwithstanding details already submitted on the submitted 
mitigation planting plan, a planting plan, detailing tree and 
hedgerow species, sizes and numbers, locations and densities of 
planting shall be submitted to and agreed by the Local Planning 
Authority. Hedgerow planting shall be native, and details to be 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority shall include 
percentage mix of hedgerow species. The new trees and 
hedgerows, as detailed, shall be planted in the approved positions 
in the first planting season following the completion of the 
development. These must be planted in accordance with the 
recommendations in BS8545 (2014) Trees: from nursery to 
independence in the landscape - Recommendations. If any of the 
proposed trees or hedgerow die following planting, they shall be 
replaced with similar species in similar positions within six 
months of the death of each specimen. 
Reason: To ensure the continuation of canopy cover in the area 
and enhance the development. 

 4. Prior to first use of the bus bay or the parking spaces along the 
northern boundary hereby permitted, a schedule of landscape 
management and maintenance for a minimum period of 5 years 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The landscape management plan shall include 
long term design objectives, management responsibilities and 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 55



maintenance schedules for all landscape areas. The landscaping 
shall be maintained in accordance with the approved schedule. 
Any trees or planting that are removed, die or become, in the 
opinion of the Local Planning Authority, seriously damaged or 
defective within this period, shall be replaced before the end of the 
current or first available planting season following the failure, 
removal or damage of the planting. 
Reason: To enable the development to respect, complement and 
positively integrate into the character of the area in accordance 
with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policies E1 
and E2. 

 5. Development shall proceed in accordance with the measures set 
out in Section 5 of the EIA by ECOSA (March 2023), the 
Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) and 
proposed plan (Drawing number 28153- PD203A). 
Reason: To protect and enhance biodiversity in accordance with 
the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, Habitat and Species 
Regulations 2017, NERC Act 2006, NPPF and Policy E5 of the 
Revised Test Valley Local Plan 2016. 

 6. No external lighting shall be installed unless in accordance with 
details that have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
local planning authority. The details shall include plans and details 
sufficient to show the location, type, specification, luminance and 
angle of illumination of all lights and a light spread diagram 
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the area and To prevent 
disturbance to protected species in accordance with the National 
Planning Policy Framework and policy E5 the Revised Test Valley 
Local Plan 2016. 

 7. No machinery shall be operated, no process shall be carried out 
and no deliveries taken at or despatched from the site outside the 
following times 07:30 – 18:00; nor at any time on Sundays, Bank or 
Public Holidays.                                                                                                           
Reason:  In the interest of the amenities of local residents in 
accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) 
Policy LHW4. 

 Notes to applicant: 
 1. In reaching this decision Test Valley Borough Council (TVBC) has 

had regard to the National Planning Policy Framework and takes a 
positive and proactive approach to development proposals 
focused on solutions. TVBC work with applicants and their agents 
in a positive and proactive manner offering a pre-application 
advice service and updating applicants/agents of issues that may 
arise in dealing with the application and where possible 
suggesting solutions. 
 
 
 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 56



 2. Bats and their roosts receive strict legal protection under the 
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017. All work 
must stop immediately if bats, or evidence of bat presence (e.g. 
droppings, bat carcasses or insect remains), are encountered at 
any point during this development. Should this occur, further 
advice should be sought from Natural England and/or a 
professional ecologist. 

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 57



The Romsey School

(secondary)

Lansdowne Court

PRIESTLANDS

2a

29

6
9

7
9

ESS

4

L Twrs

FB

14

9

2

5

8

6
3

7

Bramleys

Chislehurst

1

2

4

Gas

Gov

FB

13

School House

6
5

1

REPRODUCED FROM ORDNANCE SURVEY MAPPING

 WITH THE PERMISSION OF THE CONTROLLER OF

 HER MAJESTY’S STATIONERY OFFICER © CROWN COPYRIGHT. 

UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT 

AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.

TEST VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL LICENCE No. 100024295 2013

N
Siteplan

23/00805/FULLS

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 58



� ��� �� � �� �	 
������� ��� ������������������	
������������ ! �� "#"$%&'()*+'*,&+$--" .$$/++'(01&*($&1%#$$(%2%3* (%4"5()&+$$"16$7%8 *+-$$9.:$6.;<$7799 =%8$$9.:$6.;>$?9?9 +4%)-$$"#"@"#"A%&'()*+'*5B'1B,C DDDEFGFHIJKLMNOKNPEKQERS"#"$%&'()*+'*,&+$--" '(%&*+&+#$%&'()*+'*5$$*103$"-%33)3T )3*+&)1&$#+5)T3$'135,-*%3*5�� �� ������U� ����V����W�����X��������W��� �U�����U�Y�U�� �����Z��UY� ��[� ���\]\̂_̀abcdeadf̀êgg\̂��� ��� ��� �h����Z��������U����������Z�� ���������[��� �� �i��� U����[���j��U ��� � ��U��Z���U��U��k �����U����U���� ��h������j�������U ��Z�U��� ������������� �[����� ��� U�����j������ �������U �� ��� U[U����[���� �U����Z����k [UY������U����U�������� ��h�������U��Z��[������� �������� �U����U���k ������U� U���[���� �U�����U�Y�U���h��Z���U  ���U ��� �Z�U�� ������ ��[� �������U �� k �������U�Y������Z��Z�������hl�� � ����[���������������� � ��� �������������[� ���h�U��U�Y�������U �k ����� ��� �������j�U����hl�� � �� ����ZZ�U� ��� ��[���� ��� ���� ��YU����� �����[U��������Y���� ���� ��� �����Z��Z�����k ���Z����Z��U��������k��VVV�V!!�k ������������� �� � ����������j���� �U�Z��l�� ��U�� ������������ ��m���[� �n �i��Z U������U�j��U�����U�Y��Z��U[U���� ������[����� ��� U�� ����i��Z U�������U� �������U����������h��[�����U �U�� �� ���UY������U�j���������� k "#"$%&'()*+'*,&+$--"�� ���� �����j�����U�U������ ����������������� ���� h�U�Y����o������� p��Z��U��o��q����r	 s��Z������U ��t�Z������� � �U ��	���j�s��� u�pv ��h���s����U�Y X�n�VV������X�sw�V�xs
xyyty�xw��U�Y��Z�� ���  ����U�� ������� ��VkV�k��u�pv �zx���n�VV{ V�����V�����V�����n�VVTest Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 59



������ ���	�
��������� �����������������	����������	������� �����
��������� ���������������������	����	������������ ��	�������������������� 
�������������	���������������������������� ���������� �������������������������!�" � � #������ ���	�
��������� �����������������	����������	������� �����
��������� ���������������������	��������	������������ ��	���������������� $����	�����������	��%�	����������� �����%���	��"�#&&������������	������� ��	���" '�	������������������	���������������������	������ ��������������� '�	��������������������������" ����	������(�	� )������ �����������������	���������*�����	��������	��	 ����������������	����"���� �����	� ��������������������	������������*����� ���	�
��������� +%�	������������	������������������������	� �������������������	������������������� ��	����� !�" , �& �� �� �#!�" �������
����-���.�	� +���������)������ +%�	����)�����������	�� $������
����/�-���.�	��0���������������	�" ��������1�����������������0����� 2����3�������2��4��������� 567897:; ;<95 567897:; ;<95=> ?<8 ?@AB<:8C@D:5EF@GH9 ?<95?<95 IJIIIKLMNONPQRSTRJU����	���� VW VVVX VYZ[Z\]̂_̀abc_bd̂c\eeZ f\\gcc_̀hîb̀\̂i][\\̀]j]kb ]̀lZm̀âc\\Zin\o]p bce\\qfr\nfst\ooqq u]p\\qfr\nfsv\wqwq cl]ae\\Z[ZxZ[Zy]̂_̀abc_bmz_izd{ |||}~�~�����������}��}��Z[Z\]̂_̀abc_bd̂c\eeZ _̀]̂bĉc[\]̂_̀abc_bm\\bihk\Ze]kkak� akbĉaî\[cma�k\_ikmdeb]kbm:@958 8�<�5ED7C9�EE>WE��E�E<VEE�EEX>E��E�E<Y9�78ECH<D7:;E78E9�5E�@��H7;�9E@�E9�5E������������� ���¡¡��<:C �G89E:@9E¢5EH5�H@CG�5CE7:ED�@�5E@HE�<H9E@HEG85CE�@HE9�5 565�G97@:E@�ED@H£8ED79�@G9E9�57HE�5H�7887@:¤ <��EC7�5:87@:8E9@E¢5E��5�£5CE@:E8795E�H7@HE9@E�@��5:�5�5:9 @�E�@:89HG�97@:ED@H£8E<:CE9�5E<H��795�9E:@97�75CE@�E<:� C78�H5�<:��¤ �7;GH5CEC7�5:87@:8E<H5E9@E¢5EG85CE7:E�H5�5H5:�5E9@E8�<�5C C7�5:87@:8¤ :@EC5A7<97@:E�H@�E9�78ECH<D7:;ED7��E¢5E�5H�7995CED79�@G9E�H7@H �@:85:9E@�E9�5E<H��795�9¤ <��ECH<D7:;8E<H5E�H5�<H5CE8G¢¥5�9E9@E<E�G��E�5<8GH5CE<:C 89HG�9GH<�E8GHA5�E@�E9�5E¢G7�C7:;8E<:CE8795¤ <��E89HG�9GH<�ED@H£E78E8G¢¥5�9E9@E9�5E<��@7:9�5:9E@�E<E89HG�9GH<� 5:;7:55HE9@E�@:�7H�E<:CE<;H55E9�5E89HG�9GH<�E�H@�@8<�8¤ @8E�H@�<�E�7�5:�5E:@¤EVWWWXW¦¦§¤ H5A<VE8�<�5C<9589<9G8CH<D:��5�£5CC59<7��H@¥5�9��75:9 <YE8�<�5�5<�9�ËE8<�59�© 56�5�97@:<�EH78£8E7:A@�A7:;E8�5�7�7�E�59�@C8E@�E�@:89HG�97@: @HE56�5�97@:<�E�<7:95:<:�5E788G58E�<:E¢5E�@G:CED79�7:E9�5 C587;:5H8EH78£E<88588�5:9¤ Z[Z\]̂_̀abc_bd̂c\eeZ:@958C<95��5�£5CH5A787@:CH<D: ª�5E«@�85�E¬��@@� ?H5<9¢H7C;5E«CE«@�85� ®<��8�7H5E¬̄>VE=°± ²H@�@85CE¬795E³��H@A5�5:98 ²H@�@85CE²�<: µ́®¶ ¶<HEXY²�<::7:; V©VWWV©XWWX=V>YE�E²·XWY¸²B̧¹¹³¹?¸®5C;5H@DEH59<7:5C �H@�@85CE�5:�7:;EH5�@A5CXX¤W>¤XYµ́®¶ Eº̧VEV©VWW» WX�X�¦�¼�=�VW�V©VWWTest Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 60



������ ���	�
��������� �����������������	����������	������� �����
��������� ���������������������	����	������������ ��	�������������������� 
�������������	���������������������������� ���������� �������������������������!�" � � # ������ ���	�
��������� �����������������	����������	������� �����
��������� ���������������������	��������	������������ ��	���������������� $����	�����������	��%�	����������� �����%���	��"�#&&������������	������� ��	���" '�	������������������	���������������������	������ ��������������� '�	��������������������������" ����	������(�	� )������ �����������������	���������*�����	��������	��	 ����������������	����"���� �����	� ��������������������	������������*����� ���	�
��������� +%�	������������	������������������������	� �������������������	������������������� ��	����� !�" , �& �� �� �#!�" �������
����-���.�	� +���������)������ +%�	����)�����������	�� $������
����/�-���.�	��0���������������	�" ��������1�����������������0����� 2����3�������2��4��������� 5678 79:;:< =>> ?@?ABCDEFGHDGICHAJJ? KAALHHDEMNCGEACNB@AAEBOBPG EBQ?REFCHAA?NSATBU GHJAAVKWASKXYATTVV ZBUAAVKWASKX[A\V\V HQBFJAA?@?]?@?̂BCDEFGHDGR_DN_Ì aaabcdcefghijklhkmbhnbop?@?ABCDEFGHDGICHAJJ? DEBCGHCH@ABCDEFGHDGRAAGNMPA?JBPPFPq FPGHCFNCA@HRFqPADNPRIJGBPGRrstuv vwxyuz{|}t~zz��z��z�zx>zz�zz��z��z�zx�t~|vz}�x{|r�z|vzt~uzws���|�~tzs�zt~uz���������������������xr} ��vtzrstz�uz�u��s}�wu}z|rz{~syuzs�z�x�tzs�z�vu}z�s�zt~u u�uw�t|srzs�z{s��vz{|t~s�tzt~u|�z�u��|vv|sr� xyyz}|�urv|srvztsz�uzw~uw�u}zsrzv|tuz��|s�ztszws��urwu�urt s�zwsrvt��wt|srz{s��vzxr}zt~uzx�w~|tuwtzrst|�|u}zs�zxr� }|vw�u�xrw�� �|���u}z}|�urv|srvzx�uztsz�uz�vu}z|rz��u�u�urwuztszvwxyu} }|�urv|srv� rsz}u�|xt|srz��s�zt~|vz}�x{|r�z{|yyz�uz�u��|ttu}z{|t~s�tz��|s� wsrvurtzs�zt~uzx�w~|tuwt� xyyz}�x{|r�vzx�uz��u�x�u}zv���uwtztszxz��yyz�uxv��u}zxr} vt��wt��xyzv���u�zs�zt~uz��|y}|r�vzxr}zv|tu� xyyzvt��wt��xyz{s��z|vzv���uwtztszt~uzx��s|rt�urtzs�zxzvt��wt��xy ur�|ruu�ztszwsr�|��zxr}zx��uuzt~uzvt��wt��xyz��s�svxyv� svz��s�x�zy|wurwuzrs�z>�������=� �u�x>zvwxyu}xtuvtxt�v}�x{rw~uw�u}}utx|y��s�uwtwy|urt x�zvwxyu~uxyt~z�zvx�ut�  u�wu�t|srxyz�|v�vz|r�sy�|r�zv�uw|�|wz�ut~s}vzs�zwsrvt��wt|sr s�zu�wu�t|srxyz�x|rturxrwuz|vv�uvzwxrz�uz�s�r}z{|t~|rzt~u }uv|�ru�vz�|v�zxvvuvv�urt� ?@?ABCDEFGHDGICHAJJ?rstuv}xtuw~uw�u}�u�|v|sr}�x{r ¡~uz¢s�vu�z£w~ssy ¤�uxt��|}�uz¢}¥z¢s�vu� ¦x��v~|�u¥z£§�>z̈©6 ª�s�svu}z£|tuz«���s�u�urtv ª�s�svu}zªyxr ¬5¦ x�z��ªyxrr|r� > >��> ����̈>��z�zª®���¯ª°̄±±«±¤¯±stuvz�u�u��|r�zts ~u}�u�s{z�z�urw|r� �u�s�u}��������¬5¦ z²̄>z> >��³ ��������́�̈>��> >��Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 61



�� � ��� ��� � � �� �	
 ���	�
����������� �	�� ��� ��������� !"#� �$%���&��'( '��)��)�)�)�')�')�&��' ���
�	��
*+�*,��*-.��� ����
�	��*+�*,���.
.����	������
�	��*+�*,���.
.����	������
�	��*+�*,���.
.����	�� �+.
���	�.�/�.
��+��*�01�./+���2��+��34356789:;<8;=7<5>>3�	�� )�
������?����0����*���.���+�-�����0	�������
���2����+� �@�*��.����2����,
��.�+�����+�.��0��).

.��A 	--��.)��
.��
����?��*+�*,������
.���0�.������*�))��*�)��� �2�*��
���*�.������,
�	����+��	�*+.��*�����.2.����2�	�1 �.
*��0	�*1A 2./������.)��
.��
�	������?���
���.��0��2����*�����
*	-�� �.)��
.��
A ������.	�.���2��)��+.
���	�.�/��.--�?��0��).������.�+����0�.�� *��
�����2��+��	�*+.��*�A 	--���	�.�/
�	���0��0	����
�?B�*�����	�2�--�)�	
�����	�� 
���*���	-�
����1��2��+��?�.-�.�/
�	���
.��A 	--�
���*���	-����,�.
�
�?B�*������+��	00�.��)�����2�	�
���*���	- ��/.��������*��2.�)�	���	/�����+��
���*���	-�0��0�
	-
A �
�0��)	0�-.*��*����A��'''�'CC�A���	.-0��B�*� 
*	-���.��+���'�))�D�	���E�����))�D�	�FGHIIJKLMNOKGNMPQRGKPSPTO KPUVWKXNIGVMYGZP[ OI\G]F̂GYF_̀GZZ]] aP[G]F̂GYF_bGc]c] IUPX\GGVQVdVQVePNJKXOIJOWfJMfgh iiijklkmnopqrstpsujpvjwxVQVGPNJKXOIJOgNIG\\V JKPNOINIQGPNJKXOIJOWGGOMLTGV\PTTXTy XTOINXMNGQIWXyTGJMTWg\OPTOW 	��
*	-��	����	�� 	��
*	-�+�	-�+�z�
	2��1& �@*�0�.��	-��.
,
�.���-�.�/�
0�*.2.*�)��+��
��2�*��
���*�.�� ����@*�0�.��	-�)	.����	�*��.

��
�*	��?��2������.�+.���+� ��
./���
��.
,�	

�

)���A {+��|�)
�1�}*+��- ���	�?�.�/��|�~�|�)
�1 �	)0
+.��~�}������� ���0�
�����+.*-� %**�

��-	����� �	1����-	��.�/ ������E�������'� �&��'�&�''�%�����Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 62



 
 

 
 APPLICATION NO. 23/01508/FULLS 
 APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION - SOUTH 
 REGISTERED 12.06.2023 
 APPLICANT Mr N Ramiah 
 SITE Woolley Green Farm, Dores Lane, Braishfield, SO51 

0QJ,  BRAISHFIELD/AMPFIELD 
 PROPOSAL Erect 2 self and custom build dwellings, convert coach 

house to annex and garage for plot 1, erect garage for 
plot 2, demolish all remaining barns and buildings, and 
the temporary siting of mobile home during the 
construction period only 

 AMENDMENTS • Amended ecological information submitted 
30/06/2023 

 CASE OFFICER Mark Staincliffe 
 

 Background paper (Local Government Act 1972 Section 100D) 
 Click here to view application 

 

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION 
1.1 The application is presented to Southern Area Planning Committee as it 

represents a departure from the Local Plan and objections have been received 
within the specified time. 

 
2.0 SITE LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION 
2.1 The site relates to an area of land that has historically been used for 

agricultural purposes in association with Woolley Green Farm. The existing 
farmhouse associated with the farm is located to the north west of the site. The 
site includes a number of buildings that reflect the former agricultural use. 
 

2.2 The site is accessed by a private drive directly off Dores Lane and is bounded 
by trees and hedges. Monarchs Way, a Public Right of Way (PROW) is located 
directly to the east of the site. 

 
3.0 PROPOSAL 
3.1 The proposals involve the removal of all existing agricultural buildings on the 

site except for a brick built barn which is understood to have originally been 
used as a coach house for the original farmhouse. Once the existing buildings 
are removed, the applicant is proposing to construct 2 detached dwellings and 
associated outbuildings. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 63

ITEM 9



3.2 Plot 1 
Plot 1 would include the retained coach house which would be modified to 
provide ancillary accommodation to the proposed dwelling which would be 
located to the south east, in a similar position to one of the existing barns 
proposed for demolition. The dwelling proposed for Plot 1 would be a two-
storey, 4 bedroom property with a pitched roof with a maximum eaves height of 
approximately 5.4 metres and a ridge height of approximately 7.5 metres. The 
proposed dwelling is of a contemporary design utilising: 

• Non reflective standing seam zinc roof carried down and rolled over the 
eaves down to first floor level over; 

• Horizontal boarding. 
 

3.3 Plot 2 
Plot 2, to the north of the site would include a detached, two-storey, 4 bedroom 
dwelling with associated, detached outbuilding used for garaging. The 
proposed dwelling would have similar proportions to plot 1 and would use the 
same materials. 
 

3.4 Mobile home 
The proposals include the provision of a mobile home which is to be located on 
the site during the construction of the development. This is proposed to be 
located adjacent to the southern boundary of the site, to the south of Plot 1. A 
condition is proposed to ensure that it is removed following the first occupation 
of any dwelling on site. 
 

3.5 Landscaping proposals: 
The application includes a landscape strategy which proposes the following: 

• 1.8m high timber post and rail fence with stock fencing set, where 
possible within a native hedge and if not possible with a native hedge on 
the inside. 

• Gardens to be enclosed by a 1.2m high hornbeam and beech hedge 
with stock fencing. 

• Proposed new tree, shrub and wildflower planting. 

• Resin bound driveways, permeable block paving to patios. 
 

3.6 Ecological enhancement proposals: 

• Installation of bat boxes 

• Buffer zone between woodland and proposed residential uses 

• Installation of bird boxes 

• Provision of shallow, natural ponds in the proposed paddock areas 

• Openings within the boundary treatments to allow the passage of large 
mammals such as hedgehogs. 

• Provision of reptile hibernacula and dead wood/compost piles. 
 

3.7 Supporting documents 
The following documents have been submitted to support the application: 

• Landscape Strategy (Landshape, June 2023) 

• Ecological Report (Aluco Ecology Ltd, April 2023) 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 64



• Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA) including 
Methodology (Landshape, April 2023) 

• Nutrient Assessment and Budget (Aqua Callidus Consulting, April 2023) 

• Planning, Design and Access Statement (Wessex Planning, June 2023) 
 

4.0 HISTORY 
4.1 23/00988/FULLS - Demolition of all existing barns except for coach house and 

construction of two dwellings (one self-build) with garages and outbuildings 
together with temporary siting of mobile home during construction period – 
WITHDRAWN 30/05/2023 
 

4.2 21/01646/PDQS - Application to determine if prior approval is required for 
proposed change of use of agricultural building to dwellinghouse (Class C3) 
and for building operations reasonably necessary for the conversion PRIOR 
APPROVAL REQUIRED AND GRANTED 09/11/2021 
 

4.3 21/01205/PDQS - Application to determine if prior approval is required for 
proposed change of use of agricultural building to dwellinghouse (Class C3), 
including removal of existing lean to and addition of doors and windows – 
PRIOR APPROVAL REQUIRED AND GRANTED 07/10/2021 
 

4.4 20/03262/PDQS - Application to determine if prior approval is required for 
proposed change of use of agricultural buildings to 2 dwellinghouses (Class 
C3), and for building operations reasonably necessary for the conversion 
WITHDRAWN 18.02.2021 
 

4.5 15/00116/AGNS - Agricultural notification - Erection of lean to building 
adjoining an existing open fronted shed – PRIOR APPROVAL NOT 
REQUIRED 16.02.2015 

 
5.0 CONSULTATIONS 
5.1 Ecology - 

 
5.2 Highways – No objection 

 
5.3 Environmental Protection – No objection subject to conditions 

 
5.4 Landscape – No objection subject to conditions 

 
5.5 Trees – Comment 

“In order to fully assess the arboricultural implications of the proposed 
development an arboricultural impact assessment, method statement and tree 
protection plan that complies with the requirements of BS5837:2012 ‘Trees in 
relation to design, demolition and construction – Recommendations’ will need 
to be submitted.” 
 

 
 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 65



6.0 REPRESENTATIONS Expired 14.07.2023 
6.1 Braishfield Parish Council – Object on the following grounds (summarised): 

 
1. Proposals are in a countryside location where open market housing is 

not appropriate other than that demonstrated by Class Q consents 
2. Development not acceptable in principle 
3. Class Q conversions work as it saves the buildings from further 

deterioration and does not encroach into the countryside. 
4. Class Q consents are low key and not intrusive. 
5. The proposed dwellings are much larger in scale – would impact on the 

surrounding landscape. 
6. Plot 2 will impact on adjacent Monarch’s Way which is an important and 

historic footpath. 
7. Plot 2 will impact those properties on Dores Lane – would spoil 

countryside views. 
8. Incorporation of a lot of glass would not sit comfortably and would not 

integrated with the rural, agricultural character of the surrounding area. 
9. Size of gardens are excessive. 

10. Choice of external materials – no relationship with the existing buildings 
11. Refurbishment of existing units would relate to the surrounding area 

better. 
12. Development would result in significant harm to coherence of ecological 

network – adequate information has not been provided on the 
measures to safeguard protected species. 

13. Development would be contrary to the guidelines set out on page 36 of 
the Village Design Statement (VDS). 

 
7.0 POLICY 
7.1 Government Guidance 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) 

 

7.2 Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016)(RLP) 

COM2 – Settlement Hierarchy 

E1 – High Quality Development in the Borough 

E2 – Protect, Conserve and Enhance the Landscape Character of the Borough 

E5 – Biodiversity 

E7 – Water Management 

LHW4 – Amenity 

T1 – Managing Movement 

T2 – Parking Standards 

 

7.3 Village Design Statement 

• Braishfield 

 
 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 66



8.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
8.1 The main planning considerations are: 

• The principle of development 

• Impact on the character and appearance of the surrounding area and 
landscape character 

• Trees 

• Ecology 

• Residential amenity 

• Highways 
 

8.2 The principle of development 
The site is situated in a countryside location as defined by the Test Valley 
Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 (RLP). Policy COM2 of the RLP only allows 
development in such areas where it is considered a type appropriate in a 
countryside location as defined by other policies within the RLP (COM2(a)) or if 
there is an essential need for the development to have such a location 
(COM2(b)). In this instance, the proposals are neither considered to be of a type 
appropriate in the countryside (explanation relating to COM12 below), nor is 
there considered to be an essential need for the development of open market 
housing in the countryside. The proposals are therefore contrary to policy COM2 
and are not considered acceptable in principle. The proposals are considered to 
be a departure from the development plan. 
 

8.3 COM12 
Policy COM12 of the RLP allows for replacement dwellings in the countryside. 
The proposals seek replacement dwellings for those previously approved under 
Class Q, Schedule 2 of The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development)(England) Order 2015 (GPDO) (see paras.4.1 and 4.2). However, 
neither of the conversions approved under Class Q have been implemented and 
the buildings remain/were last used for agricultural purposes and are not 
considered to be dwellings. Policy COM12 of the RLP is therefore not engaged. 
 

8.4 Other material planning considerations – fall-back position 
Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and Section 
70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 require that applications for 
planning permission be determined in accordance with the development plan 
unless considerations indicate otherwise. This is echoed by the National 
Planning Policy Framework. In addition, the RLP is considered an up-to-date 
development plan which is not silent on development within the countryside and 
thus full weight must be given to it. However, it is considered that in this instance, 
there are other material considerations that must be taken into consideration in 
the determination of the application. 
 

8.5 Prior approval has been granted and remains valid for two barns on the site to be 
converted into dwellings. It could be considered that the barns have a realistic 
prospected of eventually completing their changes of use to become lawful, 
residential units, whereby COM12 would then apply if the was submitted once 
the prior approval consents were implemented. Furthermore, the proposals do 
not seek a net increase in the number of dwellings on the site. 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 67



8.6 The principle of a fall-back position was examined in anappeal 
(APP/C1760/W/16/3154235 – Barrow Hill Barns, Goodworth Clatford). In that 
case the site benefited from a notification for prior approval under Class J (now 
Class O) of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) 
Order 1995 (GPDO) for the conversion of the existing building into 5 residential 
units. 
 

8.7 In considering the probability that the permitted scheme would be feasible and 
would be implemented if the appeal scheme for the replacement of the building 
for 5 dwellings failed at appeal the Inspector stated: 
 
“I have no evidence before me to doubt the appellant in respect of these matters. 
I therefore find that the fall-back position to convert the building into 5 dwellings 
is therefore more than a theoretical prospect; there is likely to be a high 
probability that the scheme would be constructed if the appeal proposal is 
dismissed.” 
 

8.8 When considering the planning balance, the Inspector recognised that the 
proposal would conflict with policy COM2 of the RLP, but considered the likely 
residential use of the site a material consideration which would justify making a 
decision which is not in accordance with the development plan. 
 
“However, the appellant’s fall-back position to change the use of the existing 
buildings upon the site is a very real possibility. The effects of the appeal 
proposal would be unlikely to be discernible over and above the permitted 
development scheme for the reasons given. I regard the likely residential use of 
the site, a material consideration which would, in this case, justify making a 
decision which is not in accordance with the development plan.” 
 
The appeal was allowed on this basis. 
 

8.9 The site which is the subject of this application benefits from Prior Approval for 
the conversion of existing buildings on the site into residential units. There is no 
practical reason that the conversion of the buildings could not be implemented. It 
is therefore considered that this fall-back position be given significant weight in 
the determination of this planning application contrary to the development plan. 
 

8.10 Along with considering the likelihood of the Part O scheme being implemented, 
the Inspector of the Barrow Hill Barns appeal also considered it necessary to 
assess the impact of the proposed scheme against the permitted scheme, to 
‘determine whether or not there would be any significant impacts over and above 
the permitted scheme’. In relation to this proposal, this is discussed further at 
below. 
 

8.11 Mobile home 
The mobile home is only required for a temporary period during the construction 
phase of the development, such temporary accommodation is not uncommon in 
small self build projects such as this. However, to ensure that the mobile home is 
removed from site an appropriately worded planning condition is proposed to 
ensure that it is removed on occupation of any of the new dwellings on site. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 68



8.12 Impact on the character and appearance of the surrounding area landscape 
character 
 
Existing surrounding character 
The site is located within the rural countryside surrounded by agricultural fields to 
the south and west. The hamlet of Lower Slackstead is located to the north. The 
site is immediately adjacent to the Monarch’s Way, a Public Right of Way 
(PROW) to the east beyond which lies Ampfield Wood. Views of the site are 
available from the PROW. The nearest vehicular highway to the site is Dores 
Lane which is approximately 100 metres to the north. Public views of the site 
from Dores Lane are longer view and filtered by existing vegetation. 
 

8.13 The site is set away from Lower Slackstead and is not publically seen in short 
distance views, in context with it. The site is surrounded by mature, established 
vegetation with clear, public views into the site being available only from the 
PROW to the east. As a result, the site is perceived as an isolated area of built 
form within a wider rural/agricultural landscape. 
 

8.14 Approved conversions and their visual impact – coach house 
The conversions approved under Class Q of the GPDO involved the coach 
house along with a more modern open sided barn located to the south east. 
 

8.15 The coach house is a brick built historic building that is thought to have been 
originally constructed as the coach house to the much grander dwelling originally 
on site. The building has an attractive appearance that reflects its original use. 
The sympathetic conversion of this building is welcomed as an ongoing use 
would ensure its retention. 
 

8.16 The Class Q conversion not only relates to the original coach house building but 
also includes lean-to extensions which are later additions to the building. These 
structures, whilst having a functional agricultural purpose are not considered to 
be of a scale and design that is appropriate to that of the coach house and these 
additions forming part of the Class Q conversions results in a contrived form 
which is needed to facilitate adequate space for the building to function as a 
residential dwelling. 
 

8.17 Notwithstanding the above, the Class Q coach house conversion would continue 
to be of a form and scale appropriate in this rural, agricultural landscape. The 
resultant building would still be seen from public viewpoints, as being part of a 
historical farm yard and would sit discretely in views. 
 

8.18 Approved conversions and their visual impact – straw barn 
This building was built to be a modern, functional agricultural building. The high 
eaves and openings on its northern elevation are characteristic of its previous 
use to store farm machinery. The barn is constructed from a pre-cast concrete 
portal frame with asbestos cement sheeting used for the roof and corrugated 
steel sheeting to the walls. 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 69



8.19 The conversion of this building retained its scale including the characteristic 
shallow pitched roof. Whilst the design of the conversion was considered 
acceptable under Class Q, the conversion is constrained by the scale and form 
of the existing building with new elements limited to fenestration and cladding. As 
a result, the conversion of the straw barn would not result in a building that is 
high quality and the Class Q process provides limited opportunities to secure an 
improved design. 
 

8.20 It is clear that some effort was taken to retain the agricultural nature of the 
building however through the necessity of providing adequate fenestration 
required for the building to function as a dwelling, the conversion would result in 
a building that would at odds with the rural, agricultural character of the 
surrounding area. 
 

8.21 Approved conversions – summary 
Whilst the conversion schemes retain the overall form of both agricultural 
buildings, the nature of the Class Q conversions meant that there was limited 
opportunity to secure improved designs. The replacement of these conversions 
proposed by this current application offers opportunities to significantly improve 
on the permitted designs to the benefit of surrounding visual amenities. 
 

8.22 Submitted LVIA baseline 
In preparing the current scheme, the applicant has, through their landscape 
consultant, undertaken a Landscape Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA, 
Landshape, April 2023). The LVIA has been produced to advise on issues 
relating to landscape and visual amenity arising from the proposed development. 
 

8.23 The LVIA shows where the site is visible from surrounding public vantage points 
differentiating between clear views of the site and views that are glimpsed or 
interrupted (Figure 7.1 of the LVIA). Impacts from viewpoints 4/5, 6, 8 and 9 as 
set out in the LVIA are summarised as follows. 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 70



 
(Extract from Figure 7.1, LVIA, Landshape, April 2023) 
 

8.24 Viewpoints 4 and 5– View from Monarch’s Way PROW looking north-west 
towards the site: 

• Existing trees screen some views of the site however, the site is clearly 
visible where there is limited tree cover/gaps between trees. Visibility as a 
whole varies along the footpath. 

• Plot 1 - Would be visible from this viewpoint, will lie almost exactly in the 
position of the existing barn which has approval for conversion. Building 
would be of similar visual nature to the existing barns and this, together 
with the proposed planting, will minimise impact. 

• Plot 2 – Would not be visible from this viewpoint. 
 

8.25 Viewpoint 6 – View from Monarch’s Way Prow looking south-west towards the 
site: 

• Clear views over gardens towards existing barns/coach house on the site. 
Intervening vegetation and structures disrupt this view. 

• Plot 1 – Barns that are currently visible from this viewpoint will be replaced 
by buildings associated with plot 1. 

• Plot 2 – Would be visible on other side of fences. Proposed new hedge 
would restrict views. Intervening fences and planting would restrict views 
of the development. 

 
8.26 Viewpoint 8 – View from Dores Lane/Monarch’s Way looking south towards the 

site: 

• Existing barns and coach house are just visible above and behind the 
existing hedge and treeline. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 71



• Plot 1 – May be visible as it extends beyond the line of the existing barns 
into the paddock – views will be restricted but may still be available in the 
winter months. 

• Plot 2 – Not visible in this viewpoint. 
 

8.27 Viewpoint 9 – View from Monarch’s Way looking north towards the site: 

• Clear views of the existing farm complex through existing gateway. 

• View of southern barn would be replaced with house for plot 1. Proposed 
house would effectively replace the barns in the view. 

 
8.28 LVIA summary 

The applicant’s LVIA concludes that: 

• Due to nature of natural enclosure of the farm by topography, hedges and 
copses, there are limited views into the site. There are no long distance 
views however there are clear local views from the adjacent PROW 
(Monarch’s Way). 

• General enclosure means that the proposed development would not be 
generally seen from points in the wider landscape. 

• Where views are available e.g. from the PROW, these can be managed 
and reduced by the inclusion of selective hedge and tree planting and by 
the restriction of building in certain areas of the site. 

• Overall significance for this Landscape Character Area in the immediate 
site area is summarised as ‘Low Adverse’. There will be low, direct, 
unavoidable and permanent effect on the immediate landscape. 

• Proposed development will have little impact on the landscape character 
other than the clearance of vegetation and increased impact on visual 
amenity of the users of a short part of the PROW. 

• Surrounding field pattern will remain the same. All planted field boundaries 
will be retained and enhanced which will allow the landscape effect to be 
reduced to ‘Negligible’ or ‘Beneficial’ when planting has matured at years 
five to fifteen. 

 
8.29 Impact of the proposed dwellings – Plot 1 

Plot 1 would be sited close to the existing complex of buildings and in a similar 
position to the straw barn. Plot 1 would be seen in glimpsed views from the 
adjacent Monarch’s Way, however, views from the footpath would not materially 
change as built form is currently seen in this area. The proposed dwelling is 
considered to be of a scale and height whereby it would not be more visually 
intrusive in the landscape when compared to current views of the existing straw 
barn. 
 

8.30 The existing carriage building would be incorporated into the residential curtilage 
of the proposed dwelling at Plot 1 and would be utilised as an ancillary building 
accommodating garaging and an annex. The proposals involve the removal of 
the incongruous, later additions (see para. above) which would be of benefit to 
both its appearance and to views of this building from the Monarch’s Way. The 
proposed conversion to ancillary accommodation is considered to be much more 
appropriate to the character and appearance of the building than the approved 
Class Q conversion. 
  

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 72



8.31 Impact of the proposed dwellings – Plot 2 
Whilst noted that the dwelling proposed for plot 2 is set away from where 
buildings have historically sat within the site, it is not considered that this siting 
would be more visually intrusive in views from surrounding public vantage points. 
 

8.32 Due to surrounding vegetation which is proposed for retention, there would only 
be glimpsed views of plot 2 from the Monarch’s Way. As with Plot 1, it is not 
considered the views of the site, and plot 2 in particular would materially change. 
The buildings would be seen in context with an area that has historically included 
built form and the dwelling is considered to be of a scale and height that would 
not be more visually intrusive in the area. 
 

8.33 In addition to the above, the removal of other redundant agricultural buildings on 
the site (including an existing building to the east of the carriage building) means 
that built form on the site would not be increased. It is considered that the site 
and surrounding buildings would still be seen as a discrete group of buildings 
sited on a former agricultural yard. 
 

8.34 Proposed garden areas 
The proposed curtilage for the dwellings is larger than the curtilage permissible 
under class Q. However, with the provision of the proposed comprehensive 
landscaping scheme and the limited public views of the site, it is considered that 
the proposed curtilages would not be more visually intrusive. However, to ensure 
that harm doesn’t arise from an over proliferation of outbuildings and extensions, 
it is recommended that permitted development rights for these forms of 
development are removed. Subject to this condition and the requirement for 
landscaping the proposal would not have a significant adverse impact on the 
character and appearance of this countryside location. 
 

8.35 Overall design of the proposed dwellings 
The proposed dwellings would have a contemporary design taking influence from 
the site’s agricultural heritage. The dwellings would include features such as a 
standing seam zinc roof which would be carried down and rolled over the eaves. 
This roof design and the materials used reflect the scale and design of barns 
used for agricultural purposes. The front projecting gables are also a feature 
reflected in older agricultural buildings. Subject to a condition ensuring that a 
high quality palette of materials is used, it is considered that the overall design 
response is appropriate for this site, would be of high quality and, as discussed 
above, would not be more visually intrusive in the landscape. 
 

8.36 As a result of the above, the proposals are considered to be an improvement 
over the designs of the conversions approved under Class Q. It is considered 
that the proposals would comply with policies E1 and E2 of the RLP. 
 

8.37 Trees 
The application is not supported by any detailed arboricultural information. There 
are trees within and surrounding the site that contribute to the area’s character 
and provide a good level of public amenity. The site is immediately adjacent to 
‘Sheephouse Row’, an area of ancient woodland to the east. 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 73



8.38 Save for the loss of an Ash tree within the site (this tree is suffering from Ash die-
back), all trees are proposed to be retained. The submitted block plan and 
landscape strategy demonstrates that there would be adequate separation 
between the proposed built form and the root protection areas (RPAs) of 
surrounding trees. The details also show that the ancient woodland would be 
separated by proposed built form by a 15 metre buffer, along with an area of 
retained paddock. 
 

8.39 As a result of the above and subject to conditions requiring the retention and 
protection of existing trees on the site during construction, it is not considered 
that the proposals would result the loss of trees that would result in harm to the 
surrounding landscape character. The proposals are considered to comply with 
policy E2 of the RLP in this regard. 
 

8.40 Ecology 
On-site ecology 
The application is supported by an ecological assessment (Aluco Ecology Ltd, 
April 2023). 
 

8.41 Bats 
The existing coach house is a confirmed bat roost. The survey work undertaken 
on the site indicate periodic use as a transitional summer/autumn roost of 
Common Pipistrelle, Soprano Pipistrelle and Brown Long-eared bats. The 
assessment also included surveys on foraging and commuting bats which found 
that along with the above species, Serotine and Noctule bats were using the site. 
The ecological assessment concludes that the roosts should be considered to be 
of local value. 
 

8.42 Great Crested Newt (GCN) 
A large, existing pond to the north west of the site was surveyed for GCN. eDNA 
survey work was positive in that GCN DNA was found in the pond. Further 
survey work was undertaken to determine likely population size. A peak count of 
5 GCN was recorded in the deeper parts of the pond. 
 

8.43 The pond is not within the area proposed for development, nevertheless, the site 
could be used as terrestrial habitat for this species. The applicant’s ecology 
assessment considers that whilst the site as a whole provides lower quality 
terrestrial habitat for GCN, tall grassland along the east/north boundary and 
associated ditch on the northern boundary along with wooded features on the 
boundaries/off-site are the principle terrestrial habitats for GCN in the local area. 
 

8.44 Reptiles 
The site is considered to be of lower quality for potential reptile presence. 
Notwithstanding this, some features on the site have the potential to support 
populations of commoner reptiles. 
 

8.45 Dormouse 
The applicant’s ecological assessment considers that the site includes limited 
habitat suitable for dormouse. 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 74



8.46 Compliance with the Habitats Regulations 
It is confirmed that the site is used by Bats and Great Crested Newts. Both of 
these species are protected by The Conservation of Habitats and Species 
Regulations 2017 (‘The Habitat Regulations’). A European Protected Species 
Licence from Natural England would therefore be required to undertake the 
development where it would have a likely impact on these species. 
 

8.47 In accordance with the Habitats Regulations, a European Protected Species 
(EPS) licence for the development would be required. Such a licence can only be 
granted if the development proposals are able to meet the following tests: 
 

1. The consented operation must be for ‘preserving public health or public 
safety or other imperative reasons of overriding public interest including 
those of a social or economic nature and beneficial consequences of 
primary importance for the environment’ (Regulation 53(2)(e)) ; 

2. There must be ‘no satisfactory alternative’ (Regulation 53(9)(a)); and 
3. The action authorised ‘will not be detrimental to the maintenance of the 

population of the species concerned at a favourable conservation status in 
their natural range; (Regulation 53(9)(b)). 

 
8.48 In relation to point 1), the proposal would result in the provision of housing whilst 

in a countryside location, on a site that has extant approvals for the residential 
conversion of existing barns. The proposals would help to meet housing 
requirements in the Borough which would amount to an overriding social and 
economic benefits. It is therefore considered that this can be met. 
 

8.49 In relation to point 2), there are clearly alternatives to the proposed development 
along with a ‘do nothing’ approach. These are summarised as follows: 
 

• Provision of housing on alternative sites – it is not certain that other 
appropriate sites would come forward and would be suitable for the 
proposed development. 

• Alternative development/do nothing – information submitted with the 
application suggests that the site is no longer required for its current use. 
In addition, the fall-back position discussed at paras 8.4-8.10 should be 
considered, works to convert the buildings in accordance with the prior 
approval decisions would have similar impacts on protected species. In 
addition, without a continued use the condition of the buildings would likely 
deteriorate resulting in impacts on surrounding, visual amenity. In order to 
maintain the coach house, it is likely that works to maintain/repair the roof 
would be required which could also impact on the identified bat roosts. A 
‘do-nothing’ approach would also not realise the social/economic benefits 
of the development identified above. 

 
8.50 As a result of the above, it is considered that there is no satisfactory alternative 

to the proposed development. The 2nd test can therefore be met. 
 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 75



8.51 In order to assess the development against the 3rd test, sufficient details much be 
available to show how killing/injury of bats will be avoided and how impacts to 
bats through habitat loss will be addressed. These should be proportionate and 
appropriate to the impacts as determined through the survey work. 
 

8.52 The submitted ecology reports include a detailed method statement/strategy 
which includes methods to the followed during the development to ensure that 
bats are not disturbed, killed or injured. New roosting opportunities (bats) and 
habitat (GCN) are also proposed to be provided. 
 

8.53 The Council’s ecologist supports the proposed mitigation/compensation 
measures and, on the basis of the information provided, is satisfied that the 3rd 
test can be met subject to a condition securing the proposed 
mitigation/compensation. 
 

8.54 As a result of the above, as the three tests set out in the Habitats Regulations 
can be met, it is considered that it is likely that an EPS licence would be granted. 
It is considered that the proposals would be in accordance with the relevant 
regulations in relation to European protected species and would be in 
accordance with policy E5 of the Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016. 
 

8.55 European Sites – New Forest Special Protection Area 
The development will result in a net increase in residential dwellings within 
13.79km of the New Forest SPA. This distance defines the zone identified by 
research where new residents would be considered likely to visit the New Forest. 
The New Forest SPA supports a range of bird species that are vulnerable to 
impacts arising from increases in recreational use of the Forest that result from 
new housing development. It has been demonstrated through research, and 
agreed by Natural England that any net increase in dwellings would have a likely 
significant effect on the SPA when considered in combination with other plans 
and projects. 
 

8.56 To address this issue, Test Valley Borough Council has adopted an interim 
mitigation strategy has been agreed that would fund the delivery of a new 
strategic area of alternative recreational open space that would offer the same 
sort of recreational opportunities as those offered by the New Forest. Therefore, 
it is considered necessary and reasonable to secure the appropriate contribution. 
 

8.57 Subject to a financial contribution being secured in accordance with the interim 
mitigation strategy (in this case, through the completion of an appropriate legal 
agreement), it can be concluded that the development would not result in any 
adverse impacts on the integrity of the designated site. The proposals are 
considered to comply with policy E5 of the RLP in this regard. 
 

8.58 European Sites – Nitrate Neutrality in the Solent Region 
Natural England advises that there are high levels of nitrogen and phosphorus 
input to the water environment of the Solent region caused by wastewater from 
existing housing and from agricultural sources and that these nutrients are 
causing eutrophication at the designated nature conservation sites which 
includes the Solent Water SPA. This results in dense mats of green algae that 
are impacting on the Solent’s protected habitats and bird species. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 76



8.59 Natural England further advises that there is uncertainty as to whether new 
housing growth will further deteriorate designated sites. In order to address this 
uncertainty is to achieve nutrient neutrality whereby an individual scheme would 
not add to nutrient burdens. 
 

8.60 In this instance, a nutrient budget calculation was undertaken identifying that the 
proposed scheme, in the absence of any mitigation generated, a total additional 
nitrate output of 4.66 Kg TN/year. 
 

8.61 In order to mitigate the additional nitrate output generated by the proposed 
development, the applicant has entered into an agreement with the land owner at 
Roke Manor, Awbrige who has agreed to take land previously used as a pig farm 
out of agricultural use. The landowner, funded by a financial contribution paid by 
the applicant, will ensure that the land is restored and maintained so that a 
substantial reduction in nitrate loading within the Solent catchment can be 
achieved. A management plan which would be implemented by the land owner 
has been agreed by both the Council and with Natural England. 
 

8.62 Whilst the agreement to purchase offset land is between the applicant and the 
landowner at Roke Manor, to ensure that the required amount of offset land is 
secured and managed in perpetuity in accordance with the management plan, 
the applicant has agreed to enter into a legal agreement with the Council. 
Subject to such an agreement being completed, it is considered that the proposal 
would achieve nutrient neutrality as required by the guidance contained within 
Natural England’s ‘Advice on achieving nutrient neutrality for new development in 
the Solent region’. Therefore, it can be concluded that there will be no adverse 
effect on the integrity of the designated site with respect to nutrient neutrality. 
The proposals are therefore considered to comply with policy E5 of the RLP. 
 

8.63 Residential amenity 
Plans submitted with the application demonstrate that sufficient separation would 
be provided between the proposed dwellings and surrounding neighbouring 
properties such that the development would not result in any adverse impacts on 
neighbour amenities. The proposals are considered to accord with policy LHW4 
of the RLP in this regard 
 

8.64 Sufficient separation would also be provided between the two new dwellings 
themselves so that they would not unduly affect each other in terms of 
overlooking, overbearing, overshadowing or loss of light. Each dwelling would 
also be provided with sufficient, outside, private amenity space in accordance 
with policy LHW4 of the RLP. 
 

8.65 Highway Safety and Parking provision 
The proposed plans demonstrate that each residential dwelling will include 
sufficient space to provide off-street parking in accordance with the parking 
standards set out at Annex G to the Local Plan (3 spaces per dwelling in this 
instance). The proposals are therefore considered to comply with policy T2 of the 
RLP. 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 77



8.66 There is also sufficient space on site for turning which would enable 
vehicular traffic to access the main highway in a forward gear. The Highway 
Authority is satisfied that the proposal would not lead to any material detrimental 
impact upon the safety and efficiency of the public highway network. As such, it 
is considered that the development would not have an adverse impact on the 
function, safety and character of the local highway network. It is considered that 
the proposal would be in accordance with policy T1 of the TVBRLP 
 

8.67 The Planning Balance 
The proposals would be contrary to the development plan in that the conversion 
of the building would result in a new residential dwelling on a site designated as 
countryside in the Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 (RLP). The 
proposed development does not comply with policy COM12 as whilst extant 
permissions existing they have not yet been implemented. As a result the 
proposals for two new dwellings in the countryside are technically contrary to 
policy COM2. 
 

8.68 Notwithstanding the above, there are other material planning considerations that 
must be taken into account when determining this application and these must be 
weighed against the conflict with the development plan. 
 

8.69 The report details the fall-back position of the applicant who has demonstrated 
that the residential conversion of the buildings under the full planning permission 
and the PDQS application is more than a theoretical prospect. The fall-back 
position that the building can be converted to a residential use under extant 
permissions is a consideration that weighs significantly in favour of the proposals 
now submitted. 
 

8.70 In addition to the above the replacement of the existing structures has resulted in 
a scheme of enhanced design compared to the conversion works and the 
proposals would have no other additional adverse impacts over and above the 
extant permissions. 

 
9.0 CONCLUSION 
9.1 It is considered that the material considerations of the proposed scheme 

outweigh the conflict with the Development Plan. 
 
10.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 Delegate to Head of Planning & Building for completion of satisfactory 

consultation with Natural England with respect to the impact of the 
development on European sites (together with any appropriate 
conditions as required), and the completion of a  legal agreement to 
secure; 

• Removal of nitrate mitigation land from agricultural production 

• Future management of the nitrate mitigation land 

• New Forest SPA contribution 

• Prohibit the implementation of extant Class Q prior approval with 
respect to the retained “Coach House” to ensure it is not used as 
a separate dwelling, but as ancillary accommodation for Plot 1; 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 78



 Then PERMISSION subject to: 
 1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun within three 

years from the date of this permission. 
Reason:  To comply with the provision of Section 91 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 2. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except 
in complete accordance with the details shown on the submitted 
plans, numbers: 
1 Rev A 
SL01 
SL01 Mobile Home Location 
Mobile Home Elevation & Section 
Exist06 
Exit07 
L170/B01 
P1.e1 
P1.e2 
P1.p1 
P1.p2 
P2.e1 
P2.e2 
P2.p 
Gar.01 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 

 3. No development shall take place above DPC level of the 
development hereby permitted until samples and details of the 
materials to be used in the construction of all external surfaces 
hereby permitted have been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out 
in accordance with the approved details. 
Reason: To ensure the development has a satisfactory external 
appearance in the interest of visual amenities in accordance with 
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy E1 

 4. The development shall not be occupied until space has been laid 
out and provided for the parking and manoeuvring of vehicles to 
enable them to enter and leave the site in a forward gear in 
accordance with the approved plan and this space shall thereafter 
be reserved for such purposes at all times. 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Test 
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy T1. 

 5. No development shall take place above DPC level of the 
development hereby permitted until full details of hard and soft 
landscape works have been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. Details shall include-where 
appropriate:  means of enclosure and car parking layouts. Soft 
landscape works shall include: planting plans; written 
specifications (including cultivation and other operations 
associated with plant and grass establishment); schedules of 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 79



plants, noting species, plant sizes and proposed 
numbers/densities. The landscape works shall be carried out in 
accordance with the implementation programme and in 
accordance with the management plan. 
Reason: To improve the appearance of the site and enhance the 
character of the development in the interest of visual amenity and 
contribute to the character of the local area in accordance with 
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy E1 and E2. 

 6. No development shall take place above DPC level of the 
development hereby permitted until a schedule of landscape 
implementation and maintenance for a minimum period of 5 years 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The schedule shall include details of the 
arrangements for the phasing of the implementation and ongoing 
maintenance during that period in accordance with appropriate 
British Standards or other recognised codes of practise. 
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
schedule. 
Reason: To ensure the provision, establishment and maintenance 
to a suitable standard of the approved landscape designs to 
create and maintain the appearance of the site and enhance the 
character of the development in the interest of visual amenity and 
to contribute to the character of the local area in accordance with 
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy E1 and E2. 

 7. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any order 
amending, revoking or re-enacting that Order), no building, 
structure, walls or fences of any kind shall be erected without the 
prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason: In order that the Local Planning Authority can exercise 
control in the locality in the interest of the local amenities in 
accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) 
Policy E1. 

 8. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any order 
revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification), 
no windows/dormer windows [other than those expressly 
authorised by this permission] shall be constructed. 
Reason: In order that the Local Planning Authority can exercise 
control in the locality in the interest of the local amenities in 
accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) 
Policies E1, E2, LHW4 

 9. Prior to the commencement of demolition and construction 
activity including site clearance or ground-works, a Construction 
Environment Management Plan (CEMP) shall be submitted to the 
Local Planning Authority for approval. The CEMP shall detail the 
significant risks posed to amenity from the emission of noise, 
dust and light and set out the mitigation measures to be employed 
to control such emissions and mitigate the effects of such 
emissions on sensitive land uses. Unless otherwise agreed by the 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 80



Local Planning Authority, construction activity shall only take 
place in accordance with the approved CEMP. 
Reason: To minimise the risks of pollution and to ensure the site 
is satisfactorily developed in accordance with policy E8 of the 
Revised Borough Local Plan 

 10. No development shall take place (other than any approved 
demolition and site clearance works) until an assessment of the 
nature and extent of any contamination and a scheme for 
remediating the contamination has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
assessment shall be undertaken by a competent person, and shall 
assess the presence of any contamination on the site, whether or 
not it originates on the site. The assessment shall comprise at 
least a desk study and qualitative risk assessment and, where 
appropriate, the assessment shall be extended following further 
site investigation work. In the event that contamination is found, 
or is considered likely, the scheme shall contain remediation 
proposals designed to bring the site to a condition suitable for the 
intended use. Such remediation proposals shall include clear 
remediation objectives and criteria, an appraisal of the 
remediation options, and the arrangements for the supervision of 
remediation works by a competent person. The site shall not be 
brought in to use until a verification report, for the purpose of 
certifying adherence to the approved remediation scheme, has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
Reason: To ensure a safe living/working environment in 
accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 
policy E8. 

 11. Development shall be provided in accordance with Section 7 
'Opportunities for Mitigation' and Section 8 'Conclusions and 
Recommendation' of the Ecological Assessment by Aluco 
Ecology June 2023. 
Reason: To ensure the favourable conservation status of 
protected species in accordance with Policy E5 of the Test Valley 
Revised Local Plan 

 12. No development shall commence (including site clearance and 
any other preparatory works) until a scheme for the protection of 
trees to be retained has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. Such a scheme shall include a 
plan showing the location and specification of tree protective 
barriers.  Such barriers shall be erected prior to any other site 
operations and at least three working days notice shall be given to 
the Local Planning Authority that it has been erected. 
Note: The protective barriers shall be as specified at Chapter 6.2 
and detailed in figure 2 of B.S.5837:2012 unless otherwise agreed 
in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 81



Reason:  To ensure the enhancement of the development by the 
retention of existing trees and natural features during the 
construction phase in accordance with Test Valley Borough 
Revised Local Plan (2016) policy E2. 

 13. All service routes, drain runs, soakaways or excavations in 
connection with the development hereby permitted shall remain 
wholly outside the tree protective barrier. 
Reason: To ensure the avoidance of damage to existing trees and 
natural features during the construction phase in accordance with 
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan policy E2. 

 14. The development hereby approved shall be designed and built to 
meet Regulation 36 2 (b) requirement of 110 litres/person/day 
water efficiency set out in part G2 of Building Regulations 2015. 
Reason: In the interests of improving water usage efficiency in 
accordance with policy E7 of the Test Valley Borough Revised 
Local Plan 2016. 

 15. Before the development hereby permitted is commenced details, 
including plans and cross sections, shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority of the existing and 
proposed ground levels of the development and the boundaries of 
the site and the height of the ground floor slab and damp proof 
course in relation thereto. Development shall be undertaken in 
accordance with the approved details. 
Reason: To ensure satisfactory relationship between the new 
development and the adjacent buildings, amenity areas and trees 
in accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) 
Policy E1 

 16. No external lighting shall be installed until details have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The submitted details shall include plans and details 
sufficient to demonstrate the location, type, specification and 
luminance level. External lighting shall be undertaken in 
accordance with the approved details and retained thereafter. 
Reason: To ensure the favourable conservation status of 
protected species in accordance with Policy E5 of the Test Valley 
Borough Revised Local Plan (2016). 

 17. The Coach House as shown on Plan Exist07 shall not be occupied 
at any time other than for purposes ancillary to the residential use 
of the dwelling known as plot 1 on the approved plans. 
Reason:  To avoid the establishment of a separate unit of 
accommodation in accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised 
Local Plan (2016) Policies COM2 and COM11 

 18. On the day on which any dwelling hereby permitted is first 
occupied for residential purposes, all existing buildings shown for 
demolition shall cease to be used for any purpose, and within 
three months of that day, the existing buildings shall be 
demolished and the resultant materials cleared from the site. 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 82



Reason:  The site lies in an area where new dwelling units  and 
buildings are not normally permitted in accordance with Test 
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016). 

 19. On the day on which any dwelling hereby permitted is first 
occupied for residential purposes, the mobile home as shown on 
plan ‘SL01 Mobile Home Location’ and ‘Mobile Home Elevation & 
Section’ site shall cease to be used for any purpose, and within 
three months of that day, the mobile home shall be removed from 
site and the resultant materials cleared from the site and land 
restored in accordance with details to be submitted and approved 
in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason:  The site lies in an area where new dwelling units are not 
normally permitted other than by replacement of the existing in 
accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) 
Policy COM12. 

 20. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any order 
amending, revoking or re-enacting that Order), no extension or 
alteration to any dwelling or building of any kind shall be erected 
without the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority.                                                          
Reason:  In order that the Local Planning Authority can exercise 
control in the locality in the interest of the visual amenities of the 
area in accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 
(2016) Policy E1 & E2. 

 Notes to applicant: 
 1. In reaching this decision Test Valley Borough Council (TVBC) has 

had regard to the National Planning Policy Framework and takes a 
positive and proactive approach to development proposals 
focused on solutions. TVBC work with applicants and their agents 
in a positive and proactive manner offering a pre-application 
advice service and updating applicants/agents of issues that may 
arise in dealing with the application and where possible 
suggesting solutions. 

 2. Bats and their roosts receive strict legal protection under the 
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017. All work 
must stop immediately if bats, or evidence of bat presence (e.g. 
droppings, bat carcasses or insect remains), are encountered at 
any point during this development. Should this occur, further 
advice should be sought from Natural England and/or a 
professional ecologist 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 83



1.22m RH

59.4m

50.9m

D
ef

GP

RH

D
ra

in

The

LB

Little T
h
atch

200

202

201

Lower Slackstead

1
.2

2
m

 F
F

49.4m

57.3m

Woolley Green Farm

D
e
f

S
S

Pond

U
n
d

Und

Old Cottage

REPRODUCED FROM ORDNANCE SURVEY MAPPING

 WITH THE PERMISSION OF THE CONTROLLER OF

 HER MAJESTY’S STATIONERY OFFICER © CROWN COPYRIGHT. 

UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT 

AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.

TEST VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL LICENCE No. 100024295 2013

N
Siteplan

23/01508/FULLS

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 84



Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 85



Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 86



Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 87



Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 88



Double bed
2000x1500

Chest of drawers
450x750

Chest of drawers
450x750

Chest of drawers
450x750

Double bed
2000x1500

Chest of drawers
450x750

Double bed
2000x1500

Chest of drawers
450x750

Be
dr

oo
m

 1

Be
dr

oo
m

 4

La
nd

in
g

En
-s

ui
te Dr

es
sin

g

V
oi

d

St

Dr
es

sin
g

En
-s

ui
te

V
oi

d

G
al

le
ry

C
of

fe
e 

ta
bl

e
75

0 
di

a

St

Be
dr

oo
m

 3

Be
dr

oo
m

 2

En
-s

ui
te

En
-s

ui
te

En
-s

ui
te

Dr
es

sin
g

Fir
st 

Fl
oo

r

Chest of drawers
450x750

Double bed
2000x1500

sc
al

e 
1:

10
0

0
2m

4m

W
oo

lle
y 

G
re

en
 F

ar
m

Pl
ot

 1
Fir

st 
Fl
oo

r 
Pl
an

-

1:1
0

0
Fe

b 
'2

3
RD

P
JD

13
0

P1
.p

2
-

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 89

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
Drawn

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
Title

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
Project

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
Jon Dale RIBA  12 Crestwood View, Eastleigh, Hampshire, SO50 4NF  Tel: 07787 575126  E-mail: jondalearchitect@gmail.com

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
Revision

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
Checked

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
Drawing. No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
Job No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
Scale



Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 90



Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 91



Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 92



6403

9
48

5

Pl
ot

 2
 G

ar
ag

e

sc
al

e 
1:

10
0

0
2m

4m

N
or

th
 E

le
va

tio
n

W
es

t 
El
ev

at
io

n

So
ut

h 
El
ev

at
io

n
Ea

st 
El
ev

at
io

n

W
oo

lle
y 

G
re

en
 F

ar
m

Br
ai

sh
fie

ld
-

Pl
ot

 2
 G

ar
ag

e
Pl
an

s 
an

d 
El
ev

at
io

ns
-

1:1
0

0
M

ar
 2

3
RP

JD
13

0
G
ar

.0
1

-

-
-

-

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 93

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
Drawn

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
Title

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
Project

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
Jon Dale RIBA  12 Crestwood View, Eastleigh, Hampshire, SO50 4NF  Tel: 07787 575126  E-mail: jondalearchitect@gmail.com

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
Revision

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
Checked

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
Drawing. No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
Job No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
Scale



T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - S
outhern A

rea P
lanning C

om
m

ittee - 15 A
ugust 2023

P
age 94



Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 95



Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 96



Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 97



 
 
 
 APPLICATION NO. 23/01080/FULLS 
 APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION - SOUTH 
 REGISTERED 20.06.2023 
 APPLICANT Mr Warren Cann 
 SITE SHB Hire Ltd, Mill Lane, Nursling, SO16 0YE,  

NURSLING AND ROWNHAMS 
 PROPOSAL Erection of an electricity substation 
 AMENDMENTS 19/06/2023- Updated acoustic design specification 
 CASE OFFICER Mr Mark Staincliffe 

 
 Background paper (Local Government Act 1972 Section 100D) 
 Click here to view application 

 
 
1.0 INTRODUCTION 
1.1 The application has been called to Southern Area Planning Committee at the 

request of members because it raises issues of more than local public interest. 
 
2.0 SITE LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION 
2.1 The application site is situated to the northern side of Mill Lane and within 

Nursling & Rownhams Parish. 
 

2.2 The site is situated within the northern part of the existing SHB Hire site and is 
currently lawfully used for the storage of vehicles. Adjacent to the site is the 
recently approved and implemented battery storage facility, as well as being in 
close proximity to an area that was formally wooded and forming part of the Big 
Wellow Wood SINC. It is evident that trees were felled and the land striped prior 
to the submission of previous applications. 

 
3.0 PROPOSAL 
3.1 Erection of an electricity substation. 

 
4.0 HISTORY 
4.1 17/00584/FULLS- Erection of a flexible electricity generation unit with woodland 

restoration- ALLOWED AT APPEAL 
 

4.2 19/02772/FULLS- Erection of a battery storage facility- PERMISSION SUBJECT 
TO CONDITIONS 

 
5.0 CONSULTATIONS 
5.1 Highways- No objection 

 
5.2 Landscape- No objection 

 
5.3 Environmental Health- No objection subject to conditions 

 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 98

ITEM 10

https://view-applications.testvalley.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RTNSVBQCHVT00


6.0 REPRESENTATIONS Expired 17.07.2023 
 

6.1 Nursling and Rownhams Parish Council- No objection 
 

6.2 Public Consultation- The application generated 17 letters of objection. A 
summary of the points raised are set out below: 
 

• The Site of Importance for Nature Conservation (SINC) and woodland 
was unlawfully felled and cleared in 2016 

• The applicant was instructed to restore the woodland by the planning 
inspector. This has not been done. 

• If permission is granted they must be required to undertake the woodland 
restoration in the next planting season. 

• A 2m high metal fence has been installed without permission around the 
battery storage site. 

• Cumulative Industrial development is encroaching onto existing Rights of 
Way. 

• Development is noisy and unsightly 
• Highway report claims that there will be no significant change in vehicle 

count- Can this be guaranteed? 
• Granting permission will result in more fly tipping in the area, 
• Site area on application form is different to the area quoted in the 

covering letter. 
• In the covering letter it states the current use of the land is storage and 

maintenance of vehicles, on application form it states only vehicle 
storage 

• The site can be seen from the footpath 
• The site is in close proximity to biodiversity and the River Test. 
• The applicant and land owner are not the same. Incorrect certificate has 

been signed on the application form 
• Inappropriate development within a SINC 

 
7.0 POLICY 
7.1 Government Guidance 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) 
National Policy Statement for Energy (EN-1) 

7.2 Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016)(TVBRLP) 
COM2 (Settlement Hierarchy) 
SD1 (Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development) 
E1 (High Quality Development in the Borough) 
E2 (Protect, Conserve and Enhance the Landscape Character of the Borough) 
E5 (Biodiversity) 
E6 (Green Infrastructure) 
E8 (Pollution) 
LHW4 (Amenity) 
T1 (Managing Movement) 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 99



T2 (Parking Standard) 
 
8.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
8.1 The main planning considerations are: 

Principle of Development 
Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that 
the determination of planning applications must be made in accordance with the 
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. In 
consequence, the starting point is the development plan. The development plan 
comprises the TVBRLP. 
 

8.2 The site lies outside the defined settlement boundary of Nursling and is therefore 
within the ‘countryside’. For development outside settlement boundaries (unless 
covered by other Local Plan policies) (criterion a), it must be essential to be 
located in the countryside (criterion b), or there are material considerations to 
justify permission contrary to this Policy. 
 

8.3 In order to meet the government’s targets under the Climate Change Act 2008 of 
reducing carbon emissions by 80% below 1990 levels by 2050 the energy 
balance is becoming increasingly reliant on renewable energy sources (such as 
wind and solar). With a heavy reliance on climatic conditions, these sources can 
be more unpredictable. Coupled with the phasing out of coal power stations, 
there is a growing need for new power plants that can respond quickly to local 
demands and provide a secure supply of energy. Battery storage facilities are an 
efficient and responsive technology that is able to store energy oversupply that 
can be delivered to the network at times of peak demand and at very short 
notice. 
 

8.4 As set out in Paragraph 4.2 above, planning permission was granted under 
planning application 19/02772/FULLS for a battery storage facility on land 
immediately adjacent to this application site. All pre-commencement conditions 
relating to application 19/02772/FULLS have been discharged and upon visiting 
the site it appears as if works have been commenced on site. 
 

8.5 The proposed electricity substation is required and directly related to the extant 
permission for the battery storage facility and is necessary to improve the 
efficiency and speed of the electrical connection between the approved battery 
storage facility and the national electricity grid. Furthermore, the land on which 
the development is to be located is currently used for the storage of commercial 
vehicles and is therefore previously developed land (PDL). As such it is 
considered that as the proposal is directly related it an extant planning 
permission and it is also considered that the proposed development is essential 
and therefore conforms to Policy COM2 of the TVBRLP. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 100



8.6 Character and Appearance 
As set out in paragraph 8.4 above, there is an extant permission for a battery 
storage facility to the North of the application site which will be enclosed by an 
acoustic fence. It is acknowledged that the current application would be 
additional built development, however, the area of land covered by the current 
application is currently lawfully used for the storage of vehicles and has been for 
a period in excess of ten years. 
 

8.7 As with the extant permission on the adjacent site- The acoustic fencing 
surrounding the substation would be visible through the depot gateway onto Mill 
Lane, where it would be seen at a distance in excess of 200m, against a 
background of the battery facility and a foreground of the buildings, various hire 
vehicles and ancillary external storage.  A substantial electricity pylon rises 
above trees on the horizon with various overhead lines in evidence. Given this 
industrial context, it is considered that the proposal would not stand out as a 
discordant feature. 
 

8.8 As identified by local residents, there would also be views of the development 
from the Test Way long distance footpath at the point where it meets Mill Lane. 
These views are already heavily influenced by the hire depot with its main 
building, lorry trailers and security lighting columns all visible and this will be 
further industrialised following the completion of the battery storage facility. 
Having regard to these immediate surroundings, the distance at which the views 
are obtained and the mellow appearance of the proposed acoustic fencing in 
comparison to the existing storage on site as well as it being located next to the 
extant site for the battery storage facility. It is considered that there would be no 
significant harm to local landscape character. 
 

8.9 Having taken into consideration the location of the proposal next to the extant 
permission for the battery storage facility and on an area of land currently used 
for the storage of vehicles, it is concluded that the application would not have a 
material adverse impact on the appearance of the immediate area or landscape 
character. It would thus comply with Policy E2 insofar as it seeks to ensure the 
protection, conservation and enhancement of the landscape of the Borough. 
 

8.10 Highways 
Hampshire County Council Highway Officer has raised no objection to the 
proposed development. There will obviously be an element of disturbance during 
the construction of the development, but once running the facility will generate 
minimal traffic movements and utilises an existing access to the site. As a result 
the development is considered to have no significant adverse impact on 
highways or pedestrian safety and complies with the relevant policies of the 
TVBLP including Policy T1. 
 

8.11 Amenity of Neighbouring Properties 
Discussions have taken place between the Council and applicant in relation to 
noise disturbance and proposed mitigation. Additional information has been 
provided setting out the noise generated by the plant and the extent and design 
of the proposed acoustic fence. The additional information addresses the 
concerns originally highlighted. Subject to the imposition of appropriate 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 101



conditions to ensure the site is constructed and operated in accordance with the 
submitted proposals the development would not have an adverse impact on the 
amenity of neighbouring properties and comply with policy E8 of the TVBRLP. 
 

8.12 Previously Developed Land 
The NPPF at paragraph 85 encourages the use of previously developed land 
over green filed sites. Numerous comments have been received relating to the 
loss of a SINC and the felling of numerous trees. For the avoidance of doubt the 
application site has, for a very long period of time, been used for storage 
purposes and did not form part of a woodland or SINC. It is a Brownfield site 
historically used for commercial purposes. This proposed development did not 
and will not result in the loss of any trees or SINC. 
 

8.13 Ecology 
All objections to the proposed development have raised concern about the 
behaviour of the applicant with regards to unlawful felling of trees and the 
destruction of a SINC. As a matter of fact the application site did not form part of 
the SINC or woodland being referred to in the representations. 
 

8.14 The Council’s ecologist was notified of the application and noted that the site is 
an existing hard surfaced area and has historically being used for storage 
purposes. For these reasons no objection is raised and the proposed 
development would not result in conflict with Policy E5 of the TVBRLP 
 

8.15 OTHER MATTERS 
8.16 Restoration of SINC 

Planning application 19/02772/FULLS was submitted in November 2019 for the 
erection of a battery storage facility and this was granted planning permission on 
13 March 2020 and this was subject to conditions. 
 

8.17 Condition 3 of planning permission 19/02772/FULLS requires the following: 
 
No development shall commence until a detailed Big Willow Wood SINC 
Biodiversity Restoration, Enhancement and Management Plan has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The 
submitted Plan shall build on the details contained within the Woodland 
Restoration and Management Plan (SLR Ref 422.06725.00001 Version 3 dated 
May 2017) and further botanical survey work of adjacent retained habitats, to 
demonstrate how the local ecological network will be enhanced. It shall further 
make provision for the relocation of the existing perimeter fencing on the 
northern and western site boundaries closer to the electricity generation unit 
compound. The Plan shall also include timescales for implementation of the 
restoration measures and provision for regular monitoring over a minimum ten 
year period, with periodic review and reporting to the local planning authority. 
Remedial works shall be undertaken where a need for these is identified. The 
Plan shall subsequently be implemented in accordance with the approved 
details, with the long-term management provisions fully implemented unless 
subsequently varied on the basis of proper monitoring and review. 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 102



The details relating to this condition have been agreed and the condition 
discharged. The restoration and phasing of it is of no relevance to the 
determination of the current application and is a separate and distinct planning 
matter. Were restoration not to be undertaken in accordance with the agreed 
details this would be a matter for the Council’s planning enforcement team. 
 

8.18 Felling of Trees 
An area of land adjacent to the site did once contain woodland and prior to 
submission of the 2017 planning application, clearance of the site occurred. This 
included the removal of trees and woodland. It is understood that a notice was 
served on the site owner by the Forestry Commission, and not the Planning 
Inspector, to restock the woodland or allow regeneration of it.  From an 
enforcement perspective the council have no powers to pursue compliance with 
that notice. Any concerns that local residents have in that regard should be 
directed to the Forestry Commission. 
 

8.19 Metal Fence 
The metal fence does not fall within the red outline of the application site. The 
current planning application does not seek planning permission for it. 
 

8.20 Fly Tipping 
It is unclear how the granting of planning permission would or may result in an 
increased frequency of fly tipping incidences. Furthermore, incidences of fly 
tipping on the public highway or public land will, if reported, be investigated by 
the relevant authority, but such a function does not fall within the realms of the 
Town and Country Planning Act. 
 

8.21 Site Area 
The site area identified on the application form is different to the area quoted 
within the agent’s covering letter. Having reviewed both documents the 
statement within the representations is correct. The site area listed on the 
application form does equate to the site outlined in red on the site location plan. 
The area quoted in the covering letter is the area of land occupied by the 
proposed development. The submitted plans and supporting documentation is 
clear about what is proposed and where it is. There is no reason why the 
application can not be moved forward to determination. 
 

8.22 Use of the Land 
Following an officer visit to the site it is clear that parking of vehicles takes place 
on site. It was also possible that some minor vehicle maintenance was being 
undertaken. However, this minor discrepancy in the uses currently being 
undertaken in no way diminishes the material considerations in the determination 
of the application as it is agreed that the land, for the purposes of planning, is 
PDL. The application has been considered on this basis. 
 

8.23 Land Ownership 
As originally submitted the wrong ownership certificate had been signed. This 
was corrected by the applicant’s agent and the correct certificate was signed. A 
new round of public consultation was undertaken after receipt of the correct 
ownership certificate. A valid application has been received. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 103



 
9.0 CONCLUSION 
9.1 Having taken into consideration the extant planning permission for a battery 

storage facility on land adjacent to the site and the need for the plant, it is 
considered that the proposal is essential to be located in a countryside 
location and therefore Policy COM2 compliant. As set out in the report, no 
significant visual harm would occur and the proposal would provide additional 
capacity to the existing electricity network which is a significant benefit of the 
scheme. The development is therefore development plan compliant and 
planning permission should therefore be granted. 

 
10.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 PERMISSION subject to: 
 1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun within three 

years from the date of this permission. 
Reason:  To comply with the provision of Section 91 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 2. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except 
in complete accordance with the details shown on the submitted 
plans, numbers 
AUG1217NURSLING-306-A 1/3 
AUG1217NURSLING-306-A 2/3 
AUG1217NURSLING-306-A 3/3 
AUG1217NURSLING-402-B 
AUG1217NURSLING-403-A 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 

 3. Prior to first use of the transformer hereby approved the proposed 
acoustic fence shall be installed in accordance with the 
specification given in section 4.3 of the Ian Sharland Limited 
Acoustic Design Specification v.2 and the locations shown in 
Figure 2 of the Ian Sharland Limited Acoustic Design Specification 
v.2 and in the location shown on Substation - Plan View. Once 
installed the acoustic fencing shall be retained in perpetuity and 
maintained to ensure that it performs to the acoustic performance 
set out in the Ian Sharland Limited Acoustic Design Specification 
v.2. 
Reason: To ensure a safe living/working environment in 
accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 
policy LHW4 & E8. 

 4. No development shall take place (other than any approved 
demolition and site clearance works) until an assessment of the 
nature and extent of any contamination and a scheme for 
remediating the contamination has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The 
assessment shall be undertaken by a competent person, and shall 
assess the presence of any contamination on the site, whether or 
not it originates on the site. The assessment shall comprise at 
least a desk study and qualitative risk assessment and, where 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 104



appropriate, the assessment shall be extended following further 
site investigation work. In the event that contamination is found, 
or is considered likely, the scheme shall contain remediation 
proposals designed to bring the site to a condition suitable for the 
intended use. Such remediation proposals shall include clear 
remediation objectives and criteria, an appraisal of the 
remediation options, and the arrangements for the supervision of 
remediation works by a competent person. The site shall not be 
brought in to use until a verification report, for the purpose of 
certifying adherence to the approved remediation scheme, has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
Reason: To ensure a safe living/working environment in 
accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 
policy E8. 

 5. No external lighting shall be installed unless in accordance with 
details that have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
local planning authority they shall thereafter be retained as such. 
The details shall include plans and details sufficient to show the 
location, type, specification, luminance and angle of illumination 
of all lights/luminaires and a light spread diagram. 
Reason:   To safeguard the amenities of the area and protected 
species in accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local 
Plan (2016) Policies E8 & E2 & E5 

 6. No work relating to the construction of the development hereby 
approved, including deliveries, collections or site preparation prior 
to construction, shall take place before the hours of 07.30 nor after 
18.00 on Mondays to Fridays; before the hours of 08.00 nor after 
13.00 on Saturdays; and at all on Sundays and Bank/Public 
Holidays, unless otherwise agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority. 
Reason: In order that the development is undertaken in an 
acceptable manner, to minimise detrimental effects to the 
neighbouring amenities, the amenities of the area in general 
having regard to Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) 
Policy E8 

 Note to applicant: 
 1. In reaching this decision Test Valley Borough Council (TVBC) has 

had regard to the National Planning Policy Framework and takes a 
positive and proactive approach to development proposals 
focused on solutions. TVBC work with applicants and their agents 
in a positive and proactive manner offering a pre-application 
advice service and updating applicants/agents of issues that may 
arise in dealing with the application and where possible 
suggesting solutions. 

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 105



Works

Sawmill

Weir

Sluices

Drain

FB

Woodlea

MILL LANE

The Fishing

Cottage

FB

Weir

FB

T
ra

c
k

REPRODUCED FROM ORDNANCE SURVEY MAPPING

 WITH THE PERMISSION OF THE CONTROLLER OF

 HER MAJESTY’S STATIONERY OFFICER © CROWN COPYRIGHT. 

UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT 

AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.

TEST VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL LICENCE No. 100024295 2013

N
Siteplan

23/01080/FULLS

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 106



Sa
w

m
ill

W
oo

dl
ea

Sl
ui

ce
s

M
IL

L 
LA

N
E

Sl
ui

ce

W
or

ks

FB

Track

Th
e 

Fi
sh

in
g 

C
ot

ta
ge

20

37

Ap
pr

ov
ed

 B
at

te
ry

 S
to

ra
ge

 F
ac

ilit
y 

re
f: 

19
/0

27
72

/F
U

LL
S

METER
ROOM

DESK

IDNO CONTROL

ROOM

AV
O

N
 U

TI
LI

TI
ES

 &
 G

EN
ER

AT
IO

N
 L

td
U

N
IT

 1
 , 

M
O

U
LD

IN
G

S 
G

R
EE

N
,

KE
N

IL
W

O
R

TH
 R

O
AD

,
M

ER
ID

EN
,

C
V7

 7
LJ

1:
10

00
 @

  A
3

M
M

13
.0

2.
23

G
J

13
.0

2.
23

1 
O

F 
1

SU
BS

TA
TI

O
N

 S
IT

E 
C

O
N

TE
XT

 P
LA

N

AU
G

12
17

 N
U

R
SL

IN
G

-4
02

BU
C

KL
AN

D

AU
G

12
17

 N
U

R
SL

IN
G

A
FI

R
ST

 IS
SU

E
M

M
13

.0
3.

23
G

J

M
IL

L 
LA

N
E

N
U

R
SL

IN
G

, S
O

U
TH

AM
PT

O
N

SO
16

 0
YE

LE
G

EN
D

LE
G

EN
D

Si
te

 B
ou

nd
ar

y

Ac
ou

st
ic

 F
en

ce
 L

in
e

Ap
pr

ov
ed

 B
at

te
ry

 S
to

ra
ge

Fa
ci

lit
y 

re
f: 

19
/0

27
72

/F
U

LL
S

B
U

PD
AT

ED
 L

AY
O

U
T

M
M

18
.0

3.
23

G
J

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 107

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
c

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
b

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
a

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
Yph

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
PROJECT NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
LOCATION:

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
CLIENT:

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
CAD REFERENCE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
SHEET:

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
No

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
By

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
Chkd

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
TITLE:



4000h ACOUSTIC FENCE
40

00
h 

AC
O

US
TI

C 
 F

EN
CE

SU
M

P

132kV CABLE TO

SOLAR PANEL FARM

GR
ID

 T
1

13
2k

V 
CA

BL
E 

SE
AL

IN
G

EN
DS

 (C
SE

)

19000

40
00

h 
AC

O
US

TI
C 

 F
EN

CE

NE
R

(D
RY

 T
YP

E)

C
AB

LE
 P

U
LL

IN
G

 P
IT

 (m
in

 1
5m

 c
en

tre
s)

M
C

X 
ST

AK
KA

bo
x 

M
O

D
U

LA
 A

C
C

ES
S 

C
H

AM
BE

R
75

0L
 x

 7
50

W
 x

 6
20

m
m

D
.

15
0Ø

 C
AB

LE
 D

U
C

TS
 (4

no
. r

ow
s 

of
 2

no
.

du
ct

s)

AU
XI

LI
AR

Y
R

O
O

M

12
00

1585

PA
N

EL
01

(1
25

0A
)

PA
N

EL
02

(1
25

0A
)

34
40

C
AB

LE
PI

T

19000

C
AB

LE
PI

T
C

AB
LE

PI
T

C
AB

LE
PI

T

1T
0

1L
5

50
0m

m
² 

AI
 C

WS
 C

ON
DU

CT
OR

S
(2N

o 
PE

R 
PH

AS
E)

TY
PI

CA
L R

OU
TE

 O
F 

50
0m

m
²

AI
 C

WS
 C

ON
DU

CT
OR

S
(1N

o 
PE

R 
PH

AS
E)

R
R

R

RE
M

O
VA

BL
E 

PA
NE

LS

76
40

14
4211

0V
11

0V
BL

AC
KS

TA
R

T
BA

TT
ER

Y

80
70

80
70

2000 2000

20
00

20
00

10
00

30
06

0

FI
RE

 D
EF

EN
SE

 Z
O

NE

FI
RE

 D
EF

EN
SE

 Z
O

NE

13
2k

V 
CA

BL
E

SE
AL

IN
G 

EN
DS

(C
SE

)

33
kV

SW
IT

C
H

R
O

O
M

D
ES

K

28
00

78
72

80
0

1100

1950 CLEAR

3900

38
50

60
0

1450

G
R

P 
C

O
M

PO
SI

TE
PA

R
TI

TI
O

N
 1

 H
O

U
R

FI
R

E 
R

ES
IS

TA
N

T

M
ET

ER
R

O
O

M

D
ES

K

ID
N

O
 C

O
N

TR
O

L
R

O
O

M

ID
N

O
O

U
T

ST
AT

IO
N

G
T1

R
EL

AY
PA

N
EL

C
IR

C
U

IT
PR

O
T'

N
PA

N
EL

LV
AC

PA
N

EL
11

0V
BA

TT
ER

Y
PA

N
EL

50
0

FI
LI

N
G

 C
AB

IN
ET

, 4
00

W
 x

40
0D

 x
 1

25
0m

m
 H

O
PT

IC
AL

 D
IS

TI
BU

TI
O

N
 F

R
AM

E,
LO

C
AT

ED
 A

T 
16

00
m

m
 A

BO
VE

  S
.S

.L
.

PA
SS

 1
32

kV
 S

W
IT

C
H

H
O

U
SE

 E
N

C
LO

SU
R

E

AU
X 

TX
(W

EI
GH

T 
IN

C 
OI

L 2
83

0K
G)

KL
AR

G
ES

TE
R

NS
6 

O
IL

IN
TE

RC
EP

TO
R

6300

40
60

2100 3400

C
AB

LE
PI

T

21
50

20
00

65
32

40
80

20
00

40
60

20
00

4000h ACOUSTIC FENCE

B
B

A
A

C C

D D

SO
AK

AW
AY

2M
 x 

2M
 x 

1M

AV
O

N
 U

TI
LI

TI
ES

 &
 G

EN
ER

AT
IO

N
 L

td
U

N
IT

 1
 , 

M
O

U
LD

IN
G

S 
G

R
EE

N
,

KE
N

IL
W

O
R

TH
 R

O
AD

,
M

ER
ID

EN
,

C
V7

 7
LJ

1:
10

0 
@

  A
3

M
M

18
.0

4.
23

G
J

18
.0

4.
23

1 
O

F 
3

SU
BS

TA
TI

O
N

 - 
PL

AN
 V

IE
W

AU
G

12
17

 N
U

R
SL

IN
G

-3
06

BU
C

KL
AN

D

AU
G

12
17

 N
U

R
SL

IN
G

A
M

M
18

.0
4.

23
G

J

M
IL

L 
LA

N
E

N
U

R
SL

IN
G

, S
O

U
TH

AM
PT

O
N

SO
16

 0
YE

O
G

 K
ED

VA
LE

-N
LG

-1
10

2 
 - 

AM
EN

D
ED

 F
EN

C
E 

LI
N

E

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 108

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
c

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
b

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
a

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
Yph

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
PROJECT NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
LOCATION:

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
CLIENT:

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
CAD REFERENCE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
SHEET:

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
No

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
By

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
Chkd

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
TITLE:



5100

5100

PA
SS

 1
32

kV
 S

W
IT

C
H

 H
O

U
SE

EN
C

LO
SU

R
E

GR
ID

 T
1

60
MV

A
13

2/ 
33

kV

3000

3000

AU
XI

LIA
RY

 T
RA

NS
FO

RM
ER

(W
EI

GH
T 

IN
C 

OI
L 2

83
0K

G)
GR

ID
 T

1
60

MV
A

13
2/ 

33
kV

ID
N

O
C

O
N

TR
O

L
R

O
O

M

SW
IT

CH
 H

O
US

E

SW
IT

CH
 H

O
US

E

3000

 ID
N

O
C

O
N

TR
O

L
R

O
O

M

3000

40
00

h
AC

OU
ST

IC
FE

NC
E

SW
IT

CH
 H

O
US

E

 ID
N

O
C

O
N

TR
O

L
R

O
O

M

O
FF

10

CT
2

CT
1

P.
R.

D.
BU

CH
HO

LT
Z

13
2/ 

33
kV

TR
AN

SF
OR

ME
R

(W
EI

GH
T 

IN
C 

OI
L 9

35
00

KG
)

PA
SS

 U
N

IT
(W

EI
G

H
T 

15
00

0K
G

)

13
2/ 

33
kV

TR
AN

SF
OR

ME
R

(W
EI

GH
T 

IN
C 

OI
L 9

35
00

KG
)

PA
SS

 1
32

kV
 S

W
IT

C
H

 H
O

U
SE

EN
C

LO
SU

R
E

PA
SS

 U
N

IT
(W

EI
G

H
T 

15
00

0K
G

)

AU
XI

LIA
RY

 T
RA

NS
FO

RM
ER

(W
EI

GH
T 

IN
C 

OI
L 2

83
0K

G)

NE
R

PA
SS

 1
32

kV
 S

W
IT

C
H

 H
O

U
SE

EN
C

LO
SU

R
E

40
00

h
AC

OU
ST

IC
FE

NC
E

40
00

h
AC

OU
ST

IC
FE

NC
E

40
00

h
AC

OU
ST

IC
FE

NC
E

40
00

h
AC

OU
ST

IC
FE

NC
E

40
00

h
AC

OU
ST

IC
FE

NC
E

IN
TE

R
N

AL
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
 - 

VI
EW

 A

IN
TE

R
N

AL
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
 - 

VI
EW

 B

IN
TE

R
N

AL
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
 - 

VI
EW

 C
IN

TE
R

N
AL

 E
LE

VA
TI

O
N

 - 
VI

EW
 D

40
00

h
AC

OU
ST

IC
FE

NC
E

4017

6431

AV
O

N
 U

TI
LI

TI
ES

 &
 G

EN
ER

AT
IO

N
 L

td
U

N
IT

 1
 , 

M
O

U
LD

IN
G

S 
G

R
EE

N
,

KE
N

IL
W

O
R

TH
 R

O
AD

,
M

ER
ID

EN
,

C
V7

 7
LJ

1:
10

0 
@

  A
3

M
M

18
.0

4.
23

G
J

18
.0

4.
23

2 
O

F 
3

SU
BS

TA
TI

O
N

  -
  E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
S

AU
G

12
17

 N
U

R
SL

IN
G

-3
06

BU
C

KL
AN

D

AU
G

12
17

 N
U

R
SL

IN
G

A
FI

R
ST

 IS
SU

E
M

M
18

.0
4.

23
G

J

M
IL

L 
LA

N
E

N
U

R
SL

IN
G

, S
O

U
TH

AM
PT

O
N

SO
16

 0
YE

O
G

 K
ED

VA
LE

-N
LG

-1
10

2 
 - 

AM
EN

D
ED

 F
EN

C
E 

LI
N

E

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 109

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
+4.435m

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
S.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
 c  b  a

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
-10

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
ZN

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
PROJECT NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
LOCATION:

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
CLIENT:

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
CAD REFERENCE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
SHEET:

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
No

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
By

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
Chkd

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
TITLE:



28
0m

m
 C

AV
IT

Y 
W

AL
L

10
0m

m
 B

LO
C

KW
O

R
K

80
m

m
 C

AV
IT

Y
10

0m
m

 B
LO

C
KW

O
R

K

5100

28
0m

m
 C

AV
IT

Y 
W

AL
L

10
0m

m
 B

LO
C

KW
O

R
K

80
m

m
 C

AV
IT

Y
10

0m
m

 B
LO

C
KW

O
R

K

5100

13
2k

V 
CA

BL
E 

SE
AL

IN
G

EN
DS

 (C
SE

)

PA
SS

 1
32

kV
 S

W
IT

C
H

 H
O

U
SE

EN
C

LO
SU

R
E

GR
ID

 T
1

60
MV

A
13

2/ 
33

kV

3000

3000

AU
XI

LIA
RY

 T
RA

NS
FO

RM
ER

(W
EI

GH
T 

IN
C 

OI
L 2

83
0K

G)
GR

ID
 T

1
60

MV
A

13
2/ 

33
kV

ID
N

O
C

O
N

TR
O

L
R

O
O

M

SW
IT

CH
 H

O
US

E

SW
IT

CH
 H

O
US

E

3000

 ID
N

O
C

O
N

TR
O

L
R

O
O

M

3000

40
00

h
AC

OU
ST

IC
FE

NC
E

SW
IT

CH
 H

O
US

E

 ID
N

O
C

O
N

TR
O

L
R

O
O

M

C
AB

LE
 P

U
LL

IN
G

 P
IT

 (m
in

 1
5m

 c
en

tre
s)

M
C

X 
ST

AK
KA

bo
x 

M
O

D
U

LA
 A

C
C

ES
S 

C
H

AM
BE

R
75

0L
 x

 7
50

W
 x

 6
20

m
m

D
.

O
FF

10

CT
2

CT
1

P.
R.

D.
BU

CH
HO

LT
Z

SO
AK

AW
AY

2M
 x 

2M
 x 

1M

13
2/ 

33
kV

TR
AN

SF
OR

ME
R

(W
EI

GH
T 

IN
C 

OI
L 9

35
00

KG
)

PA
SS

 U
N

IT
(W

EI
G

H
T 

15
00

0K
G

)

13
2/ 

33
kV

TR
AN

SF
OR

ME
R

(W
EI

GH
T 

IN
C 

OI
L 9

35
00

KG
)

PA
SS

 1
32

kV
 S

W
IT

C
H

 H
O

U
SE

EN
C

LO
SU

R
E

PA
SS

 U
N

IT
(W

EI
G

H
T 

15
00

0K
G

)

AU
XI

LIA
RY

 T
RA

NS
FO

RM
ER

(W
EI

GH
T 

IN
C 

OI
L 2

83
0K

G)

NE
R

PA
SS

 1
32

kV
 S

W
IT

C
H

 H
O

U
SE

EN
C

LO
SU

R
E

PA
SS

 U
N

IT
(W

EI
G

H
T 

15
00

0K
G

)

40
00

h
AC

OU
ST

IC
FE

NC
E

40
00

h
AC

OU
ST

IC
FE

NC
E

40
00

h
AC

OU
ST

IC
FE

NC
E

40
00

h
AC

OU
ST

IC
FE

NC
E

40
00

h
AC

OU
ST

IC
FE

NC
E

40
00

h
AC

OU
ST

IC
FE

NC
E

40
00

h
AC

OU
ST

IC
FE

NC
E

IN
TE

R
N

AL
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
 - 

VI
EW

 A

IN
TE

R
N

AL
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
 - 

VI
EW

 B

IN
TE

R
N

AL
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
 - 

VI
EW

 C

IN
TE

R
N

AL
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
 - 

VI
EW

 D

6377

AV
O

N
 U

TI
LI

TI
ES

 &
 G

EN
ER

AT
IO

N
 L

td
U

N
IT

 1
 , 

M
O

U
LD

IN
G

S 
G

R
EE

N
,

KE
N

IL
W

O
R

TH
 R

O
AD

,
M

ER
ID

EN
,

C
V7

 7
LJ

1:
10

0 
@

  A
3

M
M

18
.0

4.
23

G
J

18
.0

4.
23

3 
O

F 
3

SU
BS

TA
TI

O
N

 - 
C

R
O

SS
 S

EC
TI

O
N

S

AU
G

12
17

 N
U

R
SL

IN
G

-3
06

BU
C

KL
AN

D

AU
G

12
17

 N
U

R
SL

IN
G

A
O

G
 K

ED
VA

LE
-N

LG
-1

10
2 

 - 
AM

EN
D

ED
 F

EN
C

E 
LI

N
E

M
M

18
.0

4.
23

G
J

M
IL

L 
LA

N
E

N
U

R
SL

IN
G

, S
O

U
TH

AM
PT

O
N

SO
16

 0
YE

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 15 August 2023

Page 110

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
+4.435m

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
S.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
2000 MINIMUM

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
2000 MINIMUM

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
2000 MINIMUM

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
2000 MINIMUM

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
 c  b  a

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
-10

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
ZN

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
PROJECT NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
LOCATION:

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
CLIENT:

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
CAD REFERENCE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
SHEET:

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
No

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
By

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
Chkd

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
TITLE:


	Agenda
	5 Minutes of previous meeting
	6 Information Notes
	TEST VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL
	SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE
	INFORMATION NOTES
	Availability of Background Papers
	Reasons for Committee Consideration
	Public Speaking at the Meeting
	Status of Officer’s Recommendations and Committee’s Decisions
	Conditions and Reasons for Refusal
	Decisions subject to Completion of a Planning Obligation
	Deferred Applications
	Visual Display of Plans and Photographs
	Human Rights
	The HRA introduces an obligation on the Council to act consistently with the ECHR.
	Other Legislation

	7 22/03346/FULLS - 03.01.2023
	22_03346_FULLS SAPC Plan 1
	22_03346_FULLS SAPC Plan 2
	22_03346_FULLS SAPC Plan 3
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout


	22_03346_FULLS SAPC Plan 4
	Sheets and Views
	BESS AREA ONLY


	22_03346_FULLS SAPC Plan 5
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1-Plannning


	22_03346_FULLS SAPC Plan 6
	Sheets and Views
	BOOM POWER


	22_03346_FULLS SAPC Plan 7
	Sheets and Views
	BOOM POWER Planning


	22_03346_FULLS SAPC Plan 8
	Sheets and Views
	BOOM POWER


	22_03346_FULLS SAPC Plan 9
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1-BOOM POWER


	22_03346_FULLS SAPC Plan 10
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1-BOOM POWER


	22_03346_FULLS SAPC Plan 11
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1-BOOM POWER


	22_03346_FULLS SAPC Plan 12
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1-BOOM POWER


	22_03346_FULLS SAPC Plan 13
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1-Planning


	22_03346_FULLS SAPC Plan 14
	Sheets and Views
	BOOM POWER Planning



	8 23/00805/FULLS - 30.03.2023
	23_00805_FULLS SAPC Plan 1
	23_00805_FULLS SAPC Plan 2
	23_00805_FULLS SAPC Plan 3
	23_00805_FULLS SAPC Plan 4
	23_00805_FULLS SAPC Plan 5

	9 23/01508/FULLS - 12.06.2023
	23_01508_FULLS SAPC Plan 1
	23_01508_FULLS SAPC Plan 2
	23_01508_FULLS SAPC Plan 3
	23_01508_FULLS SAPC Plan 4
	23_01508_FULLS SAPC Plan 5
	23_01508_FULLS SAPC Plan 6
	Sheets and Views
	JD_130_P1.p2
	OLE2
	OLE3



	23_01508_FULLS SAPC Plan 7
	23_01508_FULLS SAPC Plan 8
	23_01508_FULLS SAPC Plan 9
	23_01508_FULLS SAPC Plan 10
	Sheets and Views
	JD_130_Gar.01
	OLE2
	OLE3



	23_01508_FULLS SAPC Plan 11
	23_01508_FULLS SAPC Plan 12
	23_01508_FULLS SAPC Plan 13
	23_01508_FULLS SAPC Plan 14

	10 23/01080/FULLS - 20.06.2023
	23_01080_ FULLS SAPC Plan 1
	23_01080_ FULLS SAPC Plan 2
	Sheets and Views
	AUG1217 NURSLING-402-B-SUBSTATION  AREA


	23_01080_ FULLS SAPC Plan 3
	Sheets and Views
	AUG1217 NURSLING-306-A-SUBSTATION  LAYOUT


	23_01080_ FULLS SAPC Plan 4
	Sheets and Views
	AUG1217 NURSLING-306-A-ELEVATIONS


	23_01080_ FULLS SAPC Plan 5
	Sheets and Views
	AUG1217 NURSLING-306-A-CROSS SECTIONS




